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Dear Members,

Invitation to attend the 78th Annual General Meeting on Wednesday, September 17, 2025

You are cordially invited to attend the 78th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Tulsyan NEC Limited (‘the Company”)
to be held on Wednesday, September 17, 2025 at 11:30 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means
(“OAVM).

The Notice of the Meeting, containing the business to be transacted, is enclosed herewith. As per Section 108 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the related rules and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company is pleased to provide its Members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means on all resolutions as set forth in the
78th AGM Notice.

Yours truly,
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823

Enclosures:

1. Notice of the 78th Annual General Meeting
2. Instructions for participation through VC

3. Instructions for e-voting
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NOTICE OF THE 78™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy Eighth (78th) Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Tulsyan NEC Limited
will be held on Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 11.30 a.m.
(IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Iltem No. 1: To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone and consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members of the
Company, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

Item No. 2: To appoint Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864)
as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864),
who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 3: To appoint Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Rules made thereunder,
Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”),
and based on the recommendation(s) of the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the Members
of the Company, be and is hereby accorded for appointment of
M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Chennai, bearing Firm Registration Number
L2019TN006000, holding Peer Review Certificate No: 3847/2023,
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a first term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from the Financial Year 2025-26 till
the Financial Year 2029-30, at a proposed annual secretarial audit
fees of Rs. 67,000/~ (Rupees Sixty Seven Thousand), payable in

one or more tranches, plus applicable taxes and reimbursement
of out-of-pocket expenses as may be incurred in connection with
performing the secretarial audit of the Company, with the power
of the Audit Committee / Board to alter and vary the terms and
conditions of appointment, revision in the fees during the tenure of
the Auditors, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually
agreed with the Secretarial Auditors;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members of the
Company, be and is hereby accorded to the Board to avail or obtain
from M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, such other services or
certificates or reports which the Secretarial Auditor may be eligible
to provide or issue under the applicable laws, rules, regulations,
circulars and guidelines, as may be issued in this regard, at such
remuneration / fees as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial
Auditors;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnels of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorised, for and on behalf of the Company, to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things and take all such steps as may
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 4: To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. Murthy
& Co. LLP, Cost Auditors of the Company, for the Financial
Year 2025-2026.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time beingiin force), the remuneration
as approved by the Board of Directors, payable to M/s. Murthy
& Co. LLP, Cost and Management Accountants, bearing Firm
Registration Number with ICMAI:000648, Bengaluru, appointed
by the Board of Directors of the Company, upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit
of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2026, amounting to Rs.70,000/- (Rupees Seventy
Thousand) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of
out-of-pocket expenses, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnels of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorised, for and on behalf of the Company, to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things and take all such steps as may
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 5: To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Somasundaram
Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633), as an Independent (Non-
Executive) Director of the Company for a second term of 5
(Five) consecutive years.
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To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150
and 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, read along with
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) [including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force], the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulations 16, 17, 25 and any
other applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), as amended from time to time and subject to Articles
of Association of the Company and upon recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and as approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Somasundaram
Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633), who was appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from September 19, 2020 to
September 18, 2025 (both days inclusive) and who being eligible
for re-appointment as an Independent Director of the Company
has given his consent along with a declaration that he meets the
criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received
a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the
Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby re-appointed as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director
of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold the office
for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years on the Board of the
Company with effect from September 19, 2025 to September 18,
2030 (both days inclusive);

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including its
Committee thereof) or Key Managerial Personnels of the Company
be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable
for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 6: To approve payment of remuneration to Mr. Lalit
Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823), Managing Director (Executive
Chairman) of the Company, in case of absence or inadequacy
of profits in any Financial Year of the Company.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197,
198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per
Regulations 17(6)(e), 23 and all other applicable regulations
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, being a Promoter of the Company, upon
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

and approval of the Audit Committee & the Board of Directors of
the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to pay the remuneration, including all other
benefits and perquisites, as approved by the Members at the 75th
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022 and by the
Board of Directors from time to time, as per the limits specified
under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, to Mr. Lalit Kumar
Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823), Managing Director (Executive Chairman)
of the Company, for a further of period of 2 (Two) years commencing
from July 11, 2025 to July 10, 2027 (both days inclusive), in case
of absence or inadequacy of profits in any Financial Year of the
Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnels of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 7: To approve payment of remuneration to Mr. Sanjay
Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802), Managing Director of the Company,
in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any Financial
Year of the Company.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197,
198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per
Regulations 17(6)(e), 23 and all other applicable regulations
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, being a Promoter of the Company, upon
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approval of the Audit Committee & the Board of Directors of
the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to pay the remuneration, including all other
benefits and perquisites, as approved by the Members at the 75th
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022 and by the
Board of Directors from time to time, as per the limits specified under
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, to Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan
(DIN: 00632802), Managing Director of the Company, for a further
of period of 2 (Two) years commencing from September 30, 2025
to September 29, 2027 (both days inclusive), in case of absence or
inadequacy of profits in any Financial Year of the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnels of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 8: To approve payment of remuneration to
Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole Time Director of
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the Company, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in
any Financial Year of the Company.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197,
198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per
Regulations 17(6)(e), 23 and all other applicable regulations
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, upon recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of
the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to pay the remuneration, including all other
benefits and perquisites, as approved by the Members at the 75th
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022 and by the
Board of Directors from time to time, as per the limits specified under
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, to Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla
(DIN: 00632864), Whole Time Director of the Company, for a further
of period of 2 (Two) years commencing from September 21, 2025
to September 20, 2027 (both days inclusive), in case of absence or
inadequacy of profits in any Financial Year of the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Key
Managerial Personnels of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 9: To approve the Related Party Transactions with
M/s. Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),

the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if
any, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) read with
Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended
from time to time, and the Company’s Policy on Related Party
Transactions and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions
and permissions as may be necessary from time to time and on the
basis of recommendation and approval of the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors of the Company, approval of the Members
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to enter/continue to
enter into the following Material Related Party Transaction(s)/
Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) (whether by way of an
individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) with Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited,
a related party to the Company within the meaning of Section 2(76)
of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
for purchase/sale of goods or materials and availing/rendering of
services, any income or expenses, applicable taxes, if any, incurred
in these connections and on such terms and conditions as the
Board of Directors of the Company may deem fit and as detailed
in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this
Meeting, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 1,410 crores
for a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the conclusion of
the 78th AGM till the conclusion of the 81st AGM of the Company,
such that the maximum value of the Related Party Transactions
with such party, in aggregate, does not exceed value, as specified
below, under each category for the said period, provided that the
said contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) shall be carried out
in the ordinary course of business of the Company and are at arm’s
length basis;

Name of the Nature of Nature of Value of Period for which Members’ approval is sought
Related Party Relationship Contract/ Transaction for the Transaction
Arrangement/
Transaction

Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited

Private Company
in which directors
are interested

Purchase of goods
or materials

Rs. 400 Crores

For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
815t AGM of the Company

Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited

Private Company
in which directors
are interested

Sale of goods or
materials

Rs. 1000 Crores

For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
815 AGM of the Company

Private Limited

in which directors
are interested

services

Tulsyan Smelters | Private Company | Availing of services | Rs. 5 crores For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the

Private Limited in which directors conclusion of the 78™ AGM till the conclusion of the
are interested 815 AGM of the Company

Tulsyan Smelters | Private Company | Rendering of Rs. 5 crores For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the

conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
81t AGM of the Company
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as ‘Board’ which term shall be
deemed to include the Audit Committee of the Company and any
other duly constituted/to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this
resolution) be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion
including but not limited to authorising signatories, deciding
on the timing, manner and extent of carrying out the aforesaid
activities and to negotiate, finalise and execute agreement(s),
arrangement(s), contract(s) and such other document(s) as may be
required, to seek all necessary approvals, for and on behalf of the
Company, to make any material modifications to the terms of such
related party transactions and to settle any questions or difficulties
that may arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being
required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members
of the Company and to take all such decisions from powers herein
conferred to, by whatever name called, to delegate all or any of the
powers or authorities herein conferred to any Director(s) or other
officer(s) of the Company or to engage any advisor, consultant,
agent or intermediary, as may be deemed necessary;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the
Company in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated
in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respects.”

Item No. 10: To approve the Related Party Transactions with
M/s. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any,
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) read with Rule 15
of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time,
and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and
subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as
may be necessary from time to time and on the basis of approval and
recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
of the Company, approval of the Members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to enter/continue to enter into following Related
Party Transaction(s) / Contract(s) / Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s)
(whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken
together or series of transactions or otherwise) with Chitrakoot
Steel and Power Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary and a
related party to the Company within the meaning of Section 2(76)
of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
for purchase/sale of goods or materials and availing/rendering of
services, any income or expenses, applicable taxes, if any, incurred
in these connections and on such terms and conditions as the
Board of Directors of the Company may deem fit and as detailed
in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this
Meeting, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 235 crores for
a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the conclusion of
the 78th AGM till the conclusion of the 81st AGM of the Company,
such that the maximum value of the Related Party Transactions
with such party, in aggregate, does not exceed value, as specified
below, under each category for the said period, provided that the
said contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) shall be carried out
in the ordinary course of business of the Company and are at arm’s
length basis;

Name of the Nature of Nature of Value of Period for which Members’ approval is sought
Related Party Relationship Contract/ Transaction for the Transaction
Arrangement/
Transaction
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Purchase of goods | Rs. 150 Crores | For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary or materials conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 81t AGM of the Company
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Sale of goods or Rs. 75 Crores | For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary materials conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 815 AGM of the Company
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Availing of services | Rs. 5 crores For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 815t AGM of the Company
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Rendering of Rs. 5 crores For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary services conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 81t AGM of the Company
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as ‘Board’ which term shall be
deemed to include the Audit Committee of the Company and any
other duly constituted/to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under
this resolution) / respective Subsidiaries be and are hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it
may deem fit at its absolute discretion including but not limited to
authorising signatories, deciding on the timing, manner and extent
of carrying out the aforesaid activities and to negotiate, finalise
and execute agreement(s), arrangement(s), contract(s) and such
other document(s) as may be required, to seek all necessary
approvals, for and on behalf of the Company, to make any material
modifications to the terms of such related party transactions and
to settle any questions or difficulties that may arise in this regard
and incidental thereto, without being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the Members of the Company and to take all
such decisions from powers herein conferred to, by whatever name
called, to delegate all or any of the powers or authorities herein
conferred to any Director(s) or other officer(s) of the Company
or the concerned Subsidiary (as the Board of Directors or a duly
constituted committee thereof of such subsidiary may determine),
to engage any advisor, consultant, agent or intermediary, as may
be deemed necessary;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the
Company / respective Subsidiaries in connection with any matter
referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby
approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823

Place: Chennai
Date: 19-08-2025

Registered Office:

Tulsyan NEC Limited

Apex Plaza, | Floor, New No.77,

Old No.3, Nungambakkam High Road
Chennai-600034, Tamil Nadu

Email: investor@tulsyannec.in

Website: www.tulsyannec.in
Tel.: 044-6199 1060, Fax: 044-6199 1066

NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA'), inter alia, vide its
General Circular No(s). 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being
General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024
(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), has permitted
the holding of the AGM through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)
or through Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’), without the

physical presence of the Members at a common venue.
Further, the Securites and Exchange Board of India
(‘SEBI’) vide its Circular(s) dated May 12, 2020, January
15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 6,
2023, October 7, 2023 and October 3, 2024 (‘SEBI
Circulars’) and other applicable circulars issued in this
regard, has provided relaxations from compliance with
certain provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, SEBI
Listing Regulations, MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the
78th AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM
on Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 11:30 a.m. (IST).
The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted
at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Tulsyan
NEC Limited, Apex Plaza, | Floor, New No.77, Old No. 3,
Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai-600 034, Tamil Nadu,
India.

Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions,
in respect of items of special business to be transacted at
this AGM is annexed hereto. Further, relevant information
pursuant to Regulation 36 and other relevant provisions of the
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and disclosure requirements
in terms of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-
2') issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
in respect of Director retiring by rotation and seeking re-
appointment, fixation/variation of the terms of remuneration
of Executive Directors and re-appointment of Independent
Director at this Annual General Meeting (‘Meeting’ or ‘AGM’)
are annexed to this Notice.

Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA and SEBI
Circulars through VC/OAVM, where physical attendance
of the Members has been dispensed with, accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members under
Section 105 of the Act will not be available for this AGM.
Hence, the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map of
AGM are not annexed to this Notice.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has appointed Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (“CDSL”) to provide VC/OAVM facility for the
78th AGM of the Company.

Institutional / Corporate Members are encouraged to attend
and vote at the meeting through VC/OAVM. We also request
them to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution/
Authorised Letter etc., authorising their representative
to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and vote through
remote e-voting on their behalf, to the Scrutinizer at
kir@mdassociates.co.in with a copy marked to helpdesk.

evoting@cdslindia.com and investor @tulsyannec.in
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In case of Joint Holders attending the AGM, only such
Joint Holder who is named first in the order of names in the
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Register of Members will be entitled to vote.

Only bona fide members of the Company, whose names
appear on the Register of Members, will be permitted to
attend the meeting through VC/OAVM. The Company
reserves its right to take all necessary steps as may be
deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending
the meeting.

In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and the
SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the 78th
Annual Report of the Company for the FY 2024-25 are being
sent ONLY through electronic mode to those Members
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company
/ Registrar and Transfer Agent (“RTA”) / Depositories /
Depository Participants (“DPs”) and a letter will be sent by
the Company providing the web-link, including the exact
path where complete details of the Annual Report including
the Notice of the AGM is available, to those shareholder(s)
who have not registered their e-mail address with the
Company / RTA / Depositories / DPs. The Company shall
send physical copy of the 78th Annual Report for the FY
2024-25 to those Members who request for the same to
the Company at investor@tulsyannec.in or to the RTA at
murali@cameoindia.com mentioning their Folio No./DP ID
and Client ID. The Notice convening the 78th AGM along with
the Annual Report for the FY 2024-25 is also available on the
website of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in and website of
the Stock Exchange where the securities of the Company are
listed, i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the website
of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address,
telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number
(PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank
mandate details, etc.:

a)  For shares held in electronic form: to their respective
Depository Participants (DPs) only. The Company
or its RTA cannot act on any request received directly
from the Members holding shares in demat mode for
changes in any bank mandates or other particulars.

b)  For shares held in physical form: to the
Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent by
sending a request on email atinvestor @tulsyannec.in or
murali@cameoindia.com in prescribed Form ISR-1
and other relevant forms quoting their folio number
and enclosing the self attested supporting document(s).

Further, The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(‘'SEBI') has mandated furnishing of PAN and KYC details
(i.e., Contact details, bank account details, Specimen
signature etc.) by holders of physical securities in prescribed
forms. Any service requests or complaints received from the
Member, will not be processed by RTA till the aforesaid
details / documents are provided to RTA. Accordingly,
Members are requested to send requests in the prescribed
forms to the RTA of the Company for availing of various

11.

12.

13.

14.

investor services as per the SEBI Master Circular dated June
28, 2025.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to
exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change
in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible.
Members are also advised to not leave their demat account(s)
dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be
obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and
holdings should be verified from time to time.

In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, as amended, any fresh transfer requests for
securities shall be processed in demat/electronic form only.
Members holding shares of the Company in physical form
are requested to kindly get their shares converted into demat/
electronic form to get inherent benefits of dematerialisation.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular
No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated
January 25, 2022 read with SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024,
as applicable has mandated the listed companies to issue
securities in demat form only, while processing service
requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim
from Unclaimed Suspense Account, Renewal/Exchange of
securities certificate, Endorsement, Sub-division/Splitting of
securities certificate, Consolidation of securities certificates/
folios, Transmission and Transposition. ~Accordingly,
Shareholders are requested to make service requests by
submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4. It may be
noted that any service request can be processed only after
the folio is KYC compliant.

SEBI has mandated furnishing of PAN, Contact Details
(Postal Address with PIN and Mobile Number), Bank Account
Details, Specimen Signature, etc., by holders of physical
securities for their corresponding physical folios with the
Company or its RTA. Relevant FAQs have been published by
SEBI in this regard. The FAQs and the SEBI Master Circulars
/ Circulars are available on SEBI's website. The forms for
updation of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination are
Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3 and SH-13 and other prescribed
forms. In view of the above, we urge Members holding shares
in physical form to submit the required forms duly filled up
and signed, along with the supporting documents at the
earliest to the RTA. Towards this, the Company is sending
letters to the Members holding shares in physical form, in
relation to applicable SEBI Circular(s). Members who hold
shares in dematerialised form and wish to update their PAN,
KYC, Bank details and Nomination, are requested to contact
their respective DPs. Further, Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to ensure that their PAN is linked
to their Aadhaar card. Any service requests or complaints
received from the Member, will not be processed by RTA
till the aforesaid details / documents are provided to RTA.
Accordingly, Members are requested to send requests in the
prescribed forms to the RTA of the Company for availing of
various investor services.
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21.

Members who have not registered their email IDs, are
requested to register their email IDs with their depository
participants in respect of shares held in electronic form and
in respect of shares held in physical form, are requested to
submit their request with their valid e-mail IDs to our RTA
or to the Company for receiving all the communications
including annual report, notices, letters etc., in electronic
mode from the Company.

Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform our
RTA / respective depository participants, immediately of any:

a)  Change in their residential status on return to India for
permanent settlement.

b)  Particulars of their bank account maintained in India
with complete name, branch, account type, account
number and address of the bank with pin code number,
if not furnished earlier.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of
names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the
Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the
share certificates along with the requisite KYC Documents
for consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for
consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in
dematerialised form only.

The scanned copy of Statutory Registers prescribed under
the Act and relevant documents referred to in the Notice and
the Explanatory Statement are open for electronic inspection
without any fee by the members from the date of circulation
of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. September 17,
2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents may
send their request through an email to the Company at
investor @tulsyannec.in.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination
is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by
them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination
are requested to register the same by submitting the
prescribed Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt out or
cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination,
he/she may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the
case may be. Members are requested to submit the said
details to their DP, in case the shares are held by them in
dematerialized form and to our RTA, in case the shares are
held in physical form.

SEBI has established a common Online Dispute Resolution
Portal (‘ODR Portal’) for resolution of disputes arising
in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to this, post
exhausting the option to resolve their grievance with the
RTA/Company directly and/or through the SEBI SCORES
platform, the investors can initiate dispute resolution through
the ODR Portal (https:/smartodr.in/login) and the same
can also be accessed through the Company’s website at
www.tulsyannec.in.

In line with the measures of “Green Initiatives”, the Act
provides for sending Notice of the AGM and all other

22.

23.

24.

correspondences through electronic mode. Hence, Members
who have not registered their email IDs so far with their
depository participants are requested to register their email
ID for receiving all the communications including Annual
Report, Notices etc., in electronic mode. The Company
is concerned about the environment and utilises natural
resources in a sustainable way.

IEPF Related Information: Members are requested to note
that as per Section 124(5) of the Act, the dividend which
remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven) years
from the date of its transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account,
is liable to be transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) established by the
Central Government under Section 125 of the Act. Further,
as per Section 124(6) of the Act, read with the Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules),
as amended, all the shares in respect of which dividend
has remained unpaid/unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven)
consecutive years or more are required to be transferred
to demat account of the IEPF Authority. Members may
approach the IEPF Authority to claim the unclaimed dividend
transferred by the Company to IEPF. Members are entitled to
claim the same from |EPF by submitting an application in the
prescribed online web-based Form |EPF-5 available on the
website www.iepf.gov.in and sending a physical copy of the
same duly signed, to the Nodal Officer of the Company along
with the requisite documents enumerated in the Form |EPF-
5. Members can file only one consolidated claim in a financial
year as per the IEPF Rules. No claim shall lie against the
Company in respect of dividend / shares so transferred.
Members may further note that all unpaid/unclaimed dividend
amount along with shares which were lying with the Company
upto and in respect of the financial year ended on 31st March
2012, have already been transferred to the |[EPF. The details
of the unpaid/unclaimed dividends and shares so transferred
to IEPF are uploaded on the Company’s website at
www.tulsyannec.in and on the website of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs at www.mca.gov.in.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended
and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)
and in terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 09, 2020, the Company is
pleased to provide the facility of remote e-voting to all the
Members as per the applicable provisions relating to e-voting.
The complete instructions on e-voting facility provided by the
Company are annexed to this Notice, explaining the process
of e-voting.

The Company has fixed Wednesday, September 10, 2025
as Cut-off date for determining the eligibility of Members
entitled to vote at the AGM. The remote e-voting shall
remain open for a period of 3 days commencing from
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Sunday, September 14, 2025 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends
on Tuesday, September 16, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST) (both
days inclusive). A person who is not a member as on the
cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes
only. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled for
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by
the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

E-VOTING

INSTRUCTIONS TO MEMBERS FOR CDSL E-VOTING SYSTEM
- FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM:

1.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation
44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and
MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May
05, 2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting
to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at
the 78th AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into
an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized e-Voting agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system
on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000
Members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Members (Members holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnels, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come
first served basis.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020,
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance
of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the Members such as the President of India
or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 78th
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company
at www.tulsyannec.in. The Notice can also be accessed
from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated
on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote
e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) at
www.evotingindia.com.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING AND
JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system
in case of individual members holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of members
holding shares in physical mode and non-individual members in
demat mode.

(i) The voting period begins on Sunday, September 14, 2025
(9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Tuesday, September 16,
2025 (5:00 p.m. IST) (both days inclusive). During this period
Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e.
Wednesday, September 10, 2025 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL
for voting thereafter.

(i) Members who have already voted prior to the meeting date
would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iiiy Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, listed entities are required to
provide remote e-voting facility to its Members, in respect of
all Members' resolutions. However, it has been observed that
the participation by the public non-institutional members/retail
members is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs)
providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user IDs and passwords by the members.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process,
pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way
of a single login credential, through their demat accounts
/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat
account holders would be able to cast their vote without having
to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system
in case of individual members holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/

CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual members holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Members are advised to update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access
e-Voting facility.
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for
e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual members
holding securities in Demat mode in CDSL/NSDL is given
below:
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Type of Members Login Method

Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password.
Members holding Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to
securities in Demat Easi/ Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & My Easi New
mode with CDSL (Token) Tab.

Depository

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there are also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & My Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No.
from an e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Members
holding securities

in demat mode with
NSDL Depository

—_

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or
e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at hitps:/eservices.nsdl.com.
Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at https:/eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

For OTP based login you can click on https:/eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp . You
will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID, 8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter
the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Members
(holding securities
in demat mode)
login through

their Depository
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members

who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option

available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository

i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual ~ Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
holding  securities  in | helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911
Demat mode with CDSL
Individual ~ Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
holding  securities in | evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022-48867000 and 022-24997000
Demat mode with NSDL

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders

in demat mode.

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding

in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2)
3)

Click on “Shareholders” module.
Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c.  Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any

company, then your existing password is to be used.

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat

*  Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to
use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or

* If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
PAN
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
Dividend Bank
Details or Date of in the company records in order to login.
Birth (DOB)
number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT”

tab.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in
this Notice.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly

reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on
which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you wil see “RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO
implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view
the entire Resolution details.
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(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on,
click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(iii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not
be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click
here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password
then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any
uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for
verification.

(xvii)Additional Facility for Non-Individual Shareholders and
Custodians —-For Remote Voting only.

o Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log
on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves
in the “Corporates” module.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com.

. After receiving the login details a Compliance User
should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped
automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong
mapping.

. It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board

Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

. Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required
mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution /
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address of the Company i.e.
investor@tulsyannec.in , if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL
e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS ATTENDING THE AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS
UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day
of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available
where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful
login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be
eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be eligible
to vote at the AGM.

4. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops
/ IPads for better experience.

5. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices
or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

7. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker
by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at investor@tulsyannec.in.
The Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but
have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior
to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/
folio number, email id, mobile number at investor @tulsyannec.in.
These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by
email.

8. Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker
will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during
the meeting.

9. Only those Members, who are present in the AGM through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the Member through the e-voting
available during the AGM and if the same Member have not
participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the
votes cast by such Member may be considered invalid as the
facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
Members attending the meeting.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE MEMBERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO.
ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES

1. For Physical Shareholders- please provide necessary
details like Folio No., Name of Member, scanned copy
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA
email id.

2. For Demat Shareholders- please update your email id &
mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP).

3. For Individual Demat Members- Please update your email id
& mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository..

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM &
e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
18002109911.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic
means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager,
(CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi
Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 18002109911.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

1. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to the
shares held by them in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on Cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 10,
2025.

2. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may
obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. However, if he / she is
already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then he / she
can use his / her existing user ID and password for casting
the vote.

3. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. M. Damodaran,
Managing Partner at M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP,
Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. 5837 and
CP No. 5081), to act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the electronic
voting process in connection with the ensuing Annual General
Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. The members
desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the
detailed procedure on e-voting given hereunder.

4. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of
voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote
e-voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes cast through
remote e-voting) and will, not later than two working days from

the conclusion of the AGM, submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to
the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing. The
results will be announced by the Chairman or any other person
authorized by him within two working days of conclusion of the
AGM.

5. The results declared along with the consolidated Scrutinizer's
report shall be placed on the Company’s website at
www.tulsyannec.in and on the website of CDSL
www.evotingindia.com. The Company shall simultaneously
forward the results to the BSE Limited, where the shares of the
Company are listed.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823
Place: Chennai
Date: 19-08-2025

Registered Office:

Tulsyan NEC Limited

Apex Plaza, | Floor, New No.77,

Old No.3, Nungambakkam High Road
Chennai-600034, Tamil Nadu

Email: investor @tulsyannec.in

Website: www.tulsyannec.in
Tel.: 044-6199 1060, Fax: 044-6199 1066
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Explanatory Statement

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the following explanatory statement sets out all material facts relating
to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 3 to 10 of the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3: To appoint Secretarial Auditors of the Company:

The Members of the Company may note that in terms of Regulation
24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, each as amended, the Company is
required to appoint Secretarial Auditors for a period of 5 years
commencing from the FY 2025-26, to conduct the Secretarial
Audit of the Company in terms of Section 204 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 24A
and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations
read with applicable SEBI Circulars.

For identification of Secretarial Auditors, the Management
considered following criteria for evaluation of Practicing Company
Secretary firms capable of conducting the secretarial audit of
Tulsyan NEC Limited:

a background of the firm, their experience and past
associations in handling secretarial audit of large
listed companies;

b. competence of the leadership and the audit team in
conducting secretarial audit of the Company in the past
as well as of other large listed companies; and

c. ability of the firm to understand the business of the
Company and identify compliance of major laws and
regulations applicable to the Company.

As part of the assessment, the Management considered the
eligibility of M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, who are the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company from the year 2014 to till date.
M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, Chennali, has over 20 years
of distinguished experience in the field of Secretarial Practice and
providing services to more than 850 clients including 20 listed &
10 unlisted secretarial audit clients and the firm has 2 partners, 6
qualified Company Secretaries and 65 more employees. The Firm
has rich experience in secretarial audit, legal advisory, Secretarial
practice, private equity financing, preparation of business plans,
valuations etc. The Firm has led various legal due diligence
assignments for Merger and Amalgamation transactions, private
equity, investments, & public offerings and the firm is handling
various cases like compounding of offences, Adjudication of
penalties/ Enquiry, inspection and investigation in MCA.

The Management evaluated the background, expertise and past
performance of M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP as the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee considered the evaluation of the Management
and past performance and has recommended to the Board, the
appointment of M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, Practicing
Company Secretaries, Chennai, having Firm Registration Number

L2019TN006000, Peer Review Certificate No: 3847/2023 and
who have confirmed their eligibility as per the requirements of
Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for a first term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of this 78th Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the 83rd Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in the year 2030, for conducting secretarial
audit of the Company for the period beginning from the FY 2025-26
till the FY 2029-30.

The Board, at its meeting held on May 30, 2025, considered the
recommendation of the Audit Committee with respect to the
appointment of M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, as the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company. After due consideration and
review, the Board recommends for approval of the Members of the
Company the appointment of M/s. M Damodaran & Associates
LLP, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a first term
of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of
this 78th  Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 83rd
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year
2030, for conducting secretarial audit of the Company for the period
beginning from the FY 2025-26 till the FY 2029-30.

M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP has provided its consent
to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors and has confirmed that, if
appointed, its appointment, will be in accordance with Regulation
24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31,
2024 and other relevant applicable SEBI Circulars issued in this
regard.

The proposed remuneration to be paid to M/s. M Damodaran &
Associates LLP, for the FY 2025-26 is Rs. 67,000/- (Rupees Sixty
Seven Thousand) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of
out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed between the
Company and the Secretarial Auditors. The remuneration to be
paid to Secretarial Auditors for the remaining term i.e. from the FY
2026-27 till the FY 2029-30 shall be mutually agreed between the
Board, based on recommendation(s) of the Audit Committee, and
the Secretarial Auditors, from time to time.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set
out under Item No. 3 for approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the
Company or their respective relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution as set out under Item No.
3 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No. 4: To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. Murthy &
Co. LLP, Cost Auditors of the Company, for the financial year
2025-2026:
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The Members of the Company may note that the Board of Directors
of the Company, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, at
its meeting held on May 30, 2025, approved the appointment of
M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP, Cost and Management Accountants,
(Firm Registration Number with ICMAI: 000648), Bengaluru, as
the Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of cost
records of the Company for the financial year ending on March 31,
2026 at a remuneration of Rs. 70,000 plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually
agreed between the Company and the Cost Auditors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read
with the Companies (Cost Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified
by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, ratification by the
Members is sought for the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2026, by passing
an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out under
Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members
of the Company.

None of the Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the
Company or their respective relatives are concemed or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution as set out under ltem No.
4 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No. 5: To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Somasundaram
Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633), as an Independent (Non-
Executive) Director of the Company for a second term of 5
(Five) consecutive years:

The Members of the Company may note that Mr. Somasundaram
Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633) is currently an Independent
(Non-Executive) Director of the Company. He is also a Member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

The Members, upon recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, at
their 73rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October
22, 2020, had approved the appointment of Mr. Somasundaram
Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633) as an Independent (Non-
Executive) Director of the Company to hold the office as such for
a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from the date of
his appointment i.e. September 19, 2020 and pursuant to which his
present term shall be expired on September 18, 2025. Accordingly,
being eligible and considering his vast experience and knowledge
in implementation of labour laws, industrial safety enforcement,
accident investigation, and safety training across industries and
construction sites; business management; financing; accounting
and other expertise; the Board of Directors, on recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at their respective

meetings held on August 13, 2025, approved the re-appointment of
Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram as an Independent (Non-
Executive) Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,
to hold the office as such for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years commencing from September 19, 2025 to September 18,
2030 (both days inclusive), subject to approval of the Members at
the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company.

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Mr.
Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram has confirmed that he is
not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may
be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his ability to
discharge his duties. Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram has
also confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of
Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any such authority pursuant
to circulars dated June 20, 2018 issued by BSE Limited pertaining
to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of Directors
by the listed companies.

Further, Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram has confirmed
that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as
Director in terms of Section 152 of the Act, subject to re-appointment
by the Members of the Company. Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing
Mohan Ram has also confirmed that he is in compliance with Rules
6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to his registration with the data
bank of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs (‘llCA’). Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram
has passed the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted
by IICA.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan
Ram fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, rules thereunder and
the SEBI Listing Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent
Director and that he is independent of the Management. Further,
the Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that he is
a person of integrity and has relevant experience and expertise for
re-appointment as an Independent Director of the Company.

The draft letter of re-appointment of Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing
Mohan Ram setting out the terms and conditions of appointment
shall be available for inspection by the Members electronically.
Members seeking to inspect the same can send an email at
investor@tulsyannec.in.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution as set
out under Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for approval of
the Members.

Except Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram and his relatives,
none of the Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the
Company or their respective relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution as set out under ltem No.
5 of the accompanying Notice.
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Pursuant to Requlation 36 of the SEBI Listing Requlations and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard 2, issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India, additional details about Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633) is as follows:

Name of the Director

Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram

Age

64 years

DIN

08883633

Qualification, Experience and Nature of
Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram is a former Director of Industrial Safety &
Health (OSD), Labour Department, Government of Tamil Nadu. He has deep expertise
in implementation of labour laws, industrial safety enforcement, accident investigation,
and safety training across industries and construction sites.

Brief Resume of Director

Same as above

Terms & Conditions of Re-appointment along
with details of remuneration sought to be paid
and the remuneration last drawn by such
person

The Re-appointment of Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram as an Independent
(Non-Executive) Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, is for a second
term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. September 19, 2025 to September 18, 2030
(both days inclusive) at such remuneration, to be paid by way of sitting fee, of not
exceeding Rs.4,00,000 p.a. or such other amount as may be approved by the Board of
Directors from time to time, for attending all the Board / Committee meetings (in which
he is a member) with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the said terms
and conditions and amendments thereto as may be agreed to between the Board of
Directors and Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram.

Date of first appointment on the Board

19/09/2020

Shareholding of non-executive directors in
the listed entity, including shareholding as a
beneficial owner

Not Applicable

Relationship with other Directors, Manager
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Not Applicable

The number of Meetings of the Board attended
during the financial year 2024-25

Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram have attended all the 5 (Five) Board Meetings
held during the FY 2024-25.

Other Directorships, Membership/
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards

Nil

Names of listed entities (including this entity)
in which the person also holds the directorship
and the membership of Committees of the
board along with listed entities from which the
person has resigned in the past three years

Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram holds the directorship in Tulsyan NEC
Limited and holds Membership in the following Committees of the Board of Tulsyan
NEC Limited:

a) Audit Committee

b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

However, he neither holds directorship nor holds any membership of Committees of the

board of any other listed entities and he has not resigned from any listed entity in the
past three years.

Performance evaluation
Director or summary thereof

report of such

In the opinion of the Board and based on its evaluation, Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing
Mohan Ram fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, and Rules made hereunder and
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for his reappointment as an Independent Director
of the Company and he is Independent of the Management of the Company.

The skills and capabilities required for the role
and the manner in which the proposed person
meets such requirements

The Board considers that the continued association of Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing
Mohan Ram would be of immense benefit to the Company and is desirable to continue

to avalil his services as an Independent Director.
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The re-appointment of Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram,
as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director of the Company has
been recommended and approved by the Board based on the
evaluation of his performance and the performance having been
found satisfactory.

Item No. 6: To approve payment of remuneration to Mr. Lalit
Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823), Managing Director (Executive
Chairman) of the Company, in case of absence or inadequacy
of profits in any financial year of the Company:

The Members of the Company may note that at their 75th Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2022, upon
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approval of the Board of Directors, the re-appointment of
Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823) as Managing Director
(Executive Chairman) of the Company, was approved for a
further period of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from
July 11, 2022 to July 10, 2027, liable to retire by rotation, and at
a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 10,00,000 p.m. (including all
benefits and perquisites) and as per such terms and conditions as
may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan.

Further, at the 75th AGM, the members also approved the minimum
remuneration, as per the limits specified under Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013, including all other benefits and perquisites,
payable to Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (DIN:00632823), Managing
Director (Executive Chairman) of the Company, for a period of 3
(Three) years commencing from July 11, 2022 to July 10, 2025,
in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of
the Company.

Accordingly, the approval period of minimum remuneration to be

payable to Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823), Managing
Director (Executive Chairman) of the Company, is expired on July
10, 2025.

Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015, being a Promoter of the Company, the
Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval of the Audit Committee, at
their respective meetings held on May 30, 2025 considered and
approved the payment of remuneration, including all other benefits
and perquisites, to Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823),
Managing Director (Executive Chairman) of the Company, for a
further period of 2 (Two) years commencing from July 11, 2025
to July 10, 2027 (both days inclusive) in line with his existing re-
appointment terms, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in
any financial year of the Company and as per the limits specified
under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, subject to approval
of the Members at the ensuing 78th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends
the Special Resolution as set out under Item No. 6 of the
accompanying Notice for approval of the Members of the Company.

Except Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan and their
respective relatives, none of the Director(s) or Key Managerial
Personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution
as set out under Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice.

Statement as per Clause (iv) of third proviso of section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013:

l. General Information:

Nature of industry

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly
woven fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based.

Date or expected date of commencement of
commercial production

11-04-1947 (Since it's date of Incorporation)

In case of new companies, expected date of
commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus

Not Applicable

Financial
indicators

performance based on given

Standalone: The Company has achieved total revenue of Rs. 80,083.08 Lakhs during
the FY 2024-25 as compared to Rs. 97,352.92 Lakhs during the FY 2023-2024. The
Company has posted profit/ (loss) before tax of Rs. (7,269.61) Lakhs for the FY 2024-25
as compared to profit/(loss) before tax of Rs. (4,828.12) Lakhs for the FY 2023-2024.

Not Applicable

Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any

II. Information about the Appointee: Not Applicable, as the Special
Resolution set out under Item No. 6 of the accompanying notice
is with respect to payment of minimum remuneration, including
all other benefits and perquisites, to Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
(DIN: 00632823), Managing Director (Executive Chairman) of the

Company, for a further period of 2 (Two) years commencing from
July 11, 2025 to July 10, 2027 (both days inclusive) in line with his
existing re-appointment terms, in case of absence or inadequacy of
profits in any financial year of the Company, subject to approval of
the Members at the 78th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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lIl. Other Information:

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

Please refer Boards’ Report which is a part of the Annual Report 2024-25.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The Company has undertaken cost cutting initiative and expanding business in new
areas to increase revenue and improve overall profitability.

Expected increase in productivity and profits
in measurable terms

The Company is committed to build the business operations within budget and
considering that the business operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that the
financial position of the Company will further improve in near future.

IV. Disclosures: The information relating to elements of remuneration packages of all Directors have been disclosed in the Corporate

Governance Section of the Annual report.

Additional information as required under Clause 1.2.5 of SS-2 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, in respect of
fixation/variation in terms of remuneration of the Director:

Name of the Director

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan

Age

65 Years

DIN

00632823

Qualification, Experience and Nature of
Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan is a Commerce Graduate and serves as the Executive Chairman
& Managing Director of Tulsyan NEC Limited with a family legacy in the steel business
spanning over five decades, he began his career in steel trading and later transitioned
into manufacturing and power production. He is actively involved in industry bodies
such as the Indian Federation of Woven Technical Textiles and AIFIBC, and he is a
former director of the Plastic Export Promotion Council. He also oversees the financial
operations of the Company and other group entities engaged in trading.

Brief Resume of the Director

Same as above

Change in terms & conditions of remuneration
sought to be paid and the remuneration last
drawn by such person

The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Audit Committee, at their respective meetings held on
May 30, 2025 considered and approved the payment of remuneration, including all other
benefits and perquisites, to Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823), Managing Director
(Executive Chairman) of the Company, for a further period of 2 (Two) years commencing
from July 11, 2025 to July 10, 2027 (both days inclusive) in line with his re-appointment
terms, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company,
subject to approval of the Members at the 78th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

All other terms and conditions of his existing re-appointment and remuneration paid
or payable shall remain same as approved in the 75th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Date of first appointment on the Board

12/07/1996

Shareholding in the Company

41,19,091 equity shares

Relationship with other Directors, Manager
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan is the elder brother of Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (Managing Director
of the Company).

The number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the financial year 2024-25

Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan have attended all the 5 (Five) Board Meetings held during the
FY 2024-25.

Other Directorships, Membership/
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards

Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan is also a Director in Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited.

Names of listed entities (including this entity)
in which the person also holds the directorship
and the membership of Committees of the
board along with listed entities from which the
person has resigned in the past three years

Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan holds the directorship in Tulsyan NEC Limited. However, he
doesn't hold any membership of Committees of the Board of Tulsyan NEC Limited.

Further, he neither holds directorship nor holds any membership of Committees of the
Board in any other listed entities and he has not resigned from any listed entity in the
past three years.
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Item No. 7: To approve payment of remuneration to Mr. Sanjay
Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802), Managing Director of the Company,
in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial
year of the Company:

The Members of the Company may note that at their 75th Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2022, upon
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approval of the Board of Directors, the re-appointment of Mr.
Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802) as Managing Director of the
Company, was approved for a further period of 5 (Five) consecutive
years commencing from September 30, 2022 to September 29,
2027, liable to retire by rotation, and at a remuneration not exceeding
Rs. 10,00,000 p.m. (including all benefits and perquisites) and as
per such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the
Board and Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan.

Further, at the 75th AGM, the Members of the company also
approved the minimum remuneration, as per the limits specified
under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, including all other
benefits and perquisites, payable to Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN:
00632802), Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 3
(Three) years commencing from September 30, 2022 to September
29, 2025, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any
financial year of the Company.

Accordingly, the approval period of minimum remuneration to be
payable to Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802), Managing Director
of the Company, is expiring on September 29, 2025.

Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015, being a Promoter of the Company, the
Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval of the Audit Committee, at
their respective meetings held on August 13, 2025 considered and
approved the payment of remuneration, including all other benefits
and perquisites, to Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802), Managing
Director of the Company, for a further period of 2 (Two) years
commencing from September 30, 2025 to September 29, 2027
(both days inclusive) in line with his existing re-appointment terms,
in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of
the Company and as per the limits specified under Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013, subject to approval of the Members at
the ensuing 78th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends
the Special Resolution as set out under Item No. 7 of the
accompanying Notice for approval of the Members of the Company.

Except Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan and Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and their
respective relatives, none of the Director(s) or Key Managerial
Personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution
as set out under Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice.

Statement as per Clause (iv) of third proviso of section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013:

l. General Information:

Nature of industry

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly

woven fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based.

Date or expected date of commencement of
commercial production

11-04-1947 (Since it's date of Incorporation)

In case of new companies, expected date of

Not Applicable

commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus

Financial
indicators

performance based on given

Standalone: The Company has achieved total revenue of Rs. 80,083.08 Lakhs during
the FY 2024-25 as compared to Rs. 97,352.92 Lakhs during the FY 2023-2024. The
Company has posted profit/ (loss) before tax of Rs. (7,269.61) Lakhs for the FY 2024-25
as compared to profit/(loss) before tax of Rs. (4,828.12) Lakhs for the FY 2023-2024.

Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any | Not Applicable

Il. Information about the Appointee: Not Applicable, as the Special Resolution set out under Item No. 7 of the accompanying notice is
with respect to payment of minimum remuneration to Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802), Managing Director of the Company, for a further
period of 2 (Two) years commencing from September 30, 2025 to September 29, 2027 (both days inclusive) in line with his existing re-
appointment terms, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company, subject to approval of the Members at

the 78th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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lll. Other Information:

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

Please refer Boards’ Report which is a part of the Annual Report 2024-25.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The Company has undertaken cost cutting initiative and expanding business in new
areas to increase revenue and improve overall profitability.

Expected increase in productivity and profits
in measurable terms

The Company is committed to build the business operations within budget and
considering that the business operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that the
financial position of the Company will further improve in near future.

IV. Disclosures: The information relating to elements of remuneration packages of all Directors have been disclosed in the Corporate

Governance Section of the Annual report.

Additional information as required under Clause 1.2.5 of $S-2 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, in respect of

fixation/variation in terms of remuneration of the Director:

Name of the Director Sanjay Tulsyan
Age 61 Years
DIN 00632802

Qualification, Experience and Nature of
Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan, a Commerce Graduate, is the Managing Director of Tulsyan NEC
Limited continuing the family legacy in the steel trade. He later shifted his focus towards
steel manufacturing and power generation. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
the operations of the Steel and Power Divisions.

Brief Resume of the Director

Same as above

Change in terms & conditions of remuneration
sought to be paid and the remuneration last
drawn by such person

The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Audit Committee, at their respective meetings held on
August 13, 2025 considered and approved the payment of remuneration, including
all other benefits and perquisites, to Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802), Managing
Director of the Company, for a further period of 2 (Two) years commencing from
September 30, 2025 to September 29, 2027 (both days inclusive) in line with his existing
re-appointment terms, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year
of the Company subject to approval of the Members at the 78th Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

All other terms and conditions of his existing re-appointment and remuneration paid
or payable shall remain same as approved in the 75th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Date of first appointment on the Board

01/10/1996

Shareholding in the Company

44,75,481 equity shares

Relationship with other Directors, Manager
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan is the brother of Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan, Managing Director
(Executive Chairman) of the Company.

The number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the financial year 2024-25

Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan have attended all the 5 (Five) Board Meetings held during the FY
2024-25.

Other Directorships, Membership/
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards

Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan is also a Director in the following companies:
(@) Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited
(b) Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

Annual Report 2024-25

20




TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

e

Names of listed entities (including this entity)
in which the person also holds the directorship
and the membership of Committees of the
board along with listed entities from which the

Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan holds the directorship in Tulsyan NEC Limited. However, he doesn't
hold any membership of Committees of the Board of Tulsyan NEC Limited.

Further, he neither holds directorship nor holds any membership of Committees of the
Board in any other listed entities and he has not resigned from any listed entity in the

person has resigned in the past three years

past three years.

Item No. 8: To approve payment of remuneration to Mr.
Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole Time Director of the
Company, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any
financial year of the Company:

The Members of the Company may note that at their 75th Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2022,
upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the re-
appointment of Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole
Time Director of the Company, was approved for a further period
of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from September 21,
2022 to September 20, 2027, liable to retire by rotation, and at
a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 10,00,000 p.m. (including all
benefits and perquisites) and as per such terms and conditions as
may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla.

Further, at the 75th AGM, the members also approved the minimum
remuneration, as per the limits specified under Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013, including all other benefits and perquisites,
payable to Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole
Time Director of the Company, for a period of 3 (Three) years
commencing from September 21, 2022 to September 20, 2025, in
case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of
the Company.

Accordingly, the approval period of minimum remuneration to be
payable to Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole Time

Director of the Company, is expiring on September 20, 2025.

Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198 and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors, upon recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at their respective
meetings held on August 13, 2025 considered and approved
the payment of remuneration, including all other benefits and
perquisites, to Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole Time
Director of the Company, for a further period of 2 (Two) years
commencing from September 21, 2025 to September 20, 2027
(both days inclusive) in line with his existing re-appointment terms,
in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of
the Company and as per the limits specified under Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013, subject to approval of the Members at
the ensuing 78th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends
the Special Resolution as set out under Item No. 8 of the
accompanying Notice for approval of the Members of the Company.

Except Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla and his relatives, none of the
Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the Company or
their respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the Resolution as set out under Item No. 8 of the
accompanying Notice.

Statement as per Clause (iv) of third proviso of section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013:

I. General Information:

Nature of industry

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly
woven fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based.

Date or expected date of commencement of
commercial production

11-04-1947 (Since it's date of Incorporation)

In case of new companies, expected date of
commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus

Not Applicable

Financial performance based on given
indicators

Standalone: The Company has achieved total revenue of Rs. 80,083.08 Lakhs during
the FY 2024-25 as compared to Rs. 97,352.92 Lakhs during the FY 2023-2024. The
Company has posted profit/ (loss) before tax of Rs. (7,269.61) Lakhs for the FY 2024-25
as compared to profit/(loss) before tax of Rs. (4,828.12) Lakhs for the FY 2023-2024.

Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any

Not Applicable
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Il. Information about the Appointee: Not Applicable, the Special Resolution as set out under Item No. 8 of the accompanying notice is with

respect to payment of remuneration to Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole Time Director of the Company, for a further period of
2 (Two) years commencing from September 21, 2025 to September 20, 2027 (both days inclusive) in line with his existing re-appointment
terms, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company, subject to approval of the Members at the 78th

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

lll. Other Information:

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

Please refer Boards’ Report which is a part of the Annual Report 2024-25.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The Company has undertaken cost cutting initiative and expanding business in new
areas to increase revenue and improve overall profitability.

Expected increase in productivity and profits
in measurable terms

The Company is committed to build the business operations within budget and
considering that the business operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that the
financial position of the Company will further improve in near future.

IV. Disclosures: The information relating to elements of remuneration packages of all Directors have been disclosed in the Corporate

Governance Section of the Annual report.

Additional information as required under clause 1.2.5 of SS - 2 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, in respect of

director retiring by rotation & seeking re-appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation and fixation/variation of the terms of

remuneration (Refer ltem No. 2 and 8 of the accompanying notice of AGM):

Name of the Director

Sanjay Agarwalla

Age

62 Years

DIN

00632864

Qualification, Experience and Nature of
Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla is a Commerce Graduate and serves as a Whole-time Director
at Tulsyan NEC Limited. He leads the financial department for the entire group and
is responsible for pricing, purchase approvals, production planning, and government
liaison. He also manages the customer care division and ensures customer satisfaction,
with support from a team of professionals.

Brief Resume of the Director

Same as above

Terms & Conditions of re-appointment along
with details of remuneration sought to be paid
and the remuneration last drawn by such
Director

Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla shall be re-appointed as a Director liable to retire by rotation. He
is entitled to the same remuneration as he is drawing in the capacity of Whole Time
Director of the Company which is approved by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, from time to time, within the
overall limits as per the Companies Act, 2013 and / or as approved by the Members
from time to time.

The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, at their respective meetings held on August 13, 2025 considered and
approved the payment of remuneration, including all other benefits and perquisites, to
Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864), Whole Time Director of the Company, for a
further period of 2 (Two) years commencing from September 21, 2025 to September
20, 2027 (both days inclusive) which is in line with his existing re-appointment terms in
the capacity of Whole Time Director, in case of absence or inadequacy of profits in any
financial year of the Company, subject to approval of the Members at the 78th Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

All other terms and conditions of his existing re-appointment and remuneration paid
or payable shall remain same as approved in the 75th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Date of first appointment on the Board

22/09/2011

Shareholding in the Company

15,098 equity shares
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Relationship with other Directors, Manager
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla is not related to any Director / KMP of the Company.

The number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the financial year 2024-25

Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla have attended all the 5 (Five) Board Meetings held during the FY
2024-25.

Other Directorships, Membership/
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards

Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla is also a Director in Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited.

Names of listed entities (including this entity)
in which the person also holds the directorship
and the membership of Committees of the
board along with listed entities from which the
person has resigned in the past three years

Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla holds the directorship in Tulsyan NEC Limited and holds
Chairmanship / Membership in the following Committees of the Board of Tulsyan NEC
Limited:

a) Audit Committee

b) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

He neither holds directorship nor holds any membership of Committees of the Board in
any other listed entities and he has not resigned from any listed entity in the past three

years.

Item No. 9: To approve the Related Party Transactions with
M/s. Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited:

The Members of the Company may note that at their 76th Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 15, 2023,
upon recommendation and approval of the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors, the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
transaction(s) with Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited, a related party
to the Company within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, was approved
up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 2200 Crores for a period
of 2 (Two) years starting from the conclusion of 76th AGM till the
conclusion of the 78th AGM of the Company.

Tulsyan NEC Limited (‘the Company” or “TNECL”) is primarily
engaged in the business of Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly
woven fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based.
During the course of rendering such businesses, the Company
Integrated also leverages niche skills, capabilities and resources of
entities within the “Tulsyan Group”.

Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited is a Group Company of TNECL
and its primary business is trading of Iron and Steel. Accordingly,
transaction(s) entered / to be entered into with Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited comes within the meaning of Related Party
transaction(s) in terms of provisions of the Act, applicable Rules
framed thereunder read with the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Pursuant to Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015,
a transaction with a related party shall be considered material,
if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during a financial year,
exceeds Rupees One Thousand Crores or Ten per cent of the
annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the
last audited financial statements of the listed entity, whichever
is lower.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, all Material Related Party Transactions and
subsequent material modifications shall require prior approval of
the Members through a resolution and no related party shall vote to
approve such resolutions whether the entity is a related party to the
particular transaction or not.

Further, as per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the applicable Rules framed thereunder, any Related
Party Transaction will require prior approval of the Members through
a resolution, if the aggregate value of transaction or transactions to
be entered into either individually or taken together with the previous
transactions during a financial year with the related party amounts
to 10% or more of the turnover of the Company. The related party
transactions made or to be made by the in the Company, covering
under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, are in the ordinary
course of business and are at arms’ length basis.

Considering the fact that the list / transaction with the related party
will change dynamically with no action on the part of the Company
and to facilitate seamless transactions between the Company and
Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited, the Company seeks the approval
of the Members to approve the limit of entering into contracts/
arrangements/transactions within the thresholds and conditions
mentioned in the resolution. All the contracts/arrangements/
transactions with Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited are reviewed,
ratified and approved by the Audit Committee.

The said transaction(s)/contract(s)/arrangement(s) have been
recommended and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors through Circular Resolutions passed, respectively, on
August 19, 2025, subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing
78th AGM of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution as set
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out under Item No. 9 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the
Members at the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company.

It is pertinent to note that no related party shall vote to approve
this Resolution whether the entity is a related party to a particular
transaction or not.

Except Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan and Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and their
respective relatives, none of the Director(s) or Key Managerial
Personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution
as set out under Item No. 9 of the accompanying Notice.

Pursuant to Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date and SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11,
2024, particulars of the transactions with Tulsyan Smelters Private
Limited are as follows:

1.

Name of the Related Party: Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited

contract or arrangement: Transactions for purchase / sale of
goods or materials and availing / rendering of services, any
income or expenses, applicable taxes, if any, incurred in these
connections, and on such terms and conditions as the Board
of Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of
Rs. 1,410 crores for a period of 3 (Three) years commencing
from the conclusion of the 78th AGM till the conclusion of the
81st AGM of the Company.

Any other information relevant or important for the members to
take a decision on the proposed resolution: Nil.

Brief summary of the information provided by the management
of the listed entity to the audit committee for approval of the
RPT:

a. Type, material terms and particulars of the transaction:
Transactions for purchase / sale of goods or materials and
availing / rendering of services, any income or expenses,
applicable taxes, if any, incurred in these connections, and

2. Name of the Director or KMP who is related: Mr. Sanjay on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may
Tulsyan (Director) and Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (Relative of deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 1,410
Directors / Members) and their respective relatives Crores for a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from

) o o the conclusion of the 78th AGM till the conclusion of

3. Nature of Rela}tlonshlp: Private Company in which directors or the 815t AGM of the Company. Brief details of the Related
members are interested Party Transactions with Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited

4. Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the is as follows:

Name of the Nature of Nature of Value of Period for which Members’ approval is sought
Related Party Relationship Contract/ Transaction for the Transaction
Arrangement/
Transaction

Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited

Private Company
in which directors
are interested

Purchase of goods
or materials

Rs. 400 Crores

For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
81t AGM of the Company

Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited

Private Company
in which directors
are interested

Sale of goods or
materials

Rs. 1000 Crores

For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
81t AGM of the Company

Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited

Private Company
in which directors
are interested

Avaliling of services

Rs. 5 crores

For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
81 AGM of the Company

Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited

Private Company
in which directors

Rendering of
services

Rs. 5 crores

For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the

are interested

81t AGM of the Company

b. Name of the related party and its relationship with the listed
entity or its subsidiary, including nature of its concemn
or interest (financial or otherwise): Tulsyan Smelters
Private Limited is a group company of Tulsyan NEC
Limited in which Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan, Director and Mr. Lalit
Kumar Tulsyan, Relative of Directors / Members, are
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise.

c. Value of the transaction: Up to a maximum aggregate value

of Rs. 1,410 crores for a period of 3 (Three) years
commencing from the conclusion of the 78th AGM till the
conclusion of the 81st AGM of the Company.

d. The percentage of the listed entity’s annual consolidated
turnover, for the immediately preceding financial year,
that is represented by the value of the proposed
transaction: Not Applicable

e. Whether the transaction relates to any loans, inter
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corporate deposits, advances or investments made or
given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: No

f. Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the
listed entity: Tulsyan Smelters Private Limited is a Group
Company of TNECL and its primary business is trading of
Iron and Steel. TNECL is primarily engaged in
the business of Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly woven
fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based.
During the course of rendering such services, the Company
also leverages niche skills, capabilities and resources of
entities within the group These transactions aim
at providing the entities within the group to sustain and
grow their business.

g. Acopy of the valuation or other external party report, if any
such report has been relied upon: Not Applicable

h. Percentage of the counter party’s annual consolidated
turnover that is represented by the value of the proposed
RPT on a voluntary basis: Not Applicable

i. Any other information that may be relevant: Nil

7. A statement that the valuation or other external report, if any,
relied upon by the listed entity in relation to the proposed
transaction will be made available through the registered email
address of the members: Nil

Item No. 10: To approve the Related Party Transactions with
M/s. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited:

The Members of the Company may note that at their 76th Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 15, 2023,
upon recommendation and approval of the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors, the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s)
with Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited, a related party
to the Company within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act
and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations up to a
maximum aggregate value of Rs. 300 Crores for a period of 2 (Two)
years starting from the conclusion of 76th AGM till the conclusion of
the 78th AGM of the Company.

Tulsyan NEC Limited (‘the Company” or “TNECL”) is primarily
engaged in the business of Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly
woven fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based.
During the course of rendering such businesses, the Company
Integrated also leverages niche skills, capabilities and resources of
entities within the “Tulsyan Group”.

Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited is a Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of TNECL and its primary business is manufacturing
of Sponge Iron. Accordingly, transaction(s) entered / to be entered
into with Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited comes within
the meaning of Related Party transaction(s) in terms of provisions
of the Act, applicable Rules framed thereunder read with the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Pursuant to Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a
transaction with a related party shall be considered material,
if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during a financial year,
exceeds Rupees One Thousand Crores or Ten per cent of the
annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the
last audited financial statements of the listed entity, whichever
is lower.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, all Material Related Party Transactions and
subsequent material modifications shall require prior approval of
the Members of the Company through a resolution and no related
party shall vote to approve such resolutions whether the entity is a
related party to the particular transaction or not.

Further, as per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the applicable Rules framed thereunder, any Related
Party Transaction will require prior approval of the Members through
a resolution, if the aggregate value of transaction or transactions to
be entered into either individually or taken together with the previous
transactions during a financial year with the related party amounts
to 10% or more of the turnover of the Company. The related party
transactions made or to be made by the Company, covering under
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, are in the ordinary course
of business and are at arms’ length basis.

Considering the fact that the list / transaction with the related party
will change dynamically with no action on the part of the Company
and to facilitate seamless transactions between the Company and
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited, the Company seeks
the approval of the Members to approve the limit of entering
into contracts/arrangements/transactions within the thresholds
and conditions mentioned in the resolution. All the contracts/
arrangements/transactions with Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private
Limited are reviewed, ratified and approved by the Audit Committee.

The said transaction(s)/contract(s)/arrangement(s) have been
recommended and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors through Circular Resolutions passed, respectively, on
August 19, 2025, subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing
78th AGM of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution as set
out under Item No. 10 of the accompanying Notice for approval of
the Members at the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company.

It is pertinent to note that no related party shall vote to approve
this Resolution whether the entity is a related party to the particular
transaction or not.

Except Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan, Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla and Mr. Lalit
Kumar Tulsyan and their respective relatives, none of the Director(s)
or Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the Company or their respective
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the Resolution as set out under Item No. 10 of the accompanying
Notice.
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1.

Pursuant to Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date and SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November

1, 2024, particulars of the transactions with Chitrakoot Steel and

Power Private Limited are as follows:

Name of the Related Party: Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private
Limited.

Name of the Director or KMP who is related: Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan
(Director), Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (Director), Mr. Lalit Kumar
Tulsyan (Director) and their respective relatives.

Nature of Relationship: Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company.

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the
contract or arrangement: Transactions for purchase / sale of
goods or materials and availing / rendering of services, any
income or expenses, applicable taxes, if any, incurred in these
connections, and on such terms and conditions as the Board of
Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of
Rs. 235 crores for a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from

the conclusion of the 78th AGM till the conclusion of the 81st
AGM of the Company.

. Any other information relevant or important for the members to

take a decision on the proposed resolution: Nil.

. Brief summary of the information provided by the management

of the listed entity to the audit committee for approval of the
RPT:

a. Type, material terms and particulars of the transaction:
Transactions for purchase / sale of goods or materials and
availing / rendering of services, any income or expenses,
applicable taxes, if any, incurred in these connections,
and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors
may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of
Rs. 235 crores for a period of 3 (Three) years commencing
from the conclusion of the 78th AGM till the conclusion of
the 81st AGM of the Company. Brief details of the Related
Party Transactions with Chitrakoot Steel and Power
Private Limited is as follows:

Name of the Nature of Nature of Value of Period for which Members’ approval is sought for
Related Party Relationship Contract/ Transaction the Transaction
Arrangement/
Transaction
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Purchase of goods | Rs. 150 Crores | For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary or materials conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 815t AGM of the Company
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Sale of goods or Rs. 75 Crores | For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary materials conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 81t AGM of the Company
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Availing of services | Rs. 5 crores For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 81t AGM of the Company
Chitrakoot Steel | Wholly Owned Rendering of Rs. 5 crores For a period of 3 (Three) years commencing from the
and Power Subsidiary services conclusion of the 78" AGM till the conclusion of the
Private Limited 81t AGM of the Company

b. Name of the related party and its relationship with the listed
entity or its subsidiary, including nature of its concem or
interest (financial or otherwise): Chitrakoot Steel and
Power Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tulsyan NEC Limited in which Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan, Mr.
Sanjay Agarwalla and Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan are
Directors and are interested or concerned, financially or
otherwise.

c. Value of the transaction: Up to a maximum aggregate
value of Rs. 235 crores for a period of 3 (Three) years
commencing from the conclusion of the 78th AGM till the
conclusion of the 81st AGM of the Company.

d. The percentage of the listed entity’'s annual consolidated

tunover, for the immediately preceding financial year,
that is represented by the value of the proposed
transaction: Not applicable.

e. Whether the transaction relates to any loans, inter
corporate deposits, advances or investments made or
given by the listed entity or its subsidiary: No

f. Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest
of the listed entity: Chitrakoot Steel and Power
Private Limited is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of
TNECL and its primary business is manufacturing of
Sponge Iron. TNECL is primarily engaged in the business of
Manufacturing iron and steel, Poly woven fabric and sacks
and Generation of power in thermal based. During the
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course of rendering such services, the Company also everages niche skills, capabilities and resources of entities within the group.
These transactions aim at providing the entities within the group to sustain and grow their business.

g. A copy of the valuation or other external party report, if any such report has been relied upon: Not Applicable

h. Percentage of the counter party’s annual consolidated turnover that is represented by the value of the proposed RPT on a voluntary
basis: Not Applicable

i. Any other information that may be relevant: Nil

7. A statement that the valuation or other external report, if any, relied upon by the listed entity in relation to the proposed transaction will
be made available through the registered email address of the members: Nil

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman

DIN: 00632823
Place: Chennai

Date: 19-08-2025

Registered Office:

Tulsyan NEC Limited

Apex Plaza, | Floor, New No.77,

Old No.3, Nungambakkam High Road
Chennai-600034, Tamil Nadu

Email: investor@tulsyannec.in

Website: www.tulsyannec.in
Tel.: 044-6199 1060, Fax: 044-6199 1066
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

We are pleased to present the Seventy Eighth (78th) Board’s Report along with the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements
and the Auditor’s Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated
Particulars
FY 2025 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2024

Total Revenue 80,083.08 97,352.92 87,178.37 99,459.04
Total Expenses excluding Interest & Depreciation 78,703.15 95,797.85 85,450.17 97,509.31
Profit Before Interest & Depreciation 1,379.93 1,655.07 1,728.20 1,949.73
Interest 6,414.63 3,895.34 6,689.97 4,173.34
Depreciation 2,234.91 2,487.85 2,294.12 2,542.90
Profit before tax and exceptional items (7,269.61) (4,828.12) (7,255.89) (4,766.51)
Exceptional ltems 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Current Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tax Expenses Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 (44.04)

Income Tax Earlier Years 0.00 188.93 0.00 188.93
Profit for the year (7,269.61) (5,017.05) (7,255.89) (4,911.40)
Other comprehensive income, net 8.15 (223.73) 8.15 (228.73)
Total comprehensive income (7,261.45) (5,240.78) (7,247.73) (5,135.13)
Earnings per Basic (44.16) (30.31) (44.08) (29.67)
share (EPS) Diluted (44.16) (3031) (44.08) (29.67)

STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The financial highlights
and the results of the operations, including major developments have been further discussed in detail in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, India retained its position as the world’s second-largest producer of crude steel. The
Country’s crude steel production capacity and output experienced growth in early 2024. However, the industry faced multiple headwinds,
including unbalanced import dynamics, volatility in raw material prices, and sustained pressure on profit margins. Despite a projected increase
in domestic demand, the steel sector contended with declining global prices and heightened competition, which impacted realizations.

In the power segment, the Captive Power Plant (CPP) model encountered challenges due to a significant hike in wheeling charges imposed
by the State Government. This development rendered the CPP model less viable. Consequently, a strategic shift was made during FY
2024-25 from the Captive Power Plant model to an Independent Power Plant (IPP) model, enabling the Company to improve on power sales
through energy exchanges and third parties. While such power sales are inherently seasonal, the Power Division registered reasonable
growth during the year under review, supporting the Company’s overall performance.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company initiated multiple capital-intensive projects aimed at improving operational efficiency and
reducing long-term costs. These initiatives involved retrofitting and installation of new furnace, which, while essential for future gains,
temporarily disrupted regular production processes. Also, there was frequent shift in market equilibrium of intermediate goods during the
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M year. As a result, the Company’s TMT sales volume declined to 1,22,300 tons, compared to 1,40,156 tons in the previous year, registering

a 12.74% decrease. However, these strategic upgrades are expected to enhance production efficiency and contribute to improved margins
in the coming years.

The loss after tax for the year stood at Rs.7,270 lakhs, as against a loss of Rs.5,017 lakhs in the previous year, marking an increase of
Rs.2,253 lakhs mainly on account of finance costs. Additionally, the Company’s operations remained under pressure due to a substantial
decline in steel prices, further affecting profitability for the year under review.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Steel
Production of Specialty Steel: Covered under Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme:

The Company has made an application for PLI Scheme during the year 2024-25 and it is looking forward to manufacture specialty steel
under PLI scheme. The PLI scheme is a government initiative in India designed to boost domestic manufacturing, attract investments,
and enhance the competitiveness of Indian Companies in global markets. It provides financial incentives to Companies based on their
incremental sales from products manufactured in India.

Leveraging on the Existing Facilities:
Capex requirement of Specialty Steel is very high in respect of green field projects and requires huge initial capital investment.

As we already have investment in the steel processing, capital investment required will be only to meet costs of re-purpose of the existing
processes and accordingly, the capital investment requirement will be lower by about 60% to 70% of a new project setup. This places
the Company’s operations vis-a-vis other manufacturers in an advantageous position. In addition to the regular profitability the Company
expects to benefit from the incentive.

Key benefits for Companies participating in the PLI Scheme for specialty steel:

* Financial Incentives:
The Scheme provides incentives ranging from 4% to 12% on incremental sales of eligible specialty steel products manufactured in
India, over a base year (FY 2019-20), for a period of five years.

* Investment and Capacity Addition:
The Scheme aims to attract significant investments in the specialty steel sector, leading to increased production capacity and the
creation of new manufacturing facilities.

* Reduced Import Dependence:
By incentivizing domestic production, the Scheme helps to reduce India’s reliance on imported specialty steel, promoting self-reliance.

* Technological Advancement:
The Scheme encourages Companies to adopt advanced technologies and manufacturing processes, leading to improved product
quality and efficiency.

* Job Creation:
The expansion of the specialty steel industry through the PLI Scheme is expected to create numerous direct and indirect jobs.

o Global Competitiveness:
By enhancing domestic manufacturing capabilities and product quality, the Scheme aims to make Indian specialty steel globally
competitive.

e “Made in India” Branding:
The Scheme supports the “Made in India” branding of steel products, enhancing consumer trust and enabling manufacturers to
position their products under the “Brand India” umbrella in the international market.

* Potential for Innovation:
The focus on specialty steel encourages innovation in product development and manufacturing processes, leading to the creation
of new and advanced steel products.
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Tulsyan NEC Limited Gets Green Steel Certificate with 5 Star Rating:

Streamlined Processes:
The Scheme includes provisions for addressing challenges like carry-forward of excess production and reducing minimum
investment requirements, making it easier for Companies to participate and claim incentives.

During the year under review, the Company obtained 5 Star Rating under the Green Steel Certification Program of the National Institute of
Secondary Steel Technology (NISST).

The Green Steel Certificate is part of India’s ambitious initiative to decarbonize its steel sector and achieve net-zero emissions by 2070.
India has become the first country in the world to introduce a Green Steel Taxonomy, which establishes clear guidelines for determining the
environmental sustainability of steel production. The concept of “Green Steel” is defined by the amount of CO2 emissions released during
the steel production process, with a threshold of 2.2 tonnes of CO2 equivalent per tonne of finished steel. Steel plants with emissions lower
than this threshold are eligible for green certification, and the level of certification is determined based on how much their emissions fall
below this standard.

To facilitate this process, the Ministry of Steel & Heavy Industries has outlined a rating system for Green Steel. The rating is classified
into three categories: five-star, four-star, and three-star, depending on the emission intensity. Five-star rated steel has emissions below
1.6 t-CO2eltfs, while four-star and three-star ratings are given for steel with emission intensities between 1.6-2.0 and 2.0-2.2 t-CO2e/
tfs, respectively. Steel with emission levels exceeding 2.2 t-CO2eftfs is excluded from the green certification. This rating system allows
consumers and businesses to easily identify steel products that contribute to a cleaner and more sustainable environment.

The Green Steel Certificate is issued on an annual basis by the National Institute of Secondary Steel Technology (NISST), which serves
as the nodal agency for Measurement, Reporting, and Verification (MRV). This certification ensures transparency and accountability in
the steel sector by verifying the emissions associated with steel production. The ratings will be reviewed every three years to adjust the
thresholds as the industry progresses toward lower emissions. In the future, steel plants may opt for more frequent MRV assessments to
receive updated certificates more than once a year. This initiative not only sets a global benchmark but also positions India as a leader in
green industrial transformation.

Benefits of the Green Steel Certificate:

* Encourages Sustainable Steel Production: The Green Steel Certificate promotes the adoption of low-carbon technologies and
practices within the steel industry. By setting clear emission thresholds, it motivates steel plants to reduce their carbon footprint,
leading to more sustainable steel production processes.

* Enhances Transparency and Accountability: The certification provides a transparent mechanism for tracking and reporting
emissions. It ensures that steel producers are held accountable for their environmental impact, making it easier for consumers and
businesses to make informed decisions based on sustainability criteria.

* Promotes Global Leadership in Green Industry: As the first country to establish a Green Steel Taxonomy, India sets a global
benchmark in green industrial practices. This certification positions India as a leader in sustainable steel production, encouraging
other nations to adopt similar measures.

* Attracts Green Investment: Steel plants with higher green ratings can attract investments from environmentally conscious
investors and stakeholders. The certification aligns with global sustainability goals, making green-rated steel more appealing to
markets that prioritize low-carbon products.

* Supports India’s Net-Zero Target by 2070: The Green Steel Certification directly contributes to India’s goal of achieving net-zero
emission intensity by 2070. By incentivizing steel producers to lower their emissions, the certification helps drive the Country’s
broader climate action agenda.

* Increases Consumer Awareness and Choice: With clear star ratings based on emission intensity, consumers can easily choose
more environmentally friendly steel products. This empowers buyers to support brands and products that align with their values
regarding climate change and sustainability.

* Fosters Innovation in Steel Production: The need to meet stringent emission standards encourages innovation within the steel
industry. Producers are likely to invest in new technologies and processes that reduce emissions, leading to advancements in
energy efficiency and cleaner production methods.
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* Facilitates Compliance with International Environmental Standards: The Green Steel Certification aligns with global
sustainability and climate change goals, helping Indian steel producers meet international environmental standards. This makes
Indian steel more competitive in global markets where sustainability is increasingly prioritized.

* Creates a Market for Green Steel: By formalizing the definition and certification of green steel, India is helping to create a market
for environmentally sustainable steel products. This can lead to increased demand for green steel domestically and internationally,
stimulating economic growth in the sector.

We are proud to declare that the Company’s CO2 emission is found to be 1.3 t-CO2e/tfs and hence, we are rated under Five-star.
Efforts to obtain LEED International Certification:

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Certificate offers a framework for business entities to work for healthy, efficient,
carbon-neutral, and cost-effective green buildings. Being recognized globally as a symbol of sustainability development, LEED is supported
by an entire community of environmentally-friendly industries and individuals with the motive to transform today’s market and bring green
buildings into the mainstream.

In more simple terms, LEED certification is a green building scoring mechanism to evaluate the environmental performance of all
buildings, including commercial and residential ones. It assesses the architectural aspects of buildings from several perspectives, including
sustainability, the efficiency of energy use, water conservation, materials, etc. Someone might ask, “What's the point of all of these?”
Well, for one we can say, it ensures the businesses that indulge in construction activities are operating as per the LEED certification
requirements, which means, they are environmentally responsible, clean, and cost-effective.

Relevance of LEED Certification in India and its Impact on the Steel Industry:

It is understandable that questions may arise regarding the relevance of LEED Certification within the Indian context. However, it is
important to note that the certification holds significant value and applicability in the Country. India proudly secured the third position
globally in the U.S. Green Building Council's (USGBC) annual rankings for LEED-certified green buildings in 2021. The Country recorded
an impressive 146 certified buildings and spaces, covering over 2.8 million gross square meters (GSM). This achievement highlights the
growing awareness and commitment toward sustainable and energy-efficient infrastructure in India.

This remarkable feat is not incidental — it signals a strong shift toward sustainability that industries, including the steel sector, can no longer
overlook. LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) certification is emerging as a key differentiator for businesses focused
on future-readiness, environmental responsibility, and operational efficiency.

Benefits of LEED Certification:
For the steel industry in particular, which is both energy-intensive and emission-heavy, adopting LEED standards brings numerous benefits:

* Ensure Energy Savings: Who wouldn't like to save operational costs, especially when it comes to building infrastructure which
often involves massive investments? With LEED certification, you can make your building project energy efficient, using
technologies like solar panels and bringing down the expenditure on energy use. Besides this, it can also help you contribute to a
better environment as less energy requirement means less emission of harmful greenhouse gases.

* Less Usage of Water: India comes among the most water-stressed Countries as with over 18% global population and just 4% of
the world’s water resources, the problem of water scarcity is at its worst today. Here, the LEED certificate can play an important
role as it motivates the real estate industry to design their buildings to ensure the conservation of water as much as possible.

* High IEQ (Indoor Environmental Quality): Indoor Environmental Quality (IEQ) is nothing but conditions inside a building,
alongside the health of those who occupy it. It involves air quality, lighting, thermal conditions, and the effects they have on the
people living in such a place. LEED certification aims for a high IEQ, to offer a clean and healthy atmosphere for occupants. That's
the reason we see LEED-certified buildings promoting concepts, like ventilation, delighting, and the use of low-emitting materials.

o Better Building Valuation: Higher valuation compared to traditional buildings is the reason major real-estate developers of the
Country are taking more and more interest in the development of green buildings. The quality and sustainability aspects of LEED-
certified buildings not only bring more interested buyers but also lead to higher profit margins.

* Tax Incentive: Last but not least are the Tax incentives that the Government of the Country offers to the businesses involved
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w in the development of LEED-certified buildings. Under the Income Tax Act, eligible real-estate developers can get up to a 100%

depreciation on the cost of products used in green buildings. For instance, solar panels, waste management systems, or rainwater
harvesting mechanisms.

As the industry adapts to changing environmental standards and consumer expectations, LEED certification is no longer optional — it is the
way forward. Our Company remains committed to exploring and implementing such sustainable initiatives to build a more responsible and
resilient future. Today, the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design or LEED Certificate stands as the world’s most recognized green
building rating system. In India, the responsibility of administering it lies with the Green Business Certification Inc. (GBCI), which has been
working day and night to promote the development of green buildings and the use of sustainable practices all across the Country. With LEED
certification, an entity gets to enjoy several advantages, such as cost efficiency, tax savings, high IEQ, and many more. The support India’s
government shows for LEED certification is also commendable and the reason behind this is it can bring down the environmental impacts
and help the Country achieve its net zero targets by the year 2070.

The Company is actively pursuing certifications aligned with international standards, including LEED, with the objective of enhancing its
export potential and strengthening its presence in global markets. Such certifications not only demonstrate our commitment to sustainable
and responsible manufacturing but also position us competitively in environmentally conscious international markets.

Ongoing Capex Programs:
Initiative to produce Green Steel

Last year the Company had obtained from ClI- Green Products and Services Council a certificate that “Manufactured by Tulsyan NEC Ltd.
at Gummidipoondi, Tamil Nadu, meets the requirements of GreenPro Ecolabel and qualifies as Green Product which is valid till December
2026". This initiative is operating and the Company is producing Fe 500, Fe 500 D, Fe 500 CRS, Fe 500 D CRS, Fe 550, FE 550 D, Fe 550
D CRS, Fe 600, Fe 600 CRS & Steel Wire Rods.

In the Year 2024-25, the Company utilized 60% of the Energy used for Steel production from Green Sources.
Importance of Green Pro Certification:

Green Pro Certification is a mark of sustainability and environmental responsibility, specifically tailored for the Indian context by the
Indian Green Building Council (IGBC). For a steel plant, obtaining this certification can bring numerous advantages. Obtaining Green
Pro Certification for a steel plant offers substantial advantages, including enhanced environmental performance, improved market
competitiveness, regulatory compliance, operational efficiency, and cost savings.

Green Pro Certification evaluates various parameters, including energy efficiency, water conservation, waste management, materials used,
indoor environmental quality, and innovation.

The future potential for scoring under Green Pro certification can be significantly improved through targeted initiative. Upgrading to more
energy-efficient machinery and processes, implementing renewable energy sources like solar or wind power, and optimizing energy
management systems. Installing advanced water recycling and rainwater harvesting systems, reducing water usage through efficient
processes, and treating wastewater for reuse. Enhancing waste segregation and recycling processes, reducing raw material wastage and
implementing Zero waste to landfill initiatives.

Benefits of Green Pro Certification:

* Having Green Pro Certification can enhance the plant’s reputation and marketability. Customers, particularly those with sustainability
goals, are more likely to choose products from certified plants.

*  Green Pro Certification helps in complying with environmental regulations and standards, which are becoming increasingly stringent.
Additionally, it can make the plant eligible for government incentives, grants, and subsidies aimed at promoting sustainable
practices.

* Sustainable practices help in mitigating risks associated with resource scarcity, regulatory changes, and environmental impacts.
This proactive approach can safeguard the plant's operations against future uncertainties.

* Green Pro Certification enhances the Corporate image and brand value of the steel plant. It demonstrates a commitment to
sustainability.
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Planned Capital Expenditure:

During the year under review, the Company completed about 80% of the implementation of Capex program which will debottleneck
production processes to enhance the billet production capacity by about 36000 tons per annum. Further, the expenditure is being incurred to
increase the power supply voltage of the unit to 110 KVA which will reduce cost of operations. With enhanced own production of billets, the
Company will reduce dependence on the market for the billets and substantial requirement of the Company will be met by its own means.
This process also enhances the efficiency of Direct billet charging to rolling mill which will saves power costs and also improves profitability.
The project is expected to be completed in FY 2025-26.

Investing in a 110kV substation to replace an existing 33kV substation is a significant capital expenditure (Capex) that will bring numerous
benefits to our plant, particularly as we are operating an induction furnace. This upgrade can notably enhance the Plant’s power supply
capacity and operational efficiency. These advantages collectively ensure that our Plant can meet current and future production demands
efficiently and sustainably.

Few benefits of this Capex investment:

Increased Maximum Demand Capacity
Enhanced Melt Rate and Productivity
Improved Power Quality and Reliability
Long-term Cost Efficiency

Scalability for future growth

Enhanced operational flexibility
Competitive advantage and

Environmental benefits.

Future capex plans:

Additional furnace and scrap processing yard: The Company has already upgraded its Furnace — A and further retrofitting of Furnace — B
is planned during the FY 2025-26.

Additional New Furnace:

Investing in a new furnace and a steel scrap processing facility following the installation of a 110kV substation can significantly
enhance the productivity and efficiency of a steel plant. Here’s an analysis of the potential productivity gains and efficiency
improvements.

Increase in Production Capacity; With the new furnace, assuming it has a similar capacity to the upgraded 22-ton furnace, the
plant’s melting capacity will effectively triple.

The improved energy infrastructure with the 110kV substation ensures more stable and efficient power delivery, reducing energy
losses and operational disruptions.

Newer furnace technologies often come with better thermal efficiency and energy recovery systems, leading to reduced energy
consumption per ton of steel produced.

Steel Scrap Processing Facility:

On-site scrap processing reduces the dependency on external suppliers, ensures a steady supply of processed scrap, and lowers
costs.

Control over the quality of processed scrap ensures better input material for the furnaces, reducing impurities and enhancing the
quality of the final product.

Efficient scrap processing reduces waste and promotes recycling, aligning with sustainability goals and potentially reducing raw
material costs.
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w Other Initiatives:

* Face lift will be given to existing plant by upgrading/updating the technological advancement prevailing at present. Steel structures
of building to be strengthened and to refurbish plant and machinery to enhance life for another ten to fifteen years.

* Current focus is on Energy management, to bring expertise and experience together a suite of Industry 4.0 digitalization solutions
which can add a great value in helping our plant with predictive and timely alerts with report generation, aiding in proper upkeep and
efficient functioning of the plant.

 Installation of smart meters for Energy Monitoring & Management System at HV & LV power distribution for SMS, CCM, Rolling
Mill & Auxiliaries area (31 meters). The system should collect all the data without any human intervention and thus create
transparency among the stakeholders.

* |n addition, the water resources limited to bore wells in house. Depletion of water table in bores may cause scarcity of water
requirement for future projects. Hence to work on rain water harvest, STP and zero water discharge in future.

Increase in Turnover:

With enhanced billet capacity the Company will improve its TMT sales which hitherto were a constraint. Steel Marketing team has been
strengthened for a better market outreach and also improve the Dealers network.

Production of Welded Wire Mesh:

As reported in the previous years, the Company has created a facility for manufacture of Welded Wire Mesh and has introduced to the
Market. The product aims to expedite all construction processes. The Weld Mesh is strong, long lasting, and rust-resistant and the product
consists of rebars (the size and sections can be customized according to the end users’ requirement) that are welded together to form a
grid-like pattern. The Company offers cold rolled wire mesh from 4.7mm to 12mm, and hot rolled wire mesh from 5.5mm to 16mm. Our weld
mesh has a maximum width of 3 meters and maximum length of 8 meters.

As mentioned earlier, the aim is to make the construction process more efficient and effective. The Weld Mesh reduces the construction time
as it eliminates activities like cutting, marking, and spacing of bars. A revolutionary solution for the industry is to evolve.

Tie up with Tata Steel Limited:

The Company has entered into a contract manufacturing arrangement with Tata Steel Limited to manufacture Welded Wire Mesh for their
requirement. Accordingly, Tata Steel provides the Wire Rod Coils to be converted into Welded Wire Mesh and delivered to Tata Steel
customers.

This product will catch up over a period of time and will yield in long term.
Impact of Economy and Industry and other factors relating to performance of steel:

Government policies and initiatives affect the working of the sector and the Government policies and the initiatives on the steel sector are
as follows:

PM GatiShakti National Master Plan:

With the help of Bhaskaracharya Institute for Space Applications and Geoinformatics (BiSAG-N), the infrastructure Ministries have uploaded
their rail, road, port networks, etc. on PM GatiShatkti National Portal. Ministry of Steel has onboarded itself on PM GatiShakti Portal (National
Master Plan portal) with the help of a mobile application created by BiSAG-N, by uploading the Geo locations of more than 2100 (Twenty
One Hundred) steel units (including big players) functioning in the Country. The Geo location of all the Iron Ore Mines and Manganese Ore
Mines has also been uploaded. Ministry of Steel is in the process of uploading the geo locations of the existing slurry pipelines and the
laboratories functioning in the steel sector.

In addition, Ministry of Steel, in line with the goal of PM GatiShakti Master Plan, has identified 22 high impact projects to develop multimodal
connectivity and bridge the missing infrastructure gaps. Planned expansion of railway lines, creation of new inland waterways, roads, ports,
gas pipeline connectivity will result in creating much needed logistics solution which will drive the steel sector towards achieving its targeted
goals by 2030-31, as delineated in NSP 2017.
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m Further, Ministry of Steel is in the process to formulate “Sectoral Plan for Efficient Logistics (SPEL)” which is a comprehensive, long term
infrastructure plan as mandated by the Comprehensive Logistics Action Plan (CLAP) under the National Logistics Policy (NLP).

Introduction of Safeguard Duty on Steel Imports:

The Government of India has levied a 12% safeguard duty on steel imports from April 2025 onwards in support of Domestic Steel
manufacturers. This levy will equalise the playing field for the local manufacturers and guards against dumping by other countries.

Power Division Performance and Outlook:

The power sector especially the thermal power sector where our Company is invested in, is facing big constraints on account of high coal
prices at which the operations are unviable. However, India’s dependence on Thermal power about 50% currently, will keep the sector going
in the near future. The market dynamics would reconcile to a sustainable level of costs and revenue of produces and consumers overtime
subject however to robust government policies.

Future outlook:

The international coal prices have softened and are quickly reaching back to their original positions. The Company estimates that the
coal prices would remain stable at the reduced levels and the Company can improve its utilisation levels thereupon. The Government has
modified the Shakti Policy of 2017 to broad base the access of domestically produced coal to smaller coal units also.

The Outlook is expected to be favourable.
Amendment of Shakti Policy 2017:

Background: With the introduction of SHAKTI Policy, 2017, there was a paradigm shift of coal allocation mechanism from a nomination-
based regime to a more transparent way of allocation of coal linkages through an auction / tariff-based bidding. Nomination based allocation
continued only for the Central / State Sector power plants. SHAKTI Policy has been amended in 2019 on the recommendations of Group
of Ministers. SHAKTI Policy was further amended in 2023. SHAKTI Policy has various Paras for allocation of a coal linkage to the various
categories of Power Plants, subject to meeting the eligibility criteria. With the introduction of Revised SHAKTI Policy, existing eight Paras of
the SHAKT! Policy, for coal allocation, have been mapped to only two Windows, in the spirit of ease of doing Business.

Window-lI: Any domestic coal-based power producer having PPA or untied and also Imported coal-based power plants (if they so require)
can secure coal on auction basis for a period upto 12 months or for the period of more than 12 months upto 25 years by paying premium
above the notified price and providing the power plants the flexibility to sell the electricity as per their choice.

Implementation strategy: Directions would be issued by the Central Government to Coal India Limited (CIL) / Singareni Collieries Company
Limited (SCCL) for implementation of the aforesaid decisions. Besides, the concerned Ministries and all the States shall also be apprised of
the revised SHAKTI Policy for further dissemination to the concerned Departments / Authorities and also to the Regulatory Commissions.

Major impact, including employment generation potential:

* Simplification of the linkage process.

o Caters to the dynamic coal requirement of the Power Sector.

* Central Sector Thermal Power Projects (TPPs).

* No requirement of PPA in Window-II -thereby providing the power plants the flexibility to sell the electricity as per their choice.
* Enabling Independent Power Producers (IPPs)/Private Developers for thermal capacity addition.

e Promote Coal Import Reduction/Substitution.

* Linkage Rationalization.

*  Allowing Un-requisitioned Surplus in Power Markets.

The Company is working towards availing the benefits of Shakti 2017 and is hopeful of containing cost of power generation and become
competitive.
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w Plan for Refurbishment in turbine:

The Company has adopted best practices to maintain the power plant at its best possible levels. These Power plant turbines are capital
intensive equipment, but over time, due to wear and tear the performance deteriorates leading to higher fuel costs. Alternate to expensive
replacement, Turbine refurbishment is a cost-effective solution that restores their efficiency. The Company is undertaking a power plant
refurbishment program during the current financial year.

Benefits of Refurbishing Your Turbine:
o Cost Savings: Refurbishing a turbine can save up to 50% compared to the cost of buying a new one.

* Improved Performance: Refurbished turbines often operate at higher efficiency than before, leading to better power output and
lower operational costs.

* Extended Lifespan: Refurbishment restores the integrity of the turbine, allowing it to continue running reliably for years.
* Environmental Benefits: Refurbishment reduces the need for new equipment manufacturing, which lowers the carbon footprint.
Synthetic Division - Performance and Outlook:

The Synthetic Division performance showed an improvement in turnover of about 18% over previous year. Disruptive Tariff war going on in
the world economy has affected the market and is fast changing the global material sourcing strategies. The sector is awaiting for the US
India Trade Deal which could provide a direction to the industry.

Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic:
The Company has overcome the effects of Covid-19 impact and has reached normalcy.

Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the
year alongwith their status as at the end of the financial year:

* The Company has not made any application under Insolvency and Bankruptcy code 2016 for resolution during the year under
review nor any application for insolvency proceeding has been made against the Company.

* The Company is a respondent in an application filed by the IRP of Cauvery Power Generation Chennai Private Limited seeking
payment of Rs.174.01 Lakhs being the value of coal supplied by the said company to us. Whereas supply so made by the said
company was towards amount due to the Company. The application is pending with the NCLT and we are confident that the claim
is not maintainable and is not a preferential payment.

Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking
loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the reasons thereof:

During the financial year under review, there were no such instances where the Company required the valuation for one time settlement or
while taking the loan from the Banks or Financial institutions.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company has not issued any instruments during the year requiring credit rating.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

As on March 31, 2025, the Company have only one wholly owned subsidiary company i.e. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing the salient features of the financial
statements of the Subsidiary in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report as an ‘Annexure-A’. The statement also provides the
details of the performance of the Subsidiary Company, financial position of the subsidiary and its contribution to the overall performance of
the Company during the period under report.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments thereto, read with the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), the audited financial statements, including the
consolidated financial statements and related information of the Company and financial statements of the wholly owned subsidiary company
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M will be available on our website at www.tulsyannec.in.

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining ‘Material Subsidiaries’ pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
The policy is available on the website of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in.

A report of the salient features and a summary of the financial performance of the wholly owned subsidiary company is presented as below:
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tulsyan NEC Limited. It was incorporated on October 21, 2003
and is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Sponge Iron.

Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited registered a total revenue of Rs. 9,956.88 lakhs and a net profit of Rs. 13.71 lakhs during the FY
24-25 as against a total revenue of Rs. 11,523.59 lakhs and a net profit of Rs. 105.61 lakhs during the FY 23-24.

PERSONNEL & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Overall, the industrial relations in all our manufacturing units are harmonious and cordial in nature. Your Company strictly believes that
maintaining cordial industrial relations is the key to progress of the firm, individuals, management, industry and nation.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of the financial year
March 31, 2025 of the Company and the date of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT / MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the financial year under review, there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals, impacting
the going concern status of the Company and its operations in the future.

ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of the Annual Return of the Company as per the provisions of Sections 134(3)(a) and 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, is available
on the website of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in.

DIVIDEND
During the financial year, the Company has not recommended or declared any payment as dividend to its shareholders.
TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (‘IEPF’)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, all dividends which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven) years
from the date of their transfer to the unpaid dividend account are required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund ('IEPF’), established by the Central Government. Further, as per the IEPF Rules, the shares on which dividend has not been
paid or claimed by the Members for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.
Further, as per Rule 6(8) of the IEPF Rules, all benefits such as bonus shares, split, consolidation except rights issue, accruing on shares
which are transferred to IEPF, shall also be credited to the demat account of the I[EPF authority.

The Members may note that no further unpaid or unclaimed dividend amounts/shares are pending with the Company for transferring to the
demat account of the IEPF Authority.

Mrs. Parvati Soni, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer as well as the Nodal Officer of the Company for the
purposes of verification of claims and coordination with IEPF Authority pursuant to the IEPF Rules.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.
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w DEPOSITS

During the financial year under review, the Company did not raise any funds which could be classified within the ambit of the term “Deposits”
under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and Circulars as amended
from time to time. Therefore, disclosure under Rule 8(5)(v) and (vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the
notes to the Financial Statements provided in the Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company had issued, subscribed and allotted 16,66,666 (Sixteen Lakhs Sixty Six Thousand Six
Hundred and Sixty Six) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each on preferential basis, at a price of Rs. 36 including a premium of Rs. 26
per Equity Share aggregating upto Rs. 6,00,00,000 (Rupees Six Crores) to India Special Assets Fund Il (a scheme of ISAF IIl) & ISAF III
Onshore Fund (a scheme of Edelweiss Credit Opportunities Trust), both advised by Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited and both
are Category Il Alternative Investment Funds (“AlFs”). The Company received the listing and trading approval for such shares from the BSE
on August 22, 2024 and September 03, 2024, respectively.

Further, during the financial year under review, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on March 27, 2025, considered and approved
forfeiture of 2,05,259 (94,815 @ Rs.6/- and 1,10,444 @ Rs.3/-) partly paid-up equity shares of the Company, on which the holders thereof
have failed to pay the balance allotment/ call money in pursuant to the last and final reminder-cum-forfeiture notice dated February 27, 2023.
The Company has received the approval for forfeiture of partly paid-up equity shares from the BSE on July 28, 2025.

Apart from the above, there has been no other change in the share capital of the Company. The detailed capital structure of the Company
as on March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Authorized Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs.36,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Six Crores) divided into 2,60,00,000 Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each and 1,00,00,000 6% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each.

Issued Share Capital

The Issued Share Capital of the Company is Rs.25,50,96,660/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Fifty Lakhs Ninety Six Thousand Six Hundred
and Sixty) divided into 16,666,666 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 88,43,000 6% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs.10/- each.

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

The Subscribed Share Capital and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs.25,30,44,070/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Thirty Lakhs
Forty Four Thousand and Seventy) divided into 16,461,407 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (Fully paid-up) and 88,43,000 6% Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each (Fully paid-up).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder, the Board has formed
a CSR Committee, which monitors and oversees various CSR initiatives and activities of the Company.

An Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility, setting out the disclosures as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed to this Report as an ‘Annexure-B’.

The CSR Policy developed and implemented by the Company including the composition of the CSR Committee have been uploaded on the
Company’s website at www.tulsyannec.in.

The Profit after tax on Standalone basis computed as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, being negative, the Company was not
required to spend any amount on CSR activities during the FY 2024-25.

Annual Report 2024-25 38



TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

m RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in
the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee periodically undertake a review of
the major risks affecting the Company’s business and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same.

The Risk Management Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at www.tulsyannec.in/investors.
VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2013, the rules prescribed thereunder and the SEBI Listing
Regulations is implemented through the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy to enable the Directors, employees and all stakeholders (internal
and external) of the Company to report genuine concerns, to provide for adequate safeguard against victimisation of persons who use such
mechanism and make provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at www.tulsyannec.in/investors.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year under
review, is given under separate section and forming part of the Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance. We believe in adherence to good corporate practices,
implementing effective policies and guidelines and developing a culture of the best management practices and compliance with the law at
all levels. Our corporate governance practices strive to foster and attain the highest standards of integrity, transparency, accountability and
ethics in all business matters to enhance and retain investor trust, long-term shareholder value and respect minority rights in all our business
decisions.

A separate section on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Para C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations forms part of the
Annual Report. The Corporate Governance Report along with the requisite certificate from the Practising Company Secretary, confirming
compliance with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated under SEBI Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered between the Company, Directors, Management and their relatives,
except for those disclosed in the financial statements. All the contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company with the related
parties during FY 2024-25 were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis, and whenever required the Company has
obtained necessary approval as per the Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company and applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties which is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(h) read with
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 and, hence, the
same does not form part of the Board’s Report.

The Company has formulated the policy on ‘Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions’, and
the same is available on the website of the Company at: www.tulsyannec.in/investors. The details of related party disclosures forms part of
the notes to the Financial Statements provided in the Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
annexed to this Report as an ‘Annexure-C’.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

A statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this report and is annexed to this Report as an ‘Annexure-D’.
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Further, a statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company as none of the
employees of the Company are drawing the remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under the said rules.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
hereby state and confirm that:

a

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

=

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls based on the internal controls framework established by the Company, which were
adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company’s current policy is to have an appropriate mix of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors to maintain the
independence of the Board and separate its functions of governance and management. Assessment and appointment of Directors to the
Board are based on a combination of criterion that includes ethics, personal and professional stature, domain expertise, gender diversity
and specific qualifications required for the position.

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee identifies persons of integrity who possess
relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position. A potential board member is also assessed based on
independence criteria defined in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

In accordance with Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from
time to time and on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board had adopted a Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. This policy is available on the website of the Company
at — www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

We affirm that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees is in accordance
with the Remuneration Policy of the Company, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the requisite declarations confirming that they meet the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s
Code of Conduct.

They have further confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties and that they are independent of the management. Further, the Independent
Directors have also submitted their declaration in compliance with the provisions of Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, which mandated the inclusion of an Independent Director's name in the data bank of the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘ICA’) for a period of one year or five years or life-time till they continue to hold the office of an Independent
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Director.

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are persons of high integrity
and repute. They fulfil the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the Rules made thereunder and are independent
of the Management.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the importance of a diverse board in contributing to its success. Adequate diversity on the Board
is essential to meet the challenges of business globalisation, rapid deployment of technology, greater social responsibility, increasing
emphasis on corporate governance and enhanced need for risk management. The Board enables efficient functioning through differences
in perspective and skill, and fosters differentiated thought processes at the back of varied industrial and management expertise, gender,
knowledge, ethnicity, country of origin and nationality. The Board has adopted a Diversity Policy that outlines its commitment to fostering a
diverse and inclusive composition, setting forth the approach to achieving and maintaining diversity at the Board level. The policy is available
on the website of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the annual
performance evaluation of the Board, Board level Committees and individual Directors was conducted during the year, in order to ensure
that the Board and Board level Committees are functioning effectively and demonstrating good governance. For the FY 2024-25, the Board
had undertaken this exercise through self-evaluation questionnaires. The evaluation process focused on Board dynamics and other aspects
towards Board effectiveness. The process involved the evaluation of all the Directors including the Chairperson, the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer, Board committees and the Board as a whole.

The evaluation was carried out based on the criteria and framework approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. A detailed
disclosure on the parameters and the process of Board evaluation has been provided in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms
part of the Annual Report.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Directors

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors comprised of 8 (eight) Members, consisting of 4 (four) Executive Directors and 4 (four) Non-
Executive Independent Directors including 1 (one) Non-Executive Independent Woman Director. The Board has an appropriate mix of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Independent Directors, which is in compliant with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
SEBI Listing Regulations and is also aligned with the best practices of Corporate Governance.

Appointment / Re-appointment

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company, based upon the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, had approved, by way of circular resolution passed on August 25, 2024, the appointment of Mrs. J Sumathi (DIN: 10752449) as
an Additional Director (categorized as an ‘Independent (Non-Executive) Woman Director’) of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to
hold the office as such till the date of the 77th AGM of the Company and her tenure as an Independent (Non-Executive) Woman Director to
hold the office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. August 25, 2024 till August 24, 2029 (both days
inclusive). Further, the Members of the Company at their 77th AGM held on September 25, 2024, approved the aforesaid appointment of
Mrs. J Sumathi (DIN: 10752449) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Woman Director for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing
from the date of Board’s approval i.e. August 25, 2024 till August 24, 2029 (both days inclusive).

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802),
Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation at the 77th AGM and being eligible, was re-appointed as an Executive Director,
liable to retire by rotation.

Further, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN:
00632864), Executive Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company and being eligible,
seeks re-appointment.
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The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at their respective meetings held on August
13,2025, have considered and approved the re-appointment Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram (DIN: 08883633), who was appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing from September 19, 2020 to September
18, 2025 (both days inclusive), not liable to retire by rotation, to hold the office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board
of the Company commencing from September 19, 2025 till September 18, 2030 (both days inclusive), subject to approval of the Members
of the Company at the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, all the Directors, as well as the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed possess the requisite
qualifications, experience, expertise and hold high standards of integrity and relevant proficiency.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of Section 164(1) and (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Directors have made necessary disclosures, as required under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Completion of Tenure

During the year under review, Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary (DIN: 07410090) completed her second and final term as an Independent
(Non-Executive) Woman Director and consequently ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company with effect from the close of
business hours on September 26, 2024. The Board placed on record its deep and gratitude appreciation for her extensive contribution and
stewardship during her tenure in the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

There were no changes in the Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the Company during the FY 2024-25. The Key Managerial Personnel(s) of
the Company as on March 31, 2025 are:

e Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan, Managing Director (Executive Chairman);

e Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan, Managing Director;

o Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla, Whole Time Director;

o Mr. Shanthakumar R P, Chief Financial Officer; and

* Mrs. Parvati Soni, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently, the Company has 4 (four) Board level Committees: Audit Committee (‘AC’), Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’),
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (‘SRC’) and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘CSRC’). The detailed composition of such
committees, as on March 31, 2025, are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The meetings of the Board are scheduled at regular intervals to discuss and decide on matters of business performance, policies, strategies
and other matters of significance. The schedule of the meetings is circulated in advance, to ensure proper planning and effective participation.
In certain exigencies, decisions of the Board are also accorded through circulation.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board met 5 (five) times virtually on May 30, 2024; July 26, 2024; October 25, 2024; February 13,
2025; and March 27, 2025 respectively. The maximum interval between any 2 (two) meetings did not exceed 120 (One Hundred and
Twenty) days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. Detailed information regarding the meetings of the Board and its Committees are
included in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s. CNGSN & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm ICAl Registration No: 004925S/S200036), Chennai, were re-appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of the 74th AGM held on
September 30, 2021 till the conclusion of the 79th AGM of the Company, at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors
in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company, from time to time.
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The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 contains the following
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer:

Sl

No.

Qualification, Reservation or Adverse
Remark or Disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors

Management’s Reply

1

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

As stated in Note No. 7 to the standalone financial results, the
Company has not received balance confirmations for trade
receivables outstanding for more than 180 days as at 31st March
2025. These receivables constitute approximately 53% in value
of the confirmations sought. For receivables outstanding for
less than 180 days, confirmations were received in a substantial
number of cases.

The management has represented that it undertook a
comprehensive process of seeking balance confirmations from
all customers and made multiple follow-up efforts. Despite
these efforts, a significant portion of the older balances remain
unconfirmed.

The Company has also informed us that it remains confident
of recovery of these balances and is evaluating an assignment
of certain receivables as part of its recovery plan. Further, the
Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables
during the year in respect of trade receivables and, based on
its assessment, has not recorded any significant ECL provision
beyond this.

However, in the absence of direct confirmations and sufficient
alternative audit evidence regarding the recoverability of these
older balances, we are unable to determine whether any further
adjustments are necessary to the carrying value of these
receivables by way of additional provisioning, write-offs, or
write- backs.

Accordingly, our audit opinion on the financial statements for
the year ended 31st March 2025 is qualified to the extent of the
possible effects of adjustments, if any, that may be required on
account of the forementioned matter.

The management undertook a comprehensive process of
seeking balance confirmations from all customers and made
multiple follow-up efforts. Despite these efforts, a significant
portion of the older balances remain unconfirmed.

The Company is confident of recovery of these balances and
is evaluating an assignment of certain receivables as part of
its recovery plan.

Further, the Company has written off some of the trade
receivables during the year in respect of trade receivables
which are clearly not recoverable and based on its
assessment, has not recorded ECL provision.

Emphasis of Matter:

The Company has serviced the interest and principal payable
on the Non-Convertible Debentures on time in all months except
from December 2024. There has been an agreed Moratorium
from Dec 2024 to Mar 2024. (Reference is drawn to Note No. 3 of
Standalone Financial Statements)

According to the information and explanation given to us, during
the year one Windmill was sold and from June 2024 to February
2025, Power plant was under shutdown. (Reference is drawn to
Note No. 6 of Standalone Financial Statements)

Sale of Windmill was part of long-term plan to dispose non-
core assets which did not affect the core of the business of
the Company.

Power plant shutdown was due to maintenance and also
depended on the power demand during such months.
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The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report.
Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year, the statutory auditors have not reported to the Audit Committee any material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the details of which need to be provided in this report.

Cost Auditors

The Cost Records of the Company are maintained in accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as
specified by the Central Government. The Cost Audit Report, for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, was filed with the Central
Government within the prescribed time. The Board, based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s. Murthy & Co.
LLP, Cost and Management Accountants (Firm Registration Number S200001), Bengaluru, as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the
Company’s cost records for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025. The Cost Auditors will submit their report to the Company for the
Financial Year 2024-25 on or before the due date.

The Board at its meeting held on May 30, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed M/s. Murthy & Co. LLP,
Cost and Management Accountants (Firm Registration Number S200001) as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the Company’s
cost records for the FY 2025-26. The Cost Auditors have confirmed that their appointment is within the limits of Section 141(3)(g) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and have also certified that they are free from any disqualifications specified under Section 141(3) and proviso to
Section 148(3) read with Section 141(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee has also received a certificate from the Cost
Auditors certifying their independence and arm’s length relationship with the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
since the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the Members, the Board recommends the same for approval
by Members at the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder, M/s. M Damodaran &
Associates, LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries (Firm Registration Number L2019TN006000), Chennai, were re-appointed to conduct
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2024-25 issued by Mr. Kalaiyarasi
Janakiraman (M. No. 29861, CP No. 19385), Partner at M/s. M Damodaran & Associates, LLP, in the prescribed Form MR-3 is annexed to
this Report as an ‘Annexure-E’.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2024-25 contains the following observations:

Sl. Observations by Secretarial Auditors Management’s Reply
No.
1. The Company has delayed in submission of the disclosure | The Management stated that the Company was trying its best
with respect to default in payment of interest/principal towards | efforts for making the payment of principal/interest overdue
unlisted Non-convertible Debentures with the stock exchange | amount at the earliest and simultaneously was under the
as required under Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule | PrO°€SS of seeking waiver from the NCD holders.

1 of SEBI LODR and Section V-B of SEBI Master Circular No. Therefore, the Company delayed and submitted the
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024. disclosure on January 08, 2025 to the BSE with respect

to default in payment of interest/principal towards unlisted
Non-convertible Debentures.

Thereafter, the Company also informed the BSE on
January 09, 2025, that it has obtained the approval from
the NCD holders to reschedule the interest and Principal
redemption time lines in order to suit the current market
conditions and that the final confirmation shall be received from
the NCD holders within a fortnight and the Company would not
be in default thereafter.

The Company assures to comply with the revised terms of
repayment and coupon servicing of NCDs in due course of
time.
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m Pursuant to the SEBI Master Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024, the Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report for the Financial Year 2024-25, issued by Mr. Kalaiyarasi Janakiraman (M. No. 29861, CP No. 19385), Partner at M/s. M Damodaran
& Associates, LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, Chennai, has been submitted with the BSE, where shares of the Company are listed,

within the stipulated timeline.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, each as amended, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company has appointed M/s. M Damodaran & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, Chennai, having Firm Registration Number
L2019TN006000, Peer Review Certificate No: 3847/2023, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years
commencing from the Financial Year 2025-26 ill the Financial Year 2029-30, at a proposed annual secretarial audit fees of Rs. 67,000/
(Rupees Sixty Seven Thousand only) plus applicable taxes, and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed
between the Company and the Secretarial Auditors. The remuneration to be paid to Secretarial Auditors for the remaining term i.e. from the
FY 2026-27 till the FY 2029-30 shall be mutually agreed between the Board and the Secretarial Auditors, based on recommendation(s) of the
Audit Committee, from time to time. The said appointment is subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing 78th AGM of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and which is
commensurate with its size and nature of operations for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to its
policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company is staffed by experienced and qualified professionals who play an important role in designing, implementing, maintaining and
monitoring our internal control systems.

Quarterly internal audits are carried out by the Internal Auditors of the Company to provide reasonable assurance of internal control
effectiveness and advise the Company on industry-wide best practices. The Audit Committee, consisting of Independent Directors, reviews
important issues raised by the internal and statutory auditors regularly and the status of rectification measures to ensure that risks are
mitigated appropriately on a timely basis.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI)

In terms of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1,
SS-2 and SS-4, relating to the ‘Meetings of the Board', ‘General Meetings’ and ‘Report of the Board of Directors’ respectively, as specified
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSl) and approved by the Central Government.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place a Policy on Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC’) has been set up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. The Policy is
gender neutral.

During the financial year under review, no complaints of sexual harassment were filed and no complaint is pending for closure as per the
timelines of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

CORPORATE CODES AND POLICIES

The details of the policies approved and adopted by the Board as required under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, and
other applicable laws, are available on the website of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in under the head “Policies” of the Investors Section.

GREEN INITIATIVE

We request all the shareholders to support the ‘Green Initiative’ of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Company’s continuance towards
a greener environment by enabling the service of the Annual Report, AGM Notice, and other documents electronically to your email address
registered with your Depository Participant / the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

In support of the ‘Green Initiative’, the Company encourages Members to register their email addresses with their Depository Participant
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m or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company to receive soft copies of the Annual Report, Notices and other information
disseminated by the Company, on a real-time basis without any delay.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We place on record our appreciation for the committed services by every Member of the Tulsyan family whose contribution was significant to
the growth and success of the Company. We would like to thank all our shareholders, customers, suppliers, investors, vendors, executives,
staffs and workers at all levels, bankers, financial institutions and other business associates for their continued support and encouragement
during the year.

We also thank the Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Central Board of Indirect Taxes and
Customs, Income Tax Department, and all other regulatory agencies for their assistance and co-operation during the year and look forward
to their continued support in the future.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823
Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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Form AOC-1

Annexure-A

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A” Subsidiaries

(Amount in Rupees)

SI. No. Particulars As on March 31, 2025

1 Name of the Subsidiary Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited
2 The date since when the subsidiary was acquired / incorporated October 21, 2003
3 Reporting period April - March
4 Reporting currency INR
5 Share Capital 6,48,92,000
6 Reserves and Surplus (23,48,41,377)
7 Total assets 24,50,58,996
8 Total Liabilities 24,50,58,996
9 Investments 2,500
10 Turnover 99,51,14,423
11 Profit / (Loss) before taxation 13,70,782
12 Provision for taxation NIL
13 Profit / (Loss) after taxation 13,70,782
14 Proposed dividend NIL
15 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%

Notes:

1. Names of the Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For and on behalf of the Board

Part “B” Associates and Joint Ventures: Not Applicable

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan E. K. Srivatsan
Managing Director Executive Chairman Partner
DIN: 00632802 DIN: 00632823 M. No. 225064
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
M. Parthasarathy Shanthakumar R P Parvati Soni
Independent Director Chief Financial Officer ~Company Secretary
DIN: 08277111
Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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w Annexure-B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
[Information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Tulsyan NEC Limited has adopted CSR as a strategic tool for sustainable growth. For Tulsyan NEC Limited, CSR means not only
investment of funds for social activity and relief to the under-privileged sections of the society but also integration of Business processes
with social processes.

The CSR Policy was framed by the Company on June 30, 2014 and later got amended on August 13, 2021, with approvals of the CSR
Committee and the Board of Directors. The Policy, inter alia, covers the Guiding Principles for selection, implementation and monitoring
of activities as well as formulation of the Annual Action Plan.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
No. Directorship CSR Committee held CSR Committee attended
during the year during the year
1. | Sanjay Agarwalla Chairman 0 0
2. | Manogyanathan Parthasarathy Member 0 0
3. | Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary | Member (resigned w.e.f. 0 0
September 27, 2024)
4. | J Sumathi Member (appointed w.e.f. 0 0
September 27, 2024)

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of
the company: www.tulsyannec.in/investors

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): The Company’s average net Profit after tax on Standalone basis was negative.

a
b
c
d

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Nil
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(
(
(
(

Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Nil
a
b

) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Nil
)

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
)
)

Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

d
e

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

=

(
(
(
(
(
(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil
(9) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Nil
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in
the financial year: Nil

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Nil
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

Py

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.: Nil
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): Nil

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board

For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan Sanjay Agarwalla
(Managing Director) (Whole Time Director and Chairman of CSR Committee)
DIN: 00632802 DIN: 00632864

Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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Annexure-C

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
[Information disclosed pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(A) Conservation of Energy:

() The Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The Company engages outside Professionals / Consultants for
conservation of energy from time to time and implementing their recommendations and observations. The Consultants use
thermography and other technologies to monitor the health of electrical systems and their consumption pattern and arrest energy
losses and optimize the energy utilization from time to time.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, two key projects were initiated to support energy conservation and improve operational
efficiency:

¢ |Installation of 22 Ton Furnace A

The installation and commissioning of a new 22 Ton Furnace A were successfully completed within the financial year. This
upgrade has resulted in an approximate 9% reduction in power consumption during the billet manufacturing process.

* Installation of 22 Ton Furnace B (Ongoing)

The installation work for another 22 Ton Furnace B is currently in progress and is scheduled for completion in the Financial Year
2025-26. Upon commissioning, this furnace is expected to contribute an additional 10% reduction in power consumption during
billet production.

* 110 kV Line Installation under Power Division (Ongoing)

As part of the infrastructure upgrades, the installation of a 110 kV line was initiated under the Power Division. This project aims
to reduce power transmission losses to the grid, thereby improving overall energy efficiency. The projectis also expected to be
completed in the Financial Year 2025-26.

() The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: The Company produced 150854000 units of
energy during the financial year 2024-2025.

During the year the company started using Rice Husk, Wood Chips, Wood saw dust, and other Bio Fuels which are renewable
sources of energy and alternate to Coal. Continuous monitoring of high energy consumption areas/equipment and taking
appropriate corrective measures as and when required, resulted in energy saving and reduction in power consumption.

Further, the company has initiated sourcing more than 50% of its energy requirements for the Steel Division from alternate
sources, specifically Solar and Wind power through third-party agreements. This strategic shift towards renewable energy not only
supports environmental sustainability but also contributes to cost optimization. While solar and wind power offer cleaner and more
sustainable energy solutions, thermal power continues to serve as a reliable energy source. Therefore, the ideal energy mix for the
company involves a balanced combination of renewable and thermal power sources—ensuring reliability, cost-effectiveness, and
reduced environmental impact.

() The Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: During the financial year 2024-25, the company made significant
capital investments towards energy conservation initiatives. The major components of the investment include Installation of
22 Ton Furnace Rs. 365.63 Lakhs. This initiative contributes to improved energy efficiency in billet manufacturing, targeting
substantial reduction in power consumption. Installation of 110 KV Line Rs. 635.39 Lakhs, This infrastructure upgrade supports
optimized power distribution and further efficiency in operations. Total Capital Investment in Energy Conservation Equipment
Rs. 1,001.02 Lakhs. These investments reinforce the company’s commitment to sustainable operations, improved energy
efficiency, and long-term cost savings.

(B) Technology Absorption:

() The efforts made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable

() The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: Not
Applicable
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(1) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):
Not Applicable

(IV) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not Applicable

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The details of Foreign Exchange eamed in terms of actual inflows during the year and the details of Foreign Exchange outgo in

terms of actual outflows during the year are given in the Notes to Accounts of the financial statements which forms part of this Annual
Report.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823

Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

Annexure-D

[Information disclosed pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial

year 2024-25:
Name Designation Ratio
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan Executive Chairman 1:53
Sanjay Tulsyan Managing Director 1:53
Sanjay Agarwalla Whole Time Director 1:21
S. Chandrasekaran Whole Time Director 1.7
Manogyanathan Parthasarathy Non-Executive Independent Director N.A.
Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary* Non-Executive Independent Woman Director N.A.
Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram Non-Executive Independent Director N.A.
Ravi Muthusamy Non-Executive Independent Director N.A.
J Sumathi* Non-Executive Independent Woman Director N.A.
Note:
a) The remuneration paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors includes sitting fees and is based on the meetings attended by them
during the FY 2024-25.
b) Mrs. J Sumathi appointed as Non-Executive Independent Woman Director of the Company for a term of five consecutive years w.e.f.
August 25, 2024 till August 24, 2029 (both days inclusive).
¢) Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary resigned from the office of Non-Executive Independent Woman Director of the Company w.e.f.
September 27, 2024, on completion of her tenure as an Independent Director.
2) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, in the financial
year 2024-25:
SI. | Name of Directors / KMPs and their designation | Remuneration / Sitting | Remuneration / Sitting % increase in
No. Fees to Directors/ | Fees to Directors / KMPs | Remuneration
KMPs for the financial for the financial year for the
year 2023-2024 2024-2025 Financial year
2024-2025
1. | Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (Executive Chairman) 10,529,000 1,20,00,000 13.97%
2. | Sanjay Tulsyan (Managing Director) 10,529,000 1,20,00,000 13.97%
3. | Sanjay Agarwalla (Whole Time Director) 48,29,000 55,00,000 13.90%
4. | S. Chandrasekaran (Whole Time Director) 18,00,000 16,50,000 (8.33%)
5. | Manogyanathan Parthasarathy 4,00,000 4,00,000 N.A.
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
6. | Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary 4,00,000 2,00,000 N.A.
(Non-Executive Independent Woman Director)
7. | Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram 4,00,000 4,00,000 N.A.
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
8. | Ravi Muthusamy 3,00,000 4,00,000 N.A.
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
9 | J Sumathi N.A. 2,00,000 N.A.
(Non-Executive Independent Woman Director)
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10. | Shanthakumar R P 31,44,000 31,44,000
(Chief Financial Officer)
11. | Parvati Soni 8,68,000 10,28,400 18.48%
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

3) The Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2024-25: There was an increase of 28%
in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2024-25.

4)  Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 464

5) Average percentile increase / (decrease) already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: The average increase
in employee remuneration other than managerial personnel was 20%. The increase in managerial remuneration is in line with the
measures to attract and retain the best talent.

6) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: Nil

7)  ltis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid for the financial year 2024-25 was as per the Company’s Policy on Director’s Appointment
and Remuneration.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823
Place: Chennai

Date: 13-08-2025
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Annexure-E
FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A (1) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members,

TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

CIN - L28920TN1947PLC007437

1% Floor, Apex Plaza,Old No.3,

New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road,
Chennai- 600034.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by M/s. TULSYAN NEC LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March
31,2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the rules made there under;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iiiy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act):- (to the extent applicable)
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;
(f)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI (LODR)].
(vi) Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company — NIL.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (‘BSE’) under the SEBI (LODR);

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1) for Board Meeting and Secretarial Standards (SS-2) for General Meeting issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Circulars,
Notifications, Guidelines, Secretarial Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:
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The Company has delayed in submission of the disclosure with respect to default in payment of interest/principal towards unlisted Non-
convertible Debentures with the stock exchange as required u/r. 30 read with Part A of Schedule Il of SEBI LODR and Section V-B of SEBI
Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Executive Directors and Non-Executive cum Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI (LODR).

Adequate notice was given to all the Directors to schedule the Board & Committee meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than those held at shorter notice with the consent of all the Directors, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous
and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company had received listing approval from the BSE on August 22, 2024 and trading
approval on September 03, 2024, respectively, for 16,66,666 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each issued to non-promoters at a premium of Rs.
26/- each, on a preferential basis.

We further report that during the audit period the Board of Directors of the Company, inter alia, had

a. considered and approved, by way of circular resolution passed on August 25, 2024, the appointment of Mrs. J Sumathi (DIN:
10752449) as an Additional Director (categorized as an ‘Independent Woman Director’) of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold the office as such till the date of the 77th AGM of the Company and her tenure as a Woman Independent
Director to hold the office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. August 25, 2024 till August
24, 2029 (both days inclusive), subject to approval of the members at the 77th AGM of the Company.

b. noted, by way of circular resolution passed on September 26, 2024, the completion of tenure of Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium
Jayamary (DIN: 07410090) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Woman Director of the Company from the closing business
hours of September 26, 2024.

c. considered and approved, at its meeting held on March 27, 2025, forfeiture of 2,05,259 (94,815 @ Rs.6/- and 1,10,444
@ Rs.3/) partly paid-up equity shares of the Company, on which the holders thereof have failed to pay the balance allotment /
call money in pursuant to the last and final reminder-cum-forfeiture notice dated February 27, 2023. The Company has received the
approval from the BSE on July 28, 2025 regarding the forfeiture application submitted on April 01, 2025.

We further report that during the audit period the members of the Company, inter alia, has passed a special resolution at
the 77th Annual General Meeting held on September 25, 2024 for appointment of Mrs. J Sumathi (DIN: 10752449) as an
Independent (Non-Executive) Woman Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years with effect from August 25, 2024 to August
24,2029 (both days inclusive) pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16 and 17 and any other applicable regulations of the SEBI (LODR).

For M DAMODARAN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Sd/-
Kalaiyarasi Janakiraman
Partner
Membership No.: 29861
COP. No.: 19385
FRN: L2019TN006000
PR 3847/2023
ICSI UDIN: A029861G000993111
Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025

(This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report)
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Annexure A
To,
The Members,
TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

CIN - L28920TN1947PLC007437

1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3,

New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road,
Chennai - 600 034.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit conducted by us.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, We followed provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For M DAMODARAN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Sd/-
Kalaiyarasi Janakiraman
Partner
Membership No.: 29861
COP. No.: 19385
FRN: L2019TN006000
PR 3847/2023
ICSI UDIN: A029861G000993111
Place: Chennai

Date: 13-08-2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

This Management Discussion and Analysis Report is operating and financial review of the company and is intended to convey the
Management's perspective on the financial and operating performance of the Company at the end of the Financial Year 2024-25. This
Report is to be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements, the schedules and notes thereto and other information included
elsewhere in the Integrated Report. The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) complying with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended and regulations issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) from time to time.

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
The Company operates across three key divisions — Steel, Power, and Synthetic Division.

In the Steel Division, the Company manufactures TMT Bars, Sponge Iron, Billets, and Ingots. TMT Bars are primarily used in the
construction sector.

The Power Division operates under an Independent Power Producer (IPP) model, supplying thermal power through power exchanges and
third-party agreements.

The Synthetic Division produces PP Woven Sacks, FIBC (Flexible Intermediate Bulk Containers), and Woven Fabric, catering to the
packaging needs of industries such as cement, fertilizers, food grains, sugar, among others.

Raw Materials

Steel manufacturing relies on M.S. Scrap and Sponge Iron, while Billets serve as the raw material for producing TMT Bars.

Power generation is primarily fueled by Coal, Dolochar, and other biofuels.

The synthetic packaging products are produced using PP Granules, which are abundantly available domestically and can also be freely imported.

Being engaged in commodity-driven markets, the Company consistently undertakes initiatives to optimize costs and enhance operational
efficiencies to sustain its profitability margins.

STEEL INDUSTRY

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Indian steel industry continued to demonstrate resilience and strategic growth, reaffirming its position
as the second-largest producer of crude steel globally. The sector benefited from robust demand driven by government-led infrastructure
initiatives, increased activity in the construction and real estate sectors, and sustained investments in transportation and renewable energy
projects.

The Government of India’s focus on infrastructure development under programs such as the National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) and
PM Gati Shakti, along with continued capital expenditure allocations in the Union Budget 2024-25, provided a strong impetus to domestic
steel consumption. Additionally, the Make in India initiative and the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme for specialty steel further
encouraged capacity expansion and value-added production across the sector.

However, the industry also faced multiple challenges during the year. These included:

- Fluctuating prices of key raw materials such as iron ore, coal, and ferroalloys, which led to margin pressure.
- Global price volatility due to geopolitical tensions and supply chain disruptions.

- Increased competition from imported steel, especially from countries offering lower-cost products.

Despite these challenges, Indian steel makers continued to invest in technology upgradation, capacity enhancement, and sustainability
initiatives such as adoption of green energy and carbon footprint reduction. The increasing shift toward electric arc furnaces (EAFs) and
energy-efficient technologies also signaled the industry’s gradual transition toward cleaner production processes in coming future.

The long-term outlook for the Indian steel industry remains positive, backed by strong domestic demand fundamentals, government policy
support, and increased focus on self-reliance in steel production. The company has also undertaken upgrades to align itself with industry
standards, ensuring it progresses in step with evolving industrial practices.

Global Scenario

* In 2024, the world crude steel production reached 1,884.6 million tonnes (MT) as per provisional data released by World Steel
Association. World Steel Association in its Short-Range Outlook, October 2024 forecasts that steel demand will grow by 1.2% year-on-
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year in 2025 and reach 1,771.5 MT after contracting 0.9% y-o0-y in 2024 to 1750.9 MT.

India is the second largest producer of crude steel. China was world’s largest crude steel producer in 2024 (1,005.1MT) followed by
India (149.4 MT), Japan (84.0 MT) and the USA (79.5 MT). (Source: World Steel Association and the data is provisional).

Per capita finished steel consumption in 2023 was 221 kg for world and 635 kg for China as per provisional data released by World Steel
Association. The same for India was 108 kg in 2024-25.

The global steel industry in FY 2024-25 witnessed a mixed performance, shaped by a combination of macroeconomic uncertainty,
regional disparities in demand, and an ongoing transition toward green steel and decarbonization initiatives.

Following are the major Steel Industries indicators under Global scenario:

Global Market Trends and Demand Dynamics

* Global steel demand remained subdued in several advanced economies due to high inflation, rising interest rates, and slower-than
expected recovery in sectors such as real estate and manufacturing.

* Incontrast, emerging economies, particularly in Asia and the Middle East, saw modest growth in demand driven by public infrastructure
investment and industrial development.

* The global construction sector — a major consumer of steel — remained under pressure, especially in China, where the real estate
slowdown continued to impact steel consumption.

Global Production and Pricing

Global crude steel production remained largely flat or declined marginally, with capacity utilization under pressure in several regions.
Steel prices experienced volatility throughout the year due to:

¢ Fluctuating input costs (iron ore, coking coal).

¢ Trade restrictions and protective tariffs.

* Geopolitical tensions, especially in Eastern Europe and the Middle East.
Global Sustainability and Green Steel Initiatives

 Sustainability became a central theme for global steel producers. Major players accelerated their shift toward low-carbon production
technologies, such as hydrogen-based steelmaking, Electric Arc Furnaces (EAFs), and the use of renewable energy.

* Regulatory pressures from the European Union’s Carbon Border Adjustment Mechanism (CBAM) and other climate frameworks
prompted steelmakers to align with ESG goals and invest in carbon capture and utilization (CCU) technologies.

Global Trade and Geopolitics

* The global steel trade landscape was marked by continued protectionist policies, with several countries imposing anti-dumping duties
and revising import/export norms.

Supply chain disruptions, lingering from the pandemic era and further aggravated by regional conflicts, affected the availability and cost
of raw materials and finished steel.

Domestic Scenario

During 2024-25, the following was the domestic industry scenario:

India remained the 2nd largest producer of crude steel globally during FY 2024-25, driven by continued expansion in production
capacity and strong infrastructure-led demand.

Domestic consumption grew moderately, supported by sectors such as construction, railways, automotive, capital goods,
and renewable energy.

Government infrastructure push through initiatives like PM Gati Shakti, National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), and Smart Cities Mission
contributed to sustained steel demand.

Policy support included customs duty rationalization, continued anti-dumping measures, and incentives under the Production Linked
Incentive (PLI) scheme for specialty steel.

Input cost pressures remained a concern due to fluctuations in iron ore and coking coal prices, impacting margins, especially for
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secondary steel producers.

Steel prices corrected during the latter half of the year in line with global market trends, leading to margin pressure despite
steady volumes.

Import pressure increased, particularly from countries with excess capacity, prompting calls for trade protection and stricter quality
checks.

Emphasis on green steel and decarbonization began gaining traction, with large integrated producers investing in cleaner technologies.

Overall, the domestic steel industry in FY 2024-25 demonstrated resilience amid global headwinds, supported by strong policy backing
and robust demand fundamentals.

Production

Crude Steel production stood at 112.011 MT. SAIL, RINL, NSL, TSL Group, AM/NS, JSWL Group & JSPL together produced 63.754
MT with a share of 57% in total production which was up by 0.3% over the CPLY. The rest amounting to 48.255 MT came from the
Other Producers. With 84% share in total Crude Steel production, the Private Sector produced 94.458 MT Crude Steel which was up
by 6.1% over the Corresponding Period Last Year.

Pig Iron production was at 6.332 MT, up by 13.2% over the CPLY. With a share of 27% in total Pig Iron production, SAIL, RINL, NSL,
TSL Group, AM/NS, JSWL Group & JSPL together produced 1.710 MT which was down by 1.5% over the CPLY. The rest came from
the Other Producers with a growth of 19.8% over the CPLY. The Private Sector produced 5.677 MT which was up by 11.5% over the
last year.

Finished Steel Production (non-alloy + alloy/stainless) in April-March 2024-25:
Production of Finished Steel stood at 107.192 MT showing a growth of 4.4% over last year.
Export of Finished Steel stood at 3.600 MT showing a decline of 24.6% over last year.
Import of Finished Steel was at 7.424 MT, up by 22.7% over last year.
India was a net importer of Finished Steel.
Consumption of Finished Steel was 111.493 MT showing a growth of 11.4% over the last year.
Data on production of Pig Iron, Sponge Iron and Total Finished Steel (alloy/stainless + non-alloy) are given below for last five years:

Graphical Representation of the Data:

- . . . L] -
Indian steel industry: Production (in million
tonnes)
| |
2024-25 | |
2023-24 i |
2022-23 | | ‘
2021-22 ‘ |
2020-21 ‘ |
50 100 150 200 250
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
M Piglron 4.88 6.26 5.86 7.36 8.33
M Sponge lron 34.38 39.2 43.62 51.56 55.65
Total Finished Steel 96.2 113.6 123.2 139.15 146.56
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m Demand - Availability

1. Demand Trends: TMT (Thermo-Mechanically Treated) Bars continued to see strong domestic demand during FY 2024-25, primarily
driven by:

. Government-led infrastructure development (roads, bridges, metro ralil, railways).

. Affordable housing projects under PMAY.

. Real estate recovery and urban construction.
. Expansion in industrial and logistics parks.
. The construction sector, which accounts for ~60% of TMT consumption, witnessed steady growth, resulting in an estimated

8-10% rise in TMT demand over the previous year.

2. Availability and Production: India’s installed TMT bar production capacity remained adequate to meet the rising demand, but regional
supply imbalances were observed:

. Eastern and Central India (Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, Odisha) had sufficient supply due to proximity to integrated steel plants.
. Western and Southern India witnessed tightness in supply, especially from small and medium-scale re-rollers, due to:

Rising input costs (sponge iron, billets).

Logistics constraints during monsoon and festive periods.

Lower capacity utilization by secondary producers.
. Overall availability was stable but under pressure during Q3 FY 2024-25 due to:

High scrap prices and billet shortages.

Temporary shutdowns in some induction and re-rolling units.

Shifting production priorities of integrated mills toward long products with better margins.

3. Price Dynamics

. TMT bar prices remained volatile, averaging between Rs.51,000 — Rs.56,000/tonne in major markets during FY
2024-25.
. Prices softened during Q3 due to subdued global steel sentiments and oversupply of billets in some zones but firmed up in Q4

with improved demand.

4. Demand-Supply Gap

. Although no major nationwide shortage was reported, localized shortfalls occurred, especially in the southern and northeastern
regions.

. Demand outpaced supply marginally in several infrastructure-driven states during peak construction months (Oct-Jan).

. Overall, the TMT market remained supply-constrained in some periods, particularly for specific sizes (8mm-12mm) and

customized grades.

5. Strategic Outlook

. Integrated players focused on expanding long product capacity, including TMT bars, to meet rising demand.
. Small and medium mills were affected by high working capital costs, impacting production consistency.
. Government’s continued focus on “Housing for All", Smart Cities, and urban renewal programs is expected to sustain robust

demand in coming years.
Conclusion

The demand for TMT bars in FY 2024-25 remained strong, with supply largely meeting market needs, albeit with regional and seasonal
tightness. Strategic investments and policy support are essential to bridge future demand-supply mismatches and ensure uninterrupted
availability.
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Imports
* Iron & steel are freely importable.

o Ferrous scrap imports declined sharply, falling by ~16% year-on-year to approximately 8.45 million tonnes in FY 2024-25, down from
~10 million Tones in FY 2023-24.

*  Containerised shipments dropped by around 18%, while bulk scrap imports increased modestly by ~3%, rising to 0.77 million Tones in
FY 2024-25.

o South India, particularly ports like Chennai and Visakhapatnam, saw a spike in bulk scrap arrivals — up from just 21,000 t in FY 24 to
150,000 tin FY 25, a more than six-fold increase.

*  Domestic ferro-scrap generation increased to ~32 Mt (up ~7% YoY), reducing reliance on imported feedstock.
e InFY 2024-25, ferrous scrap imports fell to ~8.45 Mt (-16%), even as domestic scrap output rose.
*  Bulkimport routes grew, particularly for South India, while containerised flows declined significantly.

* A combination of higher DRI/hot-metal output, increasing domestic scrap recycling, and trade disruptions reduced reliance on foreign
scrap.

*  Strategic shifts toward semi-finished imports (in the stainless steel segment) and evolving trade regulations are set to maintain
downward pressure on scrap imports going forward.

Exports

*  Export data specific to TMT bars remains limited, but aggregate records suggest ~100-150 export shipments during FY 2024-25,
indicating minimal volume compared to domestic output.

*  Primary export destinations included Maldives, Seychelles, Morocco, suggesting niche markets rather than large-scale industrial
demand.

o During the year a ~45% year-on-year decline in TMT bar shipments compared to the prior year, despite a sequential uptick in Q3-Q4
FY 25.

*  Reflects broader fall in long steel product exports, as exports of long and semi-finished steel dropped sharply by ~30% overall in FY
2024-25.

Opportunities for growth of Iron and Steel in Private Sector: The New Industrial Policy Regime
The New Industrial policy opened up the Indian iron and steel industry for private investment by:
a. removing it from the list of industries reserved for public sector; and

b. exempting it from compulsory licensing. Imports of foreign technology as well as foreign direct investment are now freely
permitted up to certain limits under an automatic route. Ministry of Steel plays the role of a facilitator, providing broad directions
and assistance to new and existing steel plants, in the liberalized scenario.

The Growth Profile

i.  Steel: The liberalization of industrial policy and other initiatives taken by the Government have given a definite impetus for entry,
participation and growth of the private sector in the steel industry. While the existing units are being modernized/expanded, a large
number of new steel plants have also come up in different parts of the country based on modern, cost effective, state of-the-art
technologies. In the last few years, the rapid and stable growth of the demand side has also prompted domestic entrepreneurs to set
up fresh greenfield projects in different states of the country.

ii. ~ Crude steel capacity was 154.23 mt in 2021-22 (provisional), and India, which was the 2nd largest producer of crude steel in the world
in 2021, as per rankings released by the World Steel Association, has to its credit, the capability to produce a variety of grades and that
too, of international quality standards.

iii. ~ Pig Iron: India is also an important producer of pig iron. Post-liberalization, with setting up several units in the private sector, not only
imports have drastically reduced but also India has turned out to be a net exporter of pig iron. The private sector accounted for 89% of
total production of pig iron (5.76 mt) in the country in 2021-22 (provisional).
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m iv. Sponge Iron: India, world’s largest producer of sponge iron, has a host of coal-based units located in the mineral-rich states of the
country. Over the years, the coal-based route has emerged as a key contributor and accounted for 77% of total Sponge Iron production

in the country during 2021-22 (provisional). Production of Sponge Iron making too has increased over the years and stood at 39.03 mt
during 2021-22 (provisional).

Tulsyan NEC’s performance vis-a-vis Indian Steel Industry Performance

Annual Industry Finished Growth Year Tulsyan NEC Growth Year

Steel Production Previous Year TMT Production In MTs Previous Year
(India)

2018-19 101.290 1,40,626

2019-20 102.620 1.31% 1,32,227 (5.97%)

2020-21 96.200 (6.26%) 82,565 (87.56%)

2021-22 113.600 18.09% 1,03,049 24.81%

2022-23 125.320 10.32% 1,37,632 33.56%

2023-24 138.825 10.77% 1,39,851 1.6%

2024-25 146.560 5.57% 1,29,667 (7.28%)

Since last year, the Company has performed adverse to the steel industry. In the year 2021-22, when the industry growth was 18.09%
Tulsyan NEC achieved a growth of 24.81%. In the year 2022-23, when the industry growth was 10.32% Tulsyan NEC achieved a growth of
33.56%. In the Financial year 2023-24, the growth was limited to 1.6% due to continuous drop in selling prices. The growth rate of overall
steel industry has declined to 5.57% which has affected the company’s overall growth dropping by 7.28%. The company has also upgraded
its machineries and equipment’s which lead increase in finance cost and operational loss during the year.

Outlook

While global steel demand is expected to recover gradually in the medium term, the path ahead remains dependent on macroeconomic
stability, geopolitical developments, and the pace of decarbonization efforts. The long-term transformation of the steel industry is expected
to be shaped by innovation, environmental regulations, and evolving consumption patterns.

POWER:
POWER INDUSTRY

India’s power sector, the sixth-largest globally, is continuously evolving to meet the pace of accelerated manufacturing, rapid urbanization,
and expanding agricultural activities. Rising domestic energy demand has driven notable advancements in power generation, transmission,
and distribution, with a dynamic shift towards renewable energy sources such as solar and wind.

India’s power industry is a dynamic sector with a diverse mix of energy sources, including both conventional and renewable options. While
thermal power (primarily coal) remains a significant contributor, India is actively expanding its renewable energy capacity, particularly solar
and wind, to meet its growing energy needs and sustainability goals. The country ranks sixth in terms of total energy production with 126.567
quadrillion British thermal units (BTU).

With a rapidly growing economy, increasing urbanization, and rising energy demand, India has made substantial advancements in power
generation, transmission, and distribution. The sector operates under a combination of central and state government policies, regulatory
frameworks, and private sector involvement.

A comparative analysis of power generation in India

India’s power sector has undergone a dynamic transformation, with notable shifts in its energy mix, capacity, and sustainability initiatives.
As of January 2025, the total installed power capacity stands at 466.26 GW. The breakdown is as follows: Wind power at 48.16 GW, solar
power at 97.87 GW, biomass/co-generation at 10.73 GW, small hydro power at 5.10 GW, waste to energy at 0.62 GW, and large hydro
at 46.97 GW. Despite efforts to reduce dependence on fossil fuels, coal remains the dominant source. However, renewable energy is
expanding rapidly.

Thermal power plant load is estimated to improve by 63% in FY 24, fuelled by strong demand growth along with subdued capacity addition
in the sector.
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The Indian power sector presents an investment opportunity worth Rs. 40,00,000 crore (US$ 461.95 billion) over the next decade, driven by
rising demand, infrastructure upgrades, and the transition to clean energy.

Total generation in India (including renewable sources) (BU)
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DEMAND AND SUPPLY:

In FY 2024-25, the peak demand met rose to 250.1 GW, registering a 4.2% increase over the previous year. Interestingly, this figure nearly
matched the total peak demand including unmet demand of 250.2 GW, indicating that the gap between demand and supply significantly
narrowed, with just 0.1 GW (118 MW) of demand unmet.

Comparison of Maximum Power Demand Met vs. Total Demand (Met + Shortage)
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India’s electricity generation in FY 2024-25 touched a new high of 1,821 billion units (BU) marking a continuation of the upward trajectory
since the pandemic slump. This represents a 5% year-on-year growth over the 1,734 BU generated in FY 2023-24. The pace of growth has
started to moderate. FY 2023-24 recorded a 7% increase over the previous year, and the year before that a sharp 9% rise.
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In FY 2024-25, India’s electricity generation rose across all sources. Thermal grew by 2.8% (1,326 BU to 1,363 BU), nuclear by 18.4% (48
BU to 57 BU), large hydro by 10.8% (134 BU to 149 BU), and renewables by 11.4% (226 BU to 252 BU).

Table 2 — Source wise year-on-year change in electricity generation

YOY % Change FY 2020-21 | FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25

Thermal -0.98 7.96
Nuclear -1.5 9.6 2.7 4.3 184
Large hydro -3.5 0.9 6.9 -17.4 10.8
Renewable energy 6.4 16.1 19.1 10.9 11.4

(Source: CREA)

Performance of Power Division

During the financial year 2024-25, Tulsyan NEC undertook a significant strategic shift in its Power Division — transitioning from a Captive
Power Producer (CPP) model to that of an Independent Power Producer (IPP). This strategic realignment was aimed at enhancing

operational flexibility and improving contribution to the company’s overall profitability.

While the base year 2023-24 as demonstrated in following chart showed strong potential for power sales through the Indian Energy
Exchange (IEX) platform, market dynamics during 2024-25 witnessed a sustained downward trend. As a result, it was not commercially
viable to sell power on the IEX platform from July 2024 to February 2025, leading to temporary idling of the power plant during this period.
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m Despite this operational downtime, the Power Division reported a notable improvement in performance — contributing Rs. 2,097 lakhs

to operating profit in FY 2024-25, compared to Rs. 1,408 lakhs in FY 2023-24. This improvement underscores the effectiveness of the
strategic shift and the division’s resilience in navigating market challenges.

During the financial year 202425, coal prices continued to play a pivotal role in determining the cost structure and profitability of thermal
power generation in India. While global coal prices moderated slightly from the peak levels witnessed in FY 2022-23, domestic coal
prices remained under pressure due to factors such as increased logistics costs, higher demand from core industries, and periodic supply
constraints.

The coal supply by Coal India Ltd. (CIL) and other domestic sources improved marginally; however, dependence on imported coal for
blending purposes persisted, particularly for coastal power plants. This exposed power generators to international price volatility. The
average landed cost of imported coal during H1 FY 2024-25 remained significantly higher than domestic supply, leading to higher variable
costs for thermal power producers.

In addition, thermal power plants operating under independent models or participating in power exchanges (such as IEX) faced margin
compression during periods of subdued electricity prices, especially in Q3 of FY 2024-25, making operations less economical.

The elevated coal prices and supply-side bottlenecks during FY 2024-25 adversely impacted the operational efficiency and profitability of
thermal power generators, particularly those without long-term fuel linkages or tariff protection mechanisms. Strategic sourcing, blending
optimization, and inventory planning became critical to maintain viability amidst cost pressures. The Coal prices in USD in the last 5 years
is as follows:

Coal Prices in USD
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Tulsyan NEC power project is dependent on the imported coal and as the costs remain very high with no possibility of increasing the selling
prices, the production had to be cut down which affected the performance of the Power division.

IIl. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Growth of Renewable Energy Sector and its Impact on the Thermal Power plants

* India is projected to witness a significant boost in thermal power generation investments, expected to reach Rs. 2,30,000 crore by
2027-28, nearly doubling the amount from the previous three years. This surge is attributed to the growing energy demand and the
need for stable base load capacity.

o According to Crisil Ratings, private sector involvement is anticipated to rise sharply, contributing around one-third of the total
investments, up from a mere 7-8% in recent years. The government has laid out plans to add at least 80 gigawatts (GW) of thermal
capacity by 2031-32, of which 60 GW has already been announced or is in various stages of execution, including 19 GW from private
developers. These upcoming projects are largely brownfield expansions that generally present fewer execution challenges compared
to greenfield developments.

*  Despite the encouraging investment outlook, certain operational challenges remain a major concern is the timely delivery of key
machinery components such as turbines and boilers, due to limited manufacturing capability and a large order backlog at core
suppliers. However, risks tied to fuel availability, electricity offtake, and tariff stability are relatively low. Most of the private projects are
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expected to become operational post-2028-29, factoring in the extended construction timelines involved.

India has been promoting development of Renewable Energy generation by offering various incentives and benefits. Such promotional
activities have indeed given results and substantial amount of counties energy requirements are being met from solar and wind projects
currently.

Solar power projects generate power during the day while the power requirement is at its peak during the night. Wind power is
generated only during the few months of the year and most of the time generation is uneven and especially during the months where
hydel power projects produce power.

Thermal power remains vital in India’s energy landscape, especially in meeting peak summer demand, contributing 54 per cent of
the total installed capacity of 446 GW (as of June 2024). However, coal-based capacity addition has slowed down and its share in
the generation mix has decreased due to a policy shift towards renewables and rising stressed assets in the thermal sector. As India
pursues its net-zero targets and aims for 500 GW of non-fossil capacity by 2030, the role of coal is shifting from baseload to balancing
renewable energy. To support this, thermal plants must be retrofitted for flexible, efficient operation during peak demand.

With central and state public sector undertakings contributing the majority of funding, the sector is poised for a robust expansion. The
renewed investor interest, particularly from private entities, signals a strategic pivot in India’s energy landscape, balancing renewable
ambitions with reliable thermal infrastructure for long-term energy security.

Power Capacity Additions by Energy Source (MW)

Energy Source 1Q 2024 20 2024 302024 402024 10 2025
:E,_ Wind Power 1,150 770 707 800 1,875
A5 Solar Power 8,405 3,661 5,288 7.103 7,782
£ Small Hydro 17 2 71 25 -
@ Biomass a4 - 369 4 15
— Waste to [
Energy 3 8 1 15 220
. (off-grid)
Large ’ -
| &gl hacpe 18 . 40 760
c%} Nuclear 700

| Coal '

. | (+ Lignite) 3,193 1| &0 1,320 2,843
@ Gas s (220) 3 = (285)
Diesel - - - - -

' Total 13,669 4221 6505 9,307 13,210

Sowurce: Central Electricity Authority, JMK Research, MNRE, IEEFA

In view of this Central Government is now promoting Thermal Power projects and further investment therein.

Threats:

Government intervention in the pricing at Energy Exchanges: The government has imposed a cap of Rs.10 Per unit for sale
of power through Exchanges which is unwarranted and is a retrograde measure in the sustainability of the sector.

Tendency of the Discoms to increase in transmission costs and related costs by avoiding increase in energy tariffs.
Volatility in International Coal prices.

Freebee culture adopted by some of the state government weaken the financial position of the Discoms and their ability to
buy the power at the market prices to meet the demand.

To tackle these challenges, the thermal generation sector must strategically plan and execute by ensuring a stable coal supply chain, even
during disruptions, by diversifying sources, improving logistics and maintaining higher stockpiles. The sector should learn from past mistakes
by adopting prudent investment strategies and optimising existing assets. To meet stricter environmental regulations, thermal plants must
upgrade to ultra-supercritical units, install SOx and NOx reduction equipment and explore carbon capture solutions.

Record renewables capacity in FY 24-25 signals India’s path beyond coal India’s power sector stands at a critical juncture, marked by
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record-high installed capacity and a rapidly evolving energy mix. With a total installed power capacity of over 475 GW, the country continues
to rely heavily on coal, yet the momentum behind renewable energy has never been stronger. Recent years have seen unprecedented
growth in solar and wind installations, alongside steady contributions from large hydro and other sources. At the same time, the sector faces
important questions about the future role of coal, the pace of capacity additions, and the reliability of supply as electricity demand continues
to rise.

India has 32.3 GW of thermal capacity under construction and 23.55 GW of stressed capacity. This new report from the Centre for Research
on Energy and Clean Air (CREA) finds that if all these plants are commissioned, total coal capacity would rise from 215 GW to 271 GW,
which is higher than projected installed capacity requirements, indicating that existing and under-construction capacity is sufficient to meet
future demand.

In FY 2024-25, the 230 GW peak demand met was crossed only on 60 days, compared to none in FY 2023-24. The number of days with
demand below 200 GW dropped from 116 to 37. Despite this rise, overall demand remains within the operational range of the existing
generation fleet.

In FY 2023-24, 305 out of 366 days saw their daily peak during solar hours. In FY 2024-25, this number was 256 out of 365. Peak demand
during non-solar hours remained significantly lower, rising from 210.64 GW to 224.18 GW. These levels are well within the capacity of the
existing and under-construction thermal, hydro, and other dispatchable sources.

On 30 May 2024, India recorded its highest-ever electricity demand at 250 GW, during solar hours with 0.1 GW shortage. Only 188.24 GW
of thermal capacity was online, with the remainder offline due to maintenance or forced outages. This demonstrates that even peak loads
can be met without utilising the full coal fleet, largely due to strong solar generation, which can contribute over 60 GW during daylight hours.

India currently has 234 GW of renewable energy capacity in the pipeline, which will further reduce pressure on thermal resources as solar
continues to dominate during peak hours.

All India installed capacity

@ Coal @Lignite ®Gas © Diesel 8 Nuclear ®Large hydro @ Renewable energy
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A recent study shows that India can meet its projected electricity demand by 2030 without adding any new coal capacity, if it achieves a
600 GW non-fossil target (377 GW solar, 148 GW wind, 62 GW hydro, 20 GW nuclear). Even under faster-than-expected demand growth,

this high-renewables pathway remains the most cost-effective. It would reduce power procurement costs while eliminating the need for new
coal plants.

However, realizing this scenario hinges on complementary investments: energy storage, transmission upgrades, and enhanced grid
coordination. Another study finds that if battery storage costs decline by 15% annually, India can cap coal capacity at 260 GW by 2030, as
planned in the National Electricity Plan, avoiding new coal entirely. Even with slower (7%) storage cost declines, coal use would plateau, and
only limited additional capacity may be needed to manage non-solar peaks. Renewables, even with integration and balancing costs, have
already become cheaper than coal-based generation, reducing reliance on costly thermal plants.

1ll. SEGMENT-WISE/ PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE
The production of steel rods was 129667 MT compared to 139851 MT in the previous year which showed a drop by 7.28%.

The production of power was 1643.70 Lac units compared to 1763.36 Lac units in the previous year registering a decline of 6.78% mainly
due to shift from Captive Power Plant to Independent Power Plant.

The production of synthetic products was 2372 MT compared to 2634 MT in the previous year a decline of about 10% over previous year.
The reduction in the production was on account of low demand for the products during the period.
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IV. OUTLOOK
Going forward, coal-based power generation plants must focus on four key considerations to remain competitive and sustainable.

l. First, preparing for flexible operation is essential as the increased penetration of renewable energy will require thermal plants to
operate more flexibly. This will necessitate additional capital and operational expenditures, along with changes in control
systems.

Il. Second, there must be a focus on adopting more efficient and sustainable technologies. Future capacity additions will likely
involve high-efficiency ultra-supercritical and advanced ultra-supercritical units, along with investments in SOx and NOx
reduction equipment and evaluations of cost-effective carbon capture and storage solutions.

ll.  Third, digitalisation will play a critical role, with data-driven decision-making powered by Al/ML for performance optimisation and
predictive maintenance, lloT initiatives for equipment performance monitoring and the use of analytics to enhance market
participation. Investments in emerging technologies such as AR/VR, drones and robotics will also be important.

V. Finally, achieving operational excellence will be crucial, with a focus on optimising heat rate, auxiliary power consumption and
oil consumption, as well as maintaining adequate coal stock, which has recently averaged seven to ten days.

The outlook for thermal generation remains stable, supported by several positive developments. An improvement in the thermal PLF has
been observed, alongside a reduction in outstanding dues from state discoms, driven by the implementation of the late payment surcharge
rules. Additionally, sustained growth in electricity demand is expected to enhance the prospects for signing new power purchase agreements
for thermal independent power producers, providing greater visibility and stability for the sector in the coming years.

V. RISK AND CONCERNS

The thermal generation sector faces major challenges, particularly in maintaining a stable coal supply. Seasonal rainfall disrupts coal
production and transportation, leading to critically low stocks, risking plant availability and potential blackouts. The sector’s heavy reliance
on coal makes any supply disruption impactful.

Another challenge is the issue of stranded or stressed assets, where significant investments in TPPs remain underutilised, creating financial
burdens. Tighter environmental regulations are also on the horizon, which, while necessary, may increase operational costs and complicate
long-term planning. Additionally, the growing presence of renewable energy requires TPPs to operate more flexibly, straining equipment and
increasing maintenance costs.

The persistent practice of providing free or highly subsidized electricity by various state governments. While politically motivated, this
approach undermines the financial stability of distribution companies (DISCOMs) and risks broader market disruption.

Key implications include:

. Financial Strain on DISCOMs: Reduced revenue collection hampers the ability of DISCOMs to maintain infrastructure, invest in
modernization, and meet operational costs.

. State Government Fiscal Stress: Continued free electricity policies can strain state budgets, limiting resources available for
development and other essential services.

. Market Disruption: Unsustainable subsidies can lead to sectoral inefficiencies, increased debt, and potential disruptions in
electricity supply.

. Policy Non-Compliance: Deviations from established electricity reforms and policies threaten sectoral reforms’ objectives,

risking long-term sustainability.
Addressing this issue requires:

. Strong political will to align policies with sector reform goals.

. Implementation of targeted subsidy schemes rather than widespread free supply.

. Regulatory measures to ensure adherence to reform frameworks.

. Public awareness campaigns to understand the importance of sustainable power policies.

Ultimately, a balanced approach that considers social equity while ensuring financial viability is essential for the power sector’s stability and
growth. The company is conscious of the risks involved and has put in place a mechanism for minimizing and mitigating the same. The
process is reviewed periodically.
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VI. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The company has proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with internal control system encompasses policies,
procedures, and measures designed to safeguard assets, ensure the accuracy and reliability of financial reporting, promote operational
efficiency, and ensure compliance with laws and regulations. In a power and steel company, which operates in complex, capital-intensive,
and regulated environments, a robust internal control system is vital.

Key Components of Internal Control Systems :

1. Control Environment

- Establishing a strong organizational culture emphasizing integrity, ethical behavior, and accountability.
- Clear organizational structure with defined authority and responsibility.

2. Risk Assessment

- Identifying risks related to operational, financial, regulatory, and environmental factors.
- Implementing measures to mitigate identified risks.

3. Control Activities

- Segregation of duties to prevent fraud and errors.

- Authorization and approval processes for transactions.

- Physical controls over assets like machinery, raw materials, and finished goods.
- Regular reconciliations and verification procedures.

4. Information and
Communication

- Reliable information systems for financial reporting and operational data.
- Effective communication channels across departments and levels of management.

5. Monitoring

- Ongoing internal and external audits.
- Periodic review of control procedures and corrective measures.

The internal control system in the company is comprehensive, dynamically updated, and effectively implemented to deal with sector-
specific risks. Its adequacy significantly impacts operational efficiency, financial integrity, regulatory compliance, and overall organizational
resilience. Continuous review and strengthening of controls are essential to adapt to evolving challenges and ensure sustainable growth.

VII. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company has achieved a Sales Turnover of Rs. 79,742.68 Lakhs which was reduced by 16.60 % over
last year's turnover of Rs. 95,599.52 Lakhs. The Comparative performance of major financial parameters during the financial years 2024-25

and 2023-24 is given below:

Amount (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Sales Turnover 79743 95600
Other Income 340 1753
Total Income 80083 97353
Profit before Interest, Depreciation, exceptional/abnormal items and Tax (EBIDTA) 1380 1555
Less: Interest 6415 3895
Less: Depreciation 2235 2488
Profit before Tax (PBT) before exceptional / abnormal items (7270) (4828)
Less: Exceptional items 0 0
Profit before Tax & OCI (4828) (4828)
Profit After Tax (7270) (5017)
Net worth 29477 36737
EBIDTA to Net sales (%) 1.73% 1.6%
PAT to Net worth (25%) (14%)
Debtors 9475 10363
Debtors Turnover (In days) 43 40
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Inventory 6995 7903
Inventory Turnover (In days) 32 30
EBIT (5035) (2340)
Interest Coverage Ratio 0.22 0.40
Current Assets 18385 19977
Current Liabilities 28504 22767
Current Ratio 0.65 0.88
Debt 24783 23865
Debt Equity Ratio 0.91 0.65
Operating Profit Margin (%) (9.12%) (5.05%)

VIil. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE
EMPLOYED

Your Company believes that Human Resources are the driver to its continued success by helping to meet the challenges of providing quality
products to the customers across the length and breadth of the country and penetrating key markets abroad. In order to strengthen its
human capital base, your Company continues to invest in human resources by retaining and developing its existing talent and also attracting
competent and talented manpower across functions.

Your Company maintained cordial and harmonious Industrial relations in all our manufacturing units. Several HR and industrial relations
initiatives implemented by the Company have significantly helped in improving the work culture, enhancing productivity and enriching the
quality of life of the workforce. All the above initiatives have contributed significantly to achieving and maintaining the market leadership, your
Company enjoy today. The total employee strength as on 31st March, 2025 is 464.

IX. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The above Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be
“forward looking Statement” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include external economic conditions
affecting demand/supply influencing price conditions in the market in which the Company operates, changes in Government regulations,
statutes, tax laws and other incidental factors.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823

Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025

Annual Report 2024-25 70




TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

g

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance philosophy of the Company believes in and adheres to good corporate governance practices, implements policies
and guidelines and develops a culture of the best management practices and compliance with the law coupled with the highest standards of
integrity, transparency, accountability, ethics and values in all facets of its business operations.

All the employees of Tulsyan NEC Limited (‘TNECL” or “the Company”) are committed to a balanced corporate governance system, which
provides the framework for achieving the Company’s objectives encompassing practically every sphere of management, from action plans
and internal controls to corporate disclosures.

TNECL also believes that sound corporate governance is critical to enhance and retain investor trust. Hence, our business policies are based
on ethical conduct, health, safety and a commitment to building long term sustainable relationships with relevant stakeholders. The Company
continues to strengthen its governance principles to generate long term value for all its stakeholders on a sustainable basis thus ensuring
ethical and responsible leadership both at the Board and at the Management levels.

Our corporate governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate information regarding our financials and
performance, as well as disclosures related to the leadership and governance of the Company.

TNECL'’s focus is not only to ensure compliance with the requirements as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time, regarding corporate governance, but is also
committed to sound corporate governance principles and practice and constantly strives to adopt emerging best corporate governance
practices being followed nationwide.

A report on compliance with corporate governance principles as prescribed under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, as applicable, is given below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The corporate governance structure of the Company comprises the Board, as the apex decision making body and the Executive Leadership
Team, comprising experts from various functions with rich knowledge and experience in the industry for providing strategic guidance and
directions in running and managing the Company. The Board of Directors (‘the Board”) are elected by the shareholders to oversee the
Company’s overall functioning. The Board is responsible for providing strategic guidance & supervision, overseeing the management
performance and governance of the Company on behalf of the shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board exercises independent
judgement and plays a vital role in the oversight of the Company’s affairs. To sum up, the Board’s key purpose is to ensure the Company’s
prosperity by collectively directing the company’s affairs, while meeting the appropriate interests of its shareholders and relevant stakeholders.

The Company’s day-to-day affairs are managed by the Executive Leadership Team under the overall supervision of the Board. The Board is
committed to representing the long-term interests of the stakeholders and in providing effective governance over the Company’s affairs and
exercising reasonable business judgement on the affairs of the Company.

(a) Composition and Category of the Board

Our Board represents an appropriate mix of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Independent Directors, which is in compliant with the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the SEBI Listing Regulations and is also aligned with the best practices of Corporate Governance.

The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised of 8 (eight)
members, consisting of 4 (four) Executive Directors and 4 (four) Non-Executive Independent Directors. Out of the total members, 1 (one)
member is an Independent Woman Director.

None of the Director serve as a Director in more than 7 (seven) listed companies. Further, none of the Director serves as an Independent Director
in more than 7 (seven) listed companies or 3 (three) listed companies in case he/she serves as an Executive Director in any listed company.

None of the Directors of the Company are a member of more than 10 (ten) Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 (five) Committees,
across all public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. Further, none of our Independent Directors serve as Non-Independent
Director of any Company on the board of which any of our Non-Independent Director of the Company is an Independent Director.
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Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria

of independence as mentioned under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are
independent of the management. They have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may
be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Further, the Independent Directors have also
submitted their declaration under compliance with the provision of Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, which mandated the inclusion of an Independent Director's name in the data bank of the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs
(“lICA”) for a period of 1 (one) year or 5 (five) years or life time till they continue to hold the office of an Independent Director. The Independent
Directors which are not exempted have appeared and passed the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test conducted by the [ICA.
The Composition of the members on the Board, including the directorships held by them in other listed companies and their committee
memberships/chairmanships in other public companies, and other required details for the FY 24-25 are listed in the table below:
Attendance Total No. of N.ames o ?gher
. listed entities
of the Committee . . . No. of
. Total No. of . including this
Directors ; . Membership | . . Shares
Name and DIN of the . Directorships listed entity where
. Category in the . or . held
Directors in other . . the person is
last AGM . Chairmanship . by the
Companies . a director and .
held on in other the category of Director
25/09/2024 Companies - category
directorship
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan Promoter & Yes 1 Nil 1 41,19,091
(DIN: 00632823) Managing Promoter &
D|rector. Managing Director
(Executive (Executive
Chairman) Chairman)
Sanjay Tulsyan Promoter & Yes 2 Nil 1 44,75,481
(D|NZ 00632802) Managing Promoter &
Director Managing Director
Sanjay Agarwalla Whole Time Yes 1 2 1 15,098
(DIN: 00632864) Director Whgle Time
Director
S. Chandrasekaran Whole Time Yes Nil Nil 1 2,000
(DIN: 10207445) Director Whole Time
Director
Manogyanathan Parthasarathy | Non-Executive Yes Nil 2 1 N.A.
(DIN: 08277111) Independent Non-Executive
Director Independent
Director
Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary* | Non-Executive Yes Nil Nil 1 N.A.
(DIN: 07410090) Independent Non-Executive
Woman Independent
Director Woman Director
J Sumathi* Non-Executive Yes Nil 2 1 N.A.
(DIN: 10752449) Independent Non-Executive
Woman Independent
Director Woman Director
Somasundaram Ponsing Non-Executive Yes Nil 1 1 N.A.
Mohan Ram Independent Non-Executive
(DIN: 08883633) Director Independent
Director
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Ravi Muthusamy Non-Executive Yes 6 2 3 N.A.

(DIN: 08066520) Independent a) Tulsyan
Director NEC Limited -
Non-Executive
Independent
Director

b) Swelect Energy
Systems Limited -
Non-Executive
- Independent
Director

c) Coromandel
Engineering
Company Limited -
Non-Executive
- Independent
Director

Note:
1. Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan are related to each other as Brothers.

2. During the Financial Year under review, the Members of the Company, upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board, at their 77th AGM held on September 25, 2024, regularised the appointment of Mrs. J Sumathi as an Independent
(Non-Executive) Woman Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years with effect from August 25, 2024 to August 24, 2029
(both days inclusive).

8. During the Financial year under review, the Board noted, by way of circular resolution passed on September 26, 2024, the completion of
tenure of Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary (DIN: 07410090) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Woman Director of the Company from
the closing business hours of September 26, 2024.

4. As required under Regulation 26(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Committees considered are Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee, including that of Tulsyan NEC Limited.

(b) Number of meetings of the Board

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board met 5 (five) times virtually on May 30, 2024; July 26, 2024; October 25, 2024; February 13,
2025; and March 27, 2025 respectively.

The Board met at least once in every calendar quarter and the gap between 2 (two) meetings did not exceed 120 (one hundred and twenty)
days.

Attendance details of the Directors in the Board Meetings held during the FY 2024-25 are given below:

Number of Board Meetings
Sl .
Name of the Directors Category Director was entitled
No. Attended
to attend
1. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan Promoter & Managing Director
. ) 5 5
(Executive Chairman)
2. Sanjay Tulsyan Promoter & Managing Director 5 5
3. Sanjay Agarwalla Whole Time Director
4 S. Chandrasekaran Whole Time Director 5 4
5. Manogyanathan Parthasarathy Non-Executive 5 5
Independent Director
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6. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary Non-Executive Independent o 2
Woman Director
7. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram Non-Executive
. 5 5
Independent Director
8. Ravi Muthusamy Non-Executive 5 5
Independent Director
9. J Sumathi Non-Executive Independent
. 3 3
Woman Director

(c) Board Membership Criteria and Selection Process

The responsibility for identifying and evaluating a suitable candidate for the Board is discharged by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”) as mandated under Section 178 of the Act read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. During the
candidate selection process, the NRC reviews and evaluates the Board’s composition and diversity of the Board / Committee to ensure
that it possesses the requisite blend of skills, experience, independence, and knowledge to sustain effectiveness. Diversity, from the NRC'’s
perspective, encompasses a broad spectrum of factors including but not limited to perspective, experience, education, background, ethnicity,
nationality, age, gender and other personal attributes. These attributes extend to encompass professional experience, functional expertise,
educational and professional backgrounds.

Annually, the Independent Directors furnish a Certificate of Independence, in accordance with the relevant laws, which is duly taken on record
by the Board. Encouraging collaboration and communication, all Board members are urged to engage and interact with the management.
Furthermore, Board Members are actively invited to pivotal meetings to contribute to strategic insights and guidance.

(d) Board Procedure

The Board and Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled based on the availability of the Director(s) to facilitate planning of their schedule
and ensure participation in the meetings. However, in case of urgent matters, subject to regulatory conditions, the Board’s approval is
taken by passing resolutions by circulation. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review and approve the quarterly financial
results/statements and other agenda items. The Committees of the Board usually meet prior on the same day of the Board meeting. The
recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval/noting. There was no situation / matter where the
Board has not accepted recommendation of the Committee.

The Board/Committee Agenda and related notes are made available to the Directors, at least 7 (seven) days in advance of the meetings,
electronically through e-mail. All material information is incorporated in the agenda along with supporting documents. Where it is not
practicable to attach any document to the agenda, the same is tabled at the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. In
special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda are permitted.

The Board reviews strategy and business plans, annual operating plans and capital expenditure budgets, investment and exposure limits,
compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances,
if any. To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the Chairperson provides an overview of the overall performance of
the Company at the meeting of the Board of directors. The Board also reviews major legal issues, if any, minutes of meetings of various
committees of the Board and subsidiary companies, significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies,
approval of financial results and statements, transactions pertaining to purchase or disposal of properties, major accounting provisions and
write-offs, material defaults, if any, and any other information as required under Regulation 17(7) read with Schedule Il Part A of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, as amended.

The Company Secretary records Minutes of the proceedings of each Board and Committee meeting. Draft Minutes are circulated to Board
/ Committee Members within prescribed timelines as per the Act and Secretarial Standards. Directors communicate their comments, if any,
on the draft minutes in writing, within 7 (seven) days from the date of circulation. The Minutes are entered in the Minute Books within 30
(thirty) days from the conclusion of the Meeting and signed by the Chairperson. The copy of the signed Minutes are made available to all
the Directors.

The guidelines for Board and Committee Meetings facilitate an effective post meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for decisions
taken by the Board and its Committees thereof. Important decisions taken at Board/Committee Meetings are promptly communicated to the
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meeting of the Board/Committee for acknowledgement and review. This practice not only ensures that actions are implemented in a timely
manner but also provides a mechanism for ongoing assessment and improvement.

(e) Meeting of the Independent Directors

Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors of
the Company met once on February 13, 2025 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the management. They
had discussed and reviewed the below -

* the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
* the performance of the Chairperson of the Company after taking into account the views of the Executive Directors;

o the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board, that is necessary for the
Board to perform their duties effectively and reasonably.

The evaluation of Independent Directors is done by the entire Board of Directors of the Company which includes:

* Performance of such directors; and

o Fulfilment of the Independence criteria and their Independence from the management.

(f) Details of Familiarization Programmes imparted to Independent Directors

The familiarisation programme for our Directors is customised to suit their individual interests and area of expertise.

To uphold governance standards, Independent Directors were kept abreast of all regulatory and policy changes, along with their associated
roles, rights, and responsibilities. Moreover, as part of the induction program, Directors engaged in meaningful interactions with members
of the senior management team, fostering a collaborative environment and facilitating a smooth integration into the Company’s culture and
operations.

The Company through its Managing Director / Leadership Team makes presentations regularly to the Board/Audit Committee/such other
Committees, as may be required, covering, inter-alia, business environmental scan, the business strategies, operations review, quarterly
and annual results, budgets, review of Internal Audit reports, statutory compliances, risk management and operations of subsidiaries, etc.
Such presentations and documents provides an opportunity to the Independent Directors to interact with the senior leadership team of the
Company and help them to understand the Company’s strategy, operations, service and product offerings, markets, organization structure,
finance, human resources, technology, quality and risk management and such other areas as may arise from time to time.

The Company also encourages the Directors to visit the plant / branch offices of the Company to feel the experiences and also directly
interact with the concerned operations team personnel.

The details of familiarization policy and the details of programs imparted to Independent Directors of the Company are available on the
following web link of the Company: www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

(g) Board Evaluation

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board, as per the criteria laid down by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, had carried out the annual performance evaluation for the performance of the Chairperson, Board and its
Committees, Executive Directors and Non-executive Independent Directors through peer evaluation, excluding the director being evaluated.

Accordingly, for the financial year 2024-25, the Board had undertaken this exercise through self-evaluation questionnaires. These
questionnaires focused on critical aspects such as -

* Board dynamics and other aspects towards Board effectiveness
* Board Composition, Quality and Culture

* Board Meeting & Procedures
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m * Execution & performance of specific duties

* Board & Management relations

* Succession Planning

* Committee effectiveness

o Evaluation of the Chairperson, Executive and Non-Executive Independent Directors.

The feedback-cum-assessment of individual Directors, the Board and its Committees, were compiled and the performance evaluation report
was discussed by Independent Directors and the Board / Committees for the FY 2024-25. In order to further uphold the effectiveness of
the Board’s governance, an overview of the suggestions as drawn from the evaluation exercise was deliberated and recommended for
implementation in due course of time, by the Board.

(h) Key expertise and attributes of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of qualified personnel who possess relevant skills, expertise and competence for
the effective functioning of the Company. In compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following key
qualifications / skills / expertise / competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company which are taken into consideration
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee while recommending appointment / re-appointment of any candidate to the Board of the
Company.

The skills which are currently available with the Board have been mapped below:

Areas of Expertise
Board
Board of Financial | Gender ethnic, | o service and Sales
Directors Management national, or business Leadership | Technology | governance and
9 other diversity including Risk | marketing
Management

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan v v v v v v v
Sanjay Tulsyan v v v v v v v
Sanjay Agarwalla v v v v v v v
S. Chandrasekaran v v v v v v v
Manogyanathan
Parthasarathy v v v v v v
J Sumathi v v v v v v
Somasundaram
Ponsing Mohan Ram v v v v v v
Ravi Muthusamy v v v v v v

(i) Role of Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer and plays a key role in ensuring that effective board procedures are followed and
reviewed periodically. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Act and provisions
of all other laws applicable to the Company. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made
available to the Board of Directors for effective decision-making at the meetings. The Company Secretary is also the interface between the
management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. All the Directors of the Company have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various committees to focus on specific areas and to make well-informed decisions within their designated

Annual Report 2024-25 76



TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

&

scope. Each committee is directed by its charter which outlines their scope, roles, responsibilities and authorities. All decisions and
recommendations originating from these Committees are subsequently placed before the Board for its approval, ensuring alignment with
the Company’s overarching objectives.

The Company'’s guidelines pertaining to the Board Meetings are extended to the Committee Meetings to the fullest extent feasible, ensuring
consistency and adherence to best practices. Moreover, each Committee possesses the authority to engage external professionals, advisors
and legal counsels as deemed necessary to augment their functions and decision-making processes.

To facilitate comprehensive discussions and informed decisions, senior officers and functional heads are invited to present relevant details
by the Committee at its meeting. This collaborative approach ensures that the Committees have access to pertinent information and
expertise, ultimately enhancing their effectiveness in fulfilling their mandates.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to all Committees of the Board as detailed below:
A. Audit Committee
(a) Brief description of Terms of Reference:

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee (“AC”) which acts as a link between the management, external and internal auditors
and the Board of Directors of the Company. The committee’s role flows directly from the board’s oversight function and delegation
to various committees. It acts as an oversight body for transparent, effective anti-fraud and risk management mechanisms, and
efficient Internal Audit and External Audit functions financial reporting. The Audit Committee considers the matters which are
specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors besides considering the mandatory requirements of the Regulation 18 read with
Part C of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations and provisions of Section 177 of the Act. The brief description of the terms of
reference of the Committee is given below:

The terms of reference and responsibilities of the committee include review of the quarterly, half- yearly and annual financial
statements before submission to Board, review of compliance of internal control system, approval or any subsequent modification
of transactions with related parties, oversight of the financial reporting process to ensure transparency, sufficiency, faimess and
credibility of financial statements, recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company etc. The Committee also reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit function and control systems. The
committee meets at least once in a calendar quarter.

During the financial year under review, 4 (four) meetings of the Audit Committee were held virtually on May 30, 2024; July 26, 2024;
October 25, 2024 and February 13, 2025 respectively.

(b) Composition of the Committee and attendance details:

Composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 31, 2025, are given below:

Number of Meetings
o Name of the Members Category Position Director was
No. entitled to Attended
attend
1. Manogyanathan Parthasarathy Non-Execut_Ne Independent Chairman 4 4
Director
2. Sanjay Agarwalla Whole Time Director Member 4 4
3. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary Non-Executive _ Member 5 5
Independent Woman Director
4. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram Non-Executive
. Member 4 4
Independent Director
5. Ravi Muthusamy Non-Execut_lve Member 4 4
Independent Director
6. J Sumathi Non-Executive
Independent Woman Director Member 2 2
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m During the financial year under review, Mrs. J Sumathi was appointed as the Member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. September 27,
2024, in place of Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary whose tenure was completed and hence resigned from the Board and the
Committee w.e.f. September 27, 2024. Apart from this, there were no other changes in the composition of the Committee.

The members of the Committee possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance, audit, governance and legal matters. Senior staffs
from the Finance & Accounts Department and representatives of the Statutory and Internal Auditors, attends the Audit Committee
meetings, whenever required.

B. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
(a) Brief description of Terms of Reference:

The Company has constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (“SRC”) pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 20 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The SRC is primarily responsible for redressal of
the grievances of shareholders / investors / other security holders whilst reviewing measures and initiatives taken to reduce the
quantum of unclaimed dividends, ensure timely receipt of dividend / annual report / notices and other information by shareholders,
ensures effective exercise of voting rights by the shareholders / investors and redress such other grievances as may be raised by
the security holders from time to time.

It also ensures that service standards adopted by the Company in respect of services rendered by our Registrars and Share
Transfer Agent are met and takes note of the Internal Annual Audit Report and observations along with action taken in this regard.

During the financial year under review, two (2) meetings of the SRC were held on May 30, 2024 and March 27, 2025, respectively.
(b) Composition of the Committee and attendance details:

Composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members, for the year ended March 31, 2025, are given below:

Number of Meetings
Sl. Name of the Members Category Position Director was
No. entitled to Attended
attend
1. M than Parth th - i
anogyanathan Parthasarathy Non Executllve Chairman 5 D)
Independent Director
2. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary Non-Executive Ipdependent Member 1 y
Woman Director
3. Sanjay Agarwalla Whole Time Director Member 2 2
4, J Sumathi * - i
umathi Non-Executive Ihdependent Member 1 1
Woman Director

During the financial year under review, Mrs. J Sumathi was appointed as the Member of the SRC w.e.f. September 27, 2024, in
place of Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary whose tenure was completed and hence resigned from the Board and the Committee
w.e.f. September 27, 2024. Apart from this, there were no other changes in the composition of the Committee.

Mrs. Parvati Soni, Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Compliance Officer of the Company.
Following are the details of the complaints received and disposed off during the year ended March 31, 2025:

* Received during the year: 1

* Disposed off during the year: 1

* Not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders: Nil
* Remaining unsolved at the end of the year: Nil

The quarterly statement on investor complaints received and disposed of are filed with Stock Exchange within the due date from the
end of each quarter and the statement filed is also placed before the subsequent meeting of the Board of Directors.
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Further, with regards to the unpaid or unclaimed dividend, the Company has already sent out reminders to the shareholders to claim
their unpaid or unclaimed dividends which are transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘1EPF’).

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(a) Brief description of Terms of Reference:

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘CSRC”) pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The CSRC is primarily responsible to assist the Board in discharging its social responsibilities by way of
formulating, monitoring and implementing a framework in line with the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company.

The terms of reference of the CSRC are in line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, which inter alia
includes the following:
 |dentifying the areas of CSR activities, its implementation and monitoring;
*  Formulate and amend the CSR Policy, from time to time;
¢ Adoption of the Annual Action Plan or modification thereof;
*  Oversee the Company’s CSR program, strategy, initiatives, execution and disclosures;
* Reporting progress of various initiatives with respect to CSR.
During the financial year under review, no meeting of the Committee was held.
(b) Composition of the Committee and attendance details:

Composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members, for the year ended March 31, 2025 are given below:

Number of Meetings
ol Name of the Members Category Position Director was
No. . Attended
entitled to attend
1. Sanjay Agarwalla Whole Time Director Chairman 0 0
2. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary Non-Executive Ipdependent Member 0 0
Woman Director
3. Manogyanathan Parthasarathy Non-Executllve Member 0 0
Independent Director
4. J Sumathi Non-Executive Ipdependent Member 0 0
Woman Director

During the financial year under review, Mrs. J Sumathi was appointed as the Member of the CSRC w.e.f. September 27, 2024, in
place of Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary whose tenure was completed and hence resigned from the Board and the Committee
w.e.f. September 27, 2024. Apart from this, there were no other changes in the composition of the Committee.

D. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
a) Brief description of Terms of Reference:

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC”) constituted pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 19,
read with Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The NRC has been
vested with the authority to recommend nominations for Board membership, succession planning for the senior management
and the Board, develop and recommend policies with respect to composition of the Board commensurate with the size, nature
of the business and operations of the Company, establish criteria for selection of Board Members with respect to competencies,
qualifications, experience, track record, integrity, devise appropriate succession plans and determine overall compensation policies
of the Company.

The scope of the NRC also includes review of the market practices, decision on the remuneration to the Executive Director(s) and
laying down of performance parameters for the Chairperson, Managing Director, Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnels
and Senior Management.
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In addition to the above, the NRC's role includes identifying persons who may be appointed to a senior management position in
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their appointment and removal.

The NRC also formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The
Committee on a periodical basis, recommends to the Board, policies relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management. The Policy on Director's Appointment and Remuneration is available on our website at: www.
tulsyannec.in/investors.

The NRC has undertaken the exercise to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. Feedback is sought by way of structured
questionnaires covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its
committees, Board culture, execution & performance of specific duties, obligations and governances. Performance evaluation is
carried out based on the responses received from all the Directors.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors is based on various criteria including Qualification & Experience, Leadership,
Governance, Commitment, Contribution, Expertise, Independence, Integrity, Attendance, Responsibility, among others.

During the financial year under review, one (1) meeting of the NRC was held on July 26, 2024.
(b) Composition of the Committee and attendance details:

Composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members, for the year ended March 31, 2025 are given below:

Number of Meetings
=l Name of the Members Category Position Director was
No. entitled to Attended
attend
1. Manogyanathan Parthasarathy Non-Execut.Ne Chairman 1 1
Independent Director
2. Antonisamy Axilium Non-Executive
Jayamary * Independent Woman Member 1 1
Director
3. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram Non-Executive
) Member 1 1
Independent Director
4. Ravi Muthusamy Non-Execut'lve Member 1 1
Independent Director
5. J Sumathi * Non-Executive
Independent Woman Member N.A. N.A.
Director

During the financial year under review, Mrs. J Sumathi was appointed as the Member of the NRC w.e.f. September 27, 2024, in place
of Mrs. Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary whose tenure was completed and hence resigned from the Board and the Committee w.e.f.
September 27, 2024. Apart from this, there were no other changes in the composition of the Committee.

PARTICULARS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Pursuant to Regulation 16(1)(d) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, following persons are considered under the Senior
Management Personnels of the Company as on March 31, 2025:

1) Mr. Shanthakumar R P, Chief Financial Officer (KMP)

2) Mrs. Uma M, (GM-Finance)

3) Mrs. Parvati Soni, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (KMP)
4) Mr. Gudur Venkata Suresh Babu (Vice President — Power Plant)

5) Mr. G. Nagesh, President (Operation)
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REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has a well-defined policy for remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The policy
of the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture and enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate employees to
achieve results. The policy is available on the Company’s website at www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

During the year under review, there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive cum Independent Directors vis-a-vis
the Company, which has potential conflict with the interest of the organisation at large. The criteria of making payment to non-executive
directors are available in the aforesaid Policy and can be accessed from the company’s website at www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option and will receive sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee
thereof (subject to certain limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant Rules made thereunder), reimbursement of
expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings and profit related commission, if any, and as may be approved by the Members.

While deciding on the remuneration for Directors, the Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consider the performance of
the Company, the current trends in the industry, the qualifications of the appointee(s), their experience, past performance and other relevant
factors. The Board and the NRC regularly tracks the market trends in terms of compensation levels and practices in relevant industries
through participation in structured surveys. This information is used to review the Company’s remuneration policies.

At the time of appointment or re-appointment of the Managing Director / Whole Time Director, they shall be paid such remuneration as may
be mutually agreed between the Company and the Director and as recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board within the overall
limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 subject to approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting.

Detailed information of Directors Remuneration / Sitting fees paid for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 are given below:

Name of the Director Category Total Remuneration Sitting fees
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan Managing Director 12,000,000
(Executive Chairman)
Sanjay Tulsyan Managing Director 12,000,000
Sanjay Agarwalla Whole-time Director 55,00,000
S. Chandrasekaran Whole-time Director 16,50,000
Manogyanathan Parthasarathy | Non-Executive Independent Director - 4,00,000
Antonisamy Axilium Jayamary Non-Executive Independent - 2,00,000

Woman Director

Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan | Non-Executive Independent Director - 4,00,000
Ram

Ravi Muthusamy Non-Executive Independent Director - 4,00,000
J Sumathi Non-Executive Independent 2,00,000

Woman Director
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Disclosure with respect to remuneration pursuant to item (iv) of third proviso of section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013
read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as amended:

SI.
No.

Particulars

Details

Directors

1. All elements of remuneration package such as salary,
benefits, bonus, stock option, pension, etc. of all the

The information relating to remuneration package such as salary,
benefits, bonus, stock option, pension, etc, of all the Directors has
been stated in the above table.

2. Details of fixed Component and performance linked
incentives along with the performance criteria

The total remuneration includes all perquisites & other benefits. No
performance linked incentives was paid to the Directors.

3. Service Contract, notice period, severance fees

As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised of 8 (eight) Members,
including 4 (four) Executive Directors and 4 (four) Non-Executive
Independent Directors. All executive directors are employees of the
Company. Hence, the provision for payment of severance fees to
them shall be as per the terms mentioned in the Company’s policy.
However, other Directors are not subject to any notice period and
severance fees.

4, Stock option details, if any and whether the same had
been issued at a discount as well as the period over
which accrued and over which exercisable.

Not Applicable

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

I. Annual General Meetings

The date, time, location of Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 (three) years and the special resolutions passed thereat are as

follows:
Year Date & Time Venue Special Resolution(s) Passed
2021-2022 | September 30, Through Video Conferencing | a) Re-appointment of Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (DIN: 00632823)
2022 at 11.30 a.m. | (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual as a Managing Director (Executive Chairman) of the Company,
Means (OAVM) liable to retire by rotation, for a further period of 5 (five)

consecutive years w.e.f. July 11, 2022.

b) Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (DIN: 00632802)
as a Managing Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation, for a further period of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f.
September 30, 2022.

c) Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (DIN: 00632864) as a
Whole Time Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation,
for a further period of 5 (five) consecutive years September 21,
2022.

2022-2023 | September 15,

2023 at 11.30 a.m.

Through Video Conferencing
(VC) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (OAVM)

a) Re-appointment of Mr. Manogyanathan Parthasarathy (DIN:
08277111), as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director of the
Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years with
effect from November 13, 2023 till November 12, 2028 (both
days inclusive)

b) Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Ravi Muthusamy (DIN:
08066520) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Director of the
Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect
from June 21, 2023 till June 20, 2028 (both days inclusive).
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c) Regularisation of appointment of Mr. S. Chandrasekaran (DIN:
10207445) as a Whole Time Director of the Company for a term
of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from June 21, 2023 till
June 20, 2028 (both days inclusive).

d) Approval of the Related Party Transactions with M/s. Tulsyan
Smelters Private Limited for a period of 2 years starting from
the conclusion of 76th AGM till the conclusion of the 78th AGM
of the Company.

e) Approval of the Related Party Transactions with M/s. Chitrakoot
Steel and Power Private Limited for a period of 2 years starting
from the conclusion of 76th AGM till the conclusion of the 78th

AGM of the Company.
2023-2024 | September 25, Through Video Conferencing | a) Regularisation of appointment of Mrs. J Sumathi (DIN:
2024 at 11.30 a.m. | (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual 10752449) as an Independent (Non-Executive) Woman
Means (OAVM) Director of the Company for a term of 5 consecutive years with
effect from August 25, 2024 to August 24, 2029 (both days
inclusive).

During the financial year under review, no Special Resolution was passed by the Company through Postal Ballot. None of the business
requiring passing of a Special Resolution have been proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot.

Il. Means of Communication

@)

Financial Results: The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results are normally published in daily newspapers viz.,
Trinity Mirror (English Language) and Makkal Kural (Vernacular Language) and are also displayed on the Company’s website
at www.tulsyannec.in.

News Releases, Presentations: Official news/press releases are disclosed to the Stock Exchange i.e. the BSE Limited from
time to time and are also displayed on the Company’s website at www.tulsyannec.in.

Presentations to Institutional Investors / Analysts: No presentations were made to institutional investors / analysts during
the year under review.

Website: The website of the Company i.e. www.tulsyannec.in contains a separate and dedicated “Investors” section to
serve shareholders, by giving complete information pertaining to the Board of Directors and its Committees, annual reports
along with supporting documents, financial results including subsidiaries financials, stock exchange disclosures and compliances
such as shareholding pattern, corporate governance report and press releases, Notice of the Board and General Meetings,
contact details of Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, details of unclaimed or unpaid dividend and Investor Education
and Protection Fund ('IEPF’) related information, amongst others. These are made available on the website in a user-friendly
and downloadable form.

BSE Listing Centre: BSE Listing Centre is a web-based application designed by BSE for the smooth filing of information by
the Corporates, with the stock exchange. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance
report, press releases, financial results and other disclosures under the SEBI Listing Regulations are electronically filed on BSE
Listing Centre.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (“SCORES”): Investor complaints are processed through a centralized web-based
complaints redressal system. Centralised database of all complaints received, online upload of the Action Taken Reports
(ATRs) by the Company, online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and the current status are
updated/resolved electronically in the SEBI SCORES system.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

@)

Company Registration Details: : The registered office of the Company is Tulsyan NEC Limited, 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3,
New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai-600034 and it is registered in the State of Tamil Nadu, India. The Corporate Identity
Number (‘CIN’) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) is L28920TN1947PLC007437.

Annual Report 2024-25 83




%

TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
(b) Annual General Meeting:

Day, Date and Time Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 11.30 a.m. (IST)

Venue* The 78th AGM will be held through Video Conferencing (VC) or
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)

Financial Year April 01, 2024 — March 31, 2025

E-Voting start and end date Sunday, September 14, 2025 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on
Tuesday, September 16, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST).

Cut Off date (e-voting) Wednesday, September 10, 2025

Listed on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited
PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001

Stock Code BSE - 513629

International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”) INE463D01016

Payment of Annual listing fees to the Stock Exchange Paid

(c) Dividend Payment Date: The Company has not declared any interim/final dividend during the financial year under review.

Unclaimed Dividend: The shareholders may note that no further amount of unpaid / unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares are
pending with the Company in order to transfer to the IEPF.

Dividend remitted to IEPF during the financial year 2024-25: Nil
Shares transferred to |EPF during the financial year 2024-25: Nil
(d) Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents:

Cameo Corporate Services Limited (CAMEO)
Subramanian Building, No.1, Club House Road
Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu
Phone: 044-2846 0390

Fax: 044-2846 0129

Email: murali@cameoindia.com

(e) Share Transfer System: The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to review and resolve the complaints by
shareholders which may arise from time to time and the status of such complaints or requests is placed before the Board. The Company
has complied with the requirements as specified under Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations for effecting transfer of securities
of the Company.

Physical transfer of shares of the listed Companies is barred by the SEBI and transfers are mandated only in dematerialised form.
However, shareholders are not barred from holding shares in physical form. Further, transmission or transposition of securities held in
physical or dematerialised form shall be effected only in dematerialised form.

Transfers of equity shares in electronic form are effected through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form.

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode have been requested to furnish PAN, nomination, contact details, bank account details
and specimen signature for their corresponding folios. Shareholders may contact the RTA at murali@cameoindia.com in this regard.

Shareholders are advised to refer the latest SEBI guidelines/circulars issued for all the holder holding securities in listed companies in
physical form from time to time and keep their KYC details updated at all times, to avoid freezing their folio as prescribed by the SEBI.
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(f) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025:
Shareholdings in Rs. | Total Number of Equity | Percentage of Total Equity Share Capital Percentage of Total
Shareholders Equity Shareholders in Rs. Equity Share Capital
10 to 5000 4358 87.3171 45,53,960 2.7323
5001 to 10000 261 5.2294 20,69,760 1.2418
10001 to 20000 142 2.8451 21,07,550 1.2645
20001 to 30000 54 1.0819 13,84,290 0.8305
30001 to 40000 22 0.4407 8,05,150 0.4830
40001 to 50000 24 0.4808 11,30,830 0.6784
50001 to 100000 48 0.9617 34,64,220 2.0785
100001 & above 82 1.6429 15,11,50,900 90.6905
Total 4991 100.0000 16,66,66,660 100.0000

Note: The Company issued and allotted 16,66,666 equity shares on a preferential basis to 11,50,000 equity shares to India Special Assets
Fund Ill (a scheme of ISAF Ill) and 5,16,666 equity shares to ISAF Ill Onshore Fund (a scheme of Edelweiss Credit Opportunities Trust),
respectively, on March 31, 2023. The Company has received the listing and trading approval from the BSE on August 22, 2024 and
September 03, 2024, respectively.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: As on March 31, 2025, 94.17% of the equity shares were in electronic form. Trading in equity
shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form. The Company’s equity shares are actively traded on the BSE Limited.

Further, as mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), existing Members of the Company, who hold securities
in physical form and intend to transfer their securities, can do so only in dematerialised form. Hence, shareholders who hold shares in
physical form are requested to dematerialise their shares to ensure such shares are freely transferable.

Outstanding Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) or American Depository Receipts (ADRs) or Warrants or any Convertible
Instruments, Conversion Date and likely impact on Equity: The Company has not issued any convertible instruments/ADRs/GDRs/
warrants as on the date of this report.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Foreign Exchange Risks for the Company arise from (a)
payment obligations arising from imports of raw materials / capital goods, services availed from overseas service providers and foreign
currency loans, (b) export transactions. The details of foreign currency exposure and hedging are disclosed in Notes to Standalone
Financial Statements.

Plant locations:

Steel Division D-4, SIPCOT Industrial Complex, Gummudipoondi-601201, Tiruvallur District, Tamil Nadu.

(@) Thermal Power plant: No.17, Sithurnatham Village, Gummidipoondi-601201, Tamil Nadu.

Power Division
(b) Windmill: Pazhavoor, Tirunelveli District, Tamil Nadu.

Synthetics Division | 7-A, Doddaballapura Industrial Area, Kasba Hobli, Karnataka.

Address for correspondence:

Registered Office:

Tulsyan NEC Limited,

Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600034, Tamil Nadu
Phone: 044-61991060

Fax: 044-61991066, email: investor@tulsyannec.in

Website: www.tulsyannec.in
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Credit Ratings:

The Company has not issued any instruments during the year requiring credit rating.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

(@)

Materially Significant Related Party Transactions:

During the financial year under review, no materially significant related party transactions or arrangements were entered into between
the Company and its Promoters, Management, Directors or their relatives, Subsidiaries, etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large.

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with such Transactions, which
specifies the manner of entering into Related Party Transactions. This policy has also been hosted on the website of the Company at:
www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:

The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2013, the rules prescribed thereunder, and the
SEBI Listing Regulations is implemented through the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy to enable the Directors, employees and all
stakeholders of the Company to report genuine concerns, to provide for adequate safeguard against victimisation of persons who use
such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website at www.tulsyannec.in/investors and can be accessed therein.

The directors in all cases and employees in appropriate cases have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The
Company affirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

During the year, no complaint was received under the above mechanism.
Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries:

The Company has formulated a policy for determining Material subsidiaries as defined under the SEBI Listing Regulations. This policy
is also placed on the Company’s Website at: www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

Details of Material Subsidiaries of the Company:
The Company does not have any material subsidiary as on the date of this report.

Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the
board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years:

2022-2023 | financial results for the quarter ended | GST @ 18%) was | Company, thereafter, submitted the results to the

Financial . i . Fine Imposed by .
Year Details of Non-Compliance / delay the BSE Limited Action taken by the Company
The Management stated that the delay in
Fine amount | submission of the quarterly financial results was

of Rs.64,000/- | due to certain unavoidable circumstances i.e.
Delay in submission of the quarterly | (Rs. 55,000 plus | transition of the Company’s ERP to SAP ERP. The

31.12.2022 to the BSE Limited levied by the BSE | BSE on 25.02.2023. The delay was unintentional
Limited on March | and subsequently it was complied with. The
14,2023 Company has paid the fine amount levied to the

BSE within the due date.
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a) Delay in submission of the annual

Fine amount of
Rs. 1,29,800/- was

The Management stated that the delay in
submission of the annual audited financial results
for the financial year ended 31.03.2023 to the BSE
was due to the technical issue in transition of the

audited financial results for the : existing accounting software from
20262024 | fnancal year ended 31.08.202810the | oo ™ 1€ BSE | gpp Yo o cuing the first year of
BSE Limited. 2023 " | implementation. The delay was unintentional and
subsequently it was complied with. The Company
has paid the fine amount levied to the BSE within
the due date.
The Management stated that the
non-compliance ~ was  unintentional  and
caused due to inadvertence. It has occurred
b) Non-submission of in-principle | Fine amount of Rs. | without any malafide intention on the part
listing application to the BSE before | 59,000/- was levied | of the Company. Condonation of delay
the issuance of 16,66,666 equity | by the BSE Limited | applicaton was submitted to the SEBI
shares on a preferential basis. on June 15, 2023 and BSE. The Company has received the
listing approval from BSE on August 22, 2024. The
Company has paid the fine amount levied to the
BSE within the due date.
Fine amount of Th_e M_anagement stated that t_he delay was
¢) Delay of 25 days in filng of lising | Rs. 590,000 | Unintentional and caused due fo inadvertence. It
o . . has occurred without any malafide intention on the
application with the BSE after | was levied by the art of the Company. The Company has received
allotment of 16,66,666 equity shares | BSE Limited on part 0 P fy s pany
on March 31, 2023, September 26, the listing approval rom B .E on August 22, 2024.
2093 The Cqmpany has paid the fine amount levied to the
BSE within the due date.
The Management stated that the Company was
trying its best efforts for making the payment of
principal/interest overdue amount at the earliest and
simultaneously was under the process of seeking
waiver from the NCD holders.
The Company has delayed in )
submission of the disclosure with Therefore, the Company delayed and submitted
respect to default in payment of the disclosure on January 08, 2025 to the BSE with
interest/principal  towards  unlisted respect to default in payment of interest/principal
Non-convertible  Debentures  with towards unlisted Non-convertible Debentures.
oopa-p0p5 | e stock exchange as required |\ Thereafter, the Company also informed the BSE on

under Regulation 30 read with Part
A of Schedule IIl of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and Section V-B of the
SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/
HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated
November 11, 2024.

January 09, 2025, that it has obtained the approval
from the NCD holders to reschedule the interest
and Principal redemption time lines in order to suit
the current market conditions and that the final
confirmation shall be received from the NCD holders
within a fortnight and the Company would not be in
default thereafter.

The Company assures to comply with the revised
terms of repayment and coupon servicing of NCDs
in due course of time.
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Details of compliance with mandatory and discretionary requirements:

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements prescribed by the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Company has also
complied with below mentioned discretionary requirements as stated under Part E of Schedule Il to the SEBI Listing Regulations, as
under:

*  Modified opinion(s) in audit report: During the financial year under review, there was modified opinion in your Company’s audit
report and the Company has given required disclosure in the prescribed format to the BSE on such modified opinion.

*  Reporting of Internal Auditors: The Internal Audit Report provided by the Internal Auditors are being reviewed by the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis.

Further, the Company has complied with the requirements of corporate governance specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b)
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under
Regulation 32 (7A):

The Company had allotted 16,66,666 equity shares on March 31, 2023, at a face value of Rs. 10 each on a preferential basis, at a price
of Rs. 36 including a premium of Rs. 26 per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 6,00,00,000 to India Special Assets Fund Il (a scheme
of ISAF ll) & ISAF Ill Onshore Fund (a scheme of Edelweiss Credit Opportunities Trust), both advised by Edelweiss Alternative Asset
Advisors Limited and both are Category Il Alternative Investment Funds (“AlFs”).

As on March 31, 2025, the total funds, raised through Preferential allotment, have been utilized for capital expenditure.
The Company has not raised any funds through qualified institutions placement.

Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditors of the
Company:

The details of payment made to the statutory auditors on consolidated basis are available under Note No. 36(a) of the notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements which forms part of this Annual Report.

Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice:

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(i), Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has
received a Certificate from Mr. M. Damodaran, Managing Partner in M/s. M Damodaran & Associates, LLP, Company Secretaries in
Practice, Chennai, certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or to continue as Directors of the Company by the SEBI or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. This
certificate is annexed as “Annexure-l” to this report.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:
a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: NIL

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NIL

¢. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NIL

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/ companies in which
directors are interested by name and amount’:

The details of loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms / companies in which directors are interested are available in the notes
to Financial Statements which forms part of this Annual Report.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account:
The Company does not have any securities in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.
Code of Conduct:

The Code of Conduct (‘the Code’) for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel as adopted by the Board, is a comprehensive
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Code applicable to Directors and Senior Management Personnel. The Code lays down in detail, the standards of business conduct,
ethics and strict governance norms for the Board and Senior Management Personnel. A copy of the Code is available on the website
of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in/investors . The Code has been circulated to Directors and Senior Management Personnel and
its compliance is affirmed by them annually. It is hereby declared that the members of Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading:

The Company has formulated a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading for its designated persons, in
compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time. The Directors, officers, designated persons and other connected persons of the Company are governed by the Code. The Code
is also posted on the website of the Company at www.tulsyannec.in/investors.

Disclosure by Senior Management Personnel:

The Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material, financial and
commercial transactions where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.

CEO and CFO Certification:

As required under Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule Il Part B of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Executive Chairman and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company have furnished to the Board, the requisite Compliance Certificate for the financial year ended March
31, 2025, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Compliance Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance:

The Company has obtained a certificate from Mr. M. Damodaran, Managing Partner in M/s. M Damodaran & Associates, LLP, Company
Secretaries in Practice, Chennai, regarding compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance and is annexed as “Annexure-ll” to
this Report.

Agreement on compensation of profit sharing in connection with dealings in securities of the Company:

During the financial year under review, no employee including Key Managerial Personnel or Director or Promoter of the Company had
entered into any agreement, either for themselves or on behalf of any other person, with any shareholder or any other third party with
regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with dealings in securities of the Company.

Disclosure of Certain Types of Agreements Binding Listed Entities:

The Company has not received any intimation/notification concerning agreements entered into by the shareholders, promoters,
promoter group entities, related parties, directors, key managerial personnel, employees of the listed entity or of its holding, subsidiary
or associate company, among themselves or with the listed entity or with a third party, solely or jointly, which, either directly or indirectly
or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management or control of the listed entity or impose any restriction or create
any liability upon the listed entity.

Declaration on Code of Conduct:

Tulsyan NEC Limited is committed to conducting its business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations and with
highest standards of business ethics. The Company has adopted a “Code of Conduct and Ethics” which is applicable to all directors
and employees, amongst others.

| hereby confirm that all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics with respect to the financial year 2024-25.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632823

Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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To,

Annexure-l

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Members of TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
(CIN-L28920TN1947PLC007437)

1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77,
Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600034.

We, M Damodaran & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and
disclosures received from the Directors of TULSYAN NEC LIMITED having CIN - L28920TN1947PLC007437 and having registered office
at 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’),
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V
Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at
the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025 have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of

Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in
No. Company

1. | Mr. SanjayTulsyan 00632802 01/10/1996

2. Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan 00632823 12/07/1996

3. | Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla 00632864 22/09/2011

4. Mr. Manogyanathan Parthasarathy 08277111 13/11/2018

5. Mr. Somasundaram Ponsing Mohan Ram 08883633 19/09/2020

6. | Mr.Ravi Muthusamy 08066520 21/06/2023

7. | Mr.Subramanian Chandrasekaran 10207445 21/06/2023

8. Ms. Jagannathan Sumathi 10752449 25/08/2024

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chennai
Date: 06-06-2025

For M DAMODARAN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Sd/-

M. DAMODARAN

Managing Partner

Membership No.: 5837

COP. No.: 5081

FRN: L2019TN006000

PR 3847/2023

ICSI UDIN : F005837G000555419
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Annexure-ll
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members,

TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

CIN - L28920TN1947PLC007437

1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3,

New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road,
Chennai - 600 034.

We, M Damodaran & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance by M/s. Tulsyan NEC Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended 31st March 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 of
Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”).

The compliance of the conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to review
of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to us, We certify that the company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2025.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For M DAMODARAN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Sd/-

M. Damodaran

Managing Partner

FCS No.: 5837

COP. No.: 5081

FRN: L2019TN006000

PR 3847/2023

ICSI UDIN: F005837G000992834

Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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CEO - CFO CERTIFICATION
[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

We, Lalit Kumar Tulsyan, Executive Chairman and Shanthakumar R P, Chief Financial Officer, responsible for the finance function of the
Company, hereby certify that:

A.  We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on March 31, 2025 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting
Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the
audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps have been
taken to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the audit committee that during the year-
i. there have not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting;

ii. there have not been any significant changes in accounting policies and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

iii. there have not been any instances of significant fraud with involvement therein of the management or any employee having a
significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan Shanthakumar R P
Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00632823

Place: Chennai
Date: 13-08-2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members
TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
Chennai

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of TULSYAN NEC LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report ,the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,(“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, net loss, (changes in
equity) and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Balance confirmations and ECL Provisioning:

As stated in Note no. 7 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has not received balance confirmations for trade receivables
outstanding for more than 180 days as at 31st March 2025. These receivables constitute approximately 53% in value of the confirmations
sought. For receivables outstanding for less than 180 days, confirmations were received in a substantial number of cases.

The management has represented that it undertook a comprehensive process of seeking balance confirmations from all customers and
made multiple follow-up efforts. Despite these efforts, a significant portion of the older balances remain unconfirmed.

The Company has also informed us that it remains confident of recovery of these balances and is evaluating an assignment of certain
receivables as part of its recovery plan. Further, the Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables during the year in
respect of trade receivables and, based on its assessment, has not recorded any significant ECL provision beyond this.

However, in the absence of direct confirmations and sufficient alternative audit evidence regarding the recoverability of these older balances,
we are unable to determine whether any further adjustments are necessary to the carrying value of these receivables by way of additional
provisioning, write-offs, or write-backs.

Accordingly, our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 is qualified to the extent of the possible effects
of adjustments, if any, that may be required on account of the forementioned matter.

Emphasis of Matter:

The Company has serviced the interest and principal payable on the Non-Convertible Debentures on time in all months except from
December 2024. There has been an agreed Moratorium from Dec 2024 to Mar 2024. (Reference is drawn to Note 3 of Standalone
Financial Statements)

According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year one Windmill was sold and from June 2024 to February 2025,
Power plant was under shutdown. (Reference is drawn to Note 6 of Standalone Financial Statements)

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis of
Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.No | Key Audit Matter

Litigations - Contingencies

Auditor’s Response

Principal Audit Procedures

Assessment of litigations and related disclosure of contingent
liabilities [Refer to Note 2 (a) to the Standalone financial
statements- “Use of estimates and critical accounting
judgements — Provisions and contingent liabilities”, Note 44
to the Standalone Financial Statements — “Contingencies”.
As at March 31, 2025, the Company has exposures towards
litigations relating to various matters as set out in the aforesaid
Notes.

Our audit procedures included the following:

* We understood, assessed, and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls surrounding
assessment of litigations relating to the relevant laws and
regulations;

*» We discussed with management the recent developments
and the status of the material litigations which were reviewed
and noted by the audit committee;

Significant management judgement is required to assess such
matters to determine the probability of occurrence of material
outflow of economic resources and whether a provision

should be recognised, or a disclosure should be made. The | * We performed our assessment on a test basis on the

management judgement is also supported with legal advice
in certain cases as considered appropriate. As the ultimate
outcome of the matters are uncertain and the positions taken

underlying calculations supporting the contingent liabilities/
other significant litigations made in the Standalone Financial
Statements;

by the management are based on the application of their best
judgement, related legal advice including those relating to
interpretation of laws/regulations, it is considered to be a key
audit matter.

* We considered external opinions, where relevant, obtained
by management;

¢ We evaluated management’s assessments and assessed
the reliability of the management's past estimates/
judgements;

» We assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures.

Based on the above work performed, assessment in respect
of litigations and related disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities/ other significant litigations in the Standalone
Financial Statements are considered to be reasonable.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
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the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), net loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality
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m and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and subject to our Qualified Opinion Paragraph we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit;

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books, except that reporting under Rule 11(g) is separately commented upon in paragraph (i)(v).

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure “A”. Our report expresses and unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) The modification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) on
reporting under Sec. 143(3)(b) and para (i)(v) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  TheCompany hasdisclosedtheimpact of pending litigations onits financial position in the standalone financial statements — refer
note 44 to the financial statements;

ii. ~ The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are no material foreseeable
losses.
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There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

(i)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
orinvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

a. directlyorindirectlylendorinvestinotherpersonsorentitiesidentifiedinanymannerwhatsoever(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
by or on behalf of the Company or

b.  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

b.  provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (i) and (i) contain any material
misstatement.

Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 (Revised 2025 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting software for maintaining
its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements carried out in accordance with the
Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We
have not carried out any audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule 11(g) nor
have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

))  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For M/s. CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004915S5/5200036

Sd/-

E.K.Srivatsan

Partner

Membership No: 225064
UDIN:25225064BMJMQQ8467

Place: Chennai
Date: 30th May, 2025
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w Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Tulsyan
NEC Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub — Section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting.

Meaning of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

A Company’s Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s. CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004915S5/5200036

Sad/-

E.K.Srivatsan

Partner

Membership No: 225064
UDIN:25225064BMJMQQ8467

Place: Chennai
Date: 30th May, 2025

Annexure B to The Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025:

i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) We are informed that the company has formulated a programme for physical verification of all Property, Plant and equipment over
a period of three year which, in our opinion is reasonable considering the size of the company and the nature of its assets.
Accordingly, the Property, Plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.
(d) The Company has not revalued the Property, Plant and equipment or Intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to information and explanation given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (prohibitions) Act,1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) (a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; Discrepancies noticed were less than 10% for
each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned
any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

iii) (2) The Company has not made investments in, provided guarantee or security and granted loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Further, the Company has stood guarantee
during the year as follows:
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Loans | Advances in | Guarantees | Security
nature of loans | (Rs in Lakh)

A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:

- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Others 34

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases:*

- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Others 34

The Company has not provided any loan or security to any other entity during the year.

(b) In our opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, Guarantee provided, during the year are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) Inour opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, company has not granted any loans and advances
in the nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv)(c) of the Order does not arise.

(d) Inour opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, company has not granted any loans and advances
in the nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv)(d) of the Order does not arise.

(e) Inour opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, company has not granted any loans and advances
in the nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv)(e) of the Order does not arise.

In our opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, company has not granted any loans and advances
in the nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv)(f) of the Order does not arise.

iv)  Inour opinion, and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not granted any loans, provided
any guarantees or securities, or made any investments during the year to parties covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, compliance with sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of granting loans, providing
guarantees and securities, and making investments, is not applicable to the company.

v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order does not arise.

vi)  We have reviewed the cost records maintained by the company as prescribed by the central government under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records are made and maintained. We
have, however not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete

vii) () According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, and
records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess,
Goods and Services Tax and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases of Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance.

b) According to the records of the company and the information and explanation given to us the details of disputed dues not
deposited are as follows:
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Nature of Due Amountin | Period to which it relates/Due | From whom the Dispute is
Lakh Date pending
Excise 849.30 | Up to June 2017 CESTAT Chennai
Excise/Service Tax 235.27 | April 2013 - June 2017 CESTAT Bangalore
Cancellation of FIBC and demand for 168.18 | February 2010 to September 2011 | Ministry of Finance
repayment of Duty Drawback - Secretary
TNEB 2,312.85 | 2004-14 TANGEDCO
Income Tax Appeals 47.11 | 2010-11 CIT (Appeals)
GST 9.70 | Apr 2023 - Oct 2023 GST (Appeals )
VAT 128.52 | 2012-13 VAT AC - HC
Interest on Excise/ VAT - | April 2012 - June 2017 CESTAT / VAT AC - HC
viii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, we have not come across any transactions not recorded

Xi)

xii)

xiii

in the books of account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not been declared as willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not obtained any term loans
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the order
is not applicable.

(a) Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) No Whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year.
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, paragraph (xii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of transactions during the
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year have been disclosed in Note 49 of the Standalone Financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xxiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit Reports of the company for the period under audit.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us in our opinion during the year, the company has not entered into non
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its Directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act 2013 are not applicable to the company.

xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Hence, Clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) According to information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence Clause (xvi)(c) does not apply.

(d) According to information and explanation given to us the Company does not have any CIC, accordingly the requirements of
Clause (xvi)(d) is not applicable.

xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 5,232.88 Lakhs in the current financial year covered by our audit and
Rs. 2,340.25 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is not applicable.

xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due

xx)  The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more
or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135
of the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the year..

xxi) - Reporting under this clause will be applicable only in Independent Auditor’s report of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

For M/s CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004915S/5200036

Sa/-

E.K.Srivatsan

Partner

Membership No: 225064
UDIN:25225064BMJMQQ8467

Place: Chennai
Date: 30th May, 2025
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted

along-with Annual Audited Financial Results - (Standalone)

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025
[Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016)
Amount (Rs in Lacs)

L Sl. Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported before adjusting | (audited figures after adjusting

for qualifications) for qualifications)
1 Turnover / Total income 80,083.08 80,083.08
2 | Total Expenditure 87,352.69 87,352.69
3 | Net Profit/(Loss) (7,269.61) (7,269.61)
4 Earnings Per Share (44.16) (44.16)
5 | Total Assets 80,944.22 80,944.22
6 | Total Liabilities 80,944.22 80,944.22
7 | Net Worth 27,327.76 27,327.76
8 | Any other financial item(s) 0.00 0.00

(as felt appropriate by the management)

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

Details of Audit Qualification:

As stated in Note no. 7 to the standalone financial results, the Company has not received balance confirmations for trade
receivables outstanding for more than 180 days as at 31st March 2025. These receivables constitute approximately 53%
in value of the confirmations sought. For receivables outstanding for less than 180 days, confirmations were received in a
substantial number of cases.

The management has represented that it undertook a comprehensive process of seeking balance confirmations from all
customers and made multiple follow-up efforts. Despite these efforts, a significant portion of the older balances remain
unconfirmed.

The Company has also informed us that it remains confident of recovery of these balances and is evaluating an assignment
of certain receivables as part of its recovery plan. Further, the Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables
during the year in respect of trade receivables and, based on its assessment, has not recorded any significant ECL provision
beyond this.

However, in the absence of direct confirmations and sufficient alternative audit evidence regarding the recoverability of these
older balances, we are unable to determine whether any further adjustments are necessary to the carrying value of these
receivables by way of additional provisioning, write-offs, or write-backs.

Accordingly, our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 is qualified to the extent of the
possible effects of adjustments, if any, that may be required on account of the aforementioned matter.

Type of Audit Qualification: (Qualified Opinion / Disclaimer of Opinion / Adverse Opinion)
Qualified Opinion

Frequency of qualification: (Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since how long continuing)
Repetitive

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the Auditor, Management’s Views:
Not quantified by the Auditor
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(ii)

(il

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the Auditor:

Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:
Management has not made an estimate of the impact.

If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

As at 31st March 2025, the Company has outstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs. 9,475 lakhs, a portion of
which have been outstanding for more than 180 days. During the year, the Company undertook a detailed exercise to
confirm the validity and recoverability of these receivables. Confirmation requests were issued multiple times covering
100% of the receivables, using both physical and electronic means.

The Company received confirmations for a substantial portion of receivables outstanding for less than 180 days.
However, for receivables outstanding beyond 180 days (which constitute approximately 65% of total trade receivables
by value), direct confirmations were not received in many cases, despite repeated follow-up. The Company attributes
the lack of response primarily to the apprehension of legal action on overdue balances, given the Company’s recent
focus on recovery.

Nonetheless, the Company has verified the genuineness of the underlying transactions, maintains ongoing
commercial relationships with most of these customers, and remains confident of recovery. The Company is also
actively considering the assignment of certain receivables as part of its recovery strategy.

In accordance with its assessment of the expected credit loss (ECL) under the applicable financial reporting
framework, the Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables during the year and believes that no
further material provisioning is warranted as of the balance sheet date.

Auditors’ Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

Management should take considerable efforts to estimate the impact of qualification.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan
Managing Director

DIN: 00632802

Place : Chennai.

(FRN No. 0049158/ S200036)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
M. Parthasarathy Shanthakumar R P E. K. Srivatsan
Independent Director and Chief Financial Officer Partner
Audit Committee Chairman M.No. 225064
DIN : 08277111

Date : 30th May, 2025
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025 (Rs. In Lakhs)
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
. As at As at
REDHEES AEES March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 52,006.41 54,010.40
Intangible assets 4 43.06 60.06
Capital work in progress 5 709.23 237.32
Lease Assets - ROU 4(a) 87.23 80.53
Asset Held For Sale
Financial assets
Investments 6 648.92 648.92
Other financial assets 7(a) 3,115.44 2,993.84
Deferred Tax Assets 7(b) 5,723.47 5,723.47
Other non-current assets 8 225.89 234.95
Total non-current assets 62,559.65 63,989.48
Current assets
Inventories 9 6,995.13 7,902.68
Financial assets
Investments 10 3.91 5.16
Trade receivables 1 9,475.33 10,363.20
Cash and cash equivalents 12 26.96 115.31
Bank balances other than above 13 4.94 2.44
Other financial assets 14 - -
Other current assets 15 (a) 1,440.08 1,588.29
Assest Held for Sale 15 (b) 438.22 -
Total current assets 18,384.58 19,977.07
Total Assets 80,944.23 83,966.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 1,646.14 1,655.14
Other equity 17 25,681.62 35,082.18
Total equity 27,327.76 36,737.32
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 22,601.07 21,904.02
Other financial liabilities 19(a) 2,182.05 1,960.87
Lease Asset Liability 19(b) 2.64 -
Provisions 20 326.30 597.62
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 21 - -
Total non-current liabilities 25,112.07 24,462.51
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22 12,445.74 9,539.70
Trade payables 23 12,363.61 12,255.69
Other financial liabilities 24(a) 214.15 269.27
Lease Asset Liability 24(b) 419 -
Provisions 25 52.50 59.19
Other current liabilities 26 3,638.36 698.01
Total current liabilities 28,504.41 22,766.73
Total liabilities 53,616.47 47,229.25
Total Equity and Liabilities 80,944.23 83,966.57

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan M. Parthasarathy E.K.Srivatsan

Managing Director Executive Chairman Director Partner

DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823 DIN : 08277111 M.No. 225064

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Chennai. CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni
Date : 30th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts are in lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Continuing Operations
Income
Income from Operations
Other Income
Total income
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Employee benefits expense
Power & fuel
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit/ (Loss) before tax from continuing operations
Income tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax credit/ (charge)
Income tax Earlier Years
Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
Income tax relating to these items
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the year
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Notes

27
28

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

37

38

39

For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
79,742.68 95,599.52
340.41 1,753.40
80,083.08 97,352.92
63,252.18 83,748.79
689.35 2.51
(276.11) (24.32)
2,217.23 2,272.13
8,418.26 5,159.02
2,234.91 2,487.85
6,414.63 3,895.34
4,402.24 4,639.72
87,352.69 102,181.04
(7,269.61) (4,828.12)
(7,269.61) (4,828.12)
= (188.93)
(7,269.61) (5,017.05)
8.15 (223.73)
8.15 (223.73)
(7,261.45) (5,240.78)
(44.16) (30.31)
(44.16) (30.31)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 0049155/ S200036)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan M. Parthasarathy E.K.Srivatsan
Managing Director Executive Chairman Director Partner
DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823 DIN : 08277111 M.No. 225064

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Chennai. CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni
Date : 30th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts are in lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

For the
year ended
March 31, 2025

For the
year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit before income tax (7,269.61) (4,828.12)
Adjustments for 8.15
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,234.91 2,487.85
(Profit)/ loss on sale of fixed assets (178.34) (1,708.78)
Profit on sale of Investments 1.25 2.63
Finance cost 6,414.63 3,895.34
Interest Income (123.97) (7.78)
NCD Redemption Premium (2.148.14)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1,061.11) (158.86)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in loans - -
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (121.60) (1,958.96)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 907.55 1,934.04
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 887.86 (621.12)
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets 157.26 557.28
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions,
other financial liabilities and other liabilities 2,886.16 (1,891.02)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (102.03) 3.398.21
Cash generated from operations 3,554.08 1,259.59
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) - (141.99)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (A) _ 355408 _ 111759
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWIP) (1,222.27) (404.23)
Sale proceeds of PPE 269.85 5,748.48
(Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks (net) (2.50) 4.59
(Purchase)/ disposal proceeds of Investments (net) - -
Interest received 123.97 7.78
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (830.95) 5.356,62
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (net of share application money) - 0.00
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings (net) 697.05 (2,122.02)
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings (net) 2,906.04 (2,047.14)
Finance cost (6,414.63) (3.459.77)
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 2,811. 7.628.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (88.35) (1,154.72)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 115.31 1.270.03
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 26.96 115.31
Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 "Cash Flow Statements".
2. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 21.44 109.40
Cash on hand 5.52 591
26.96 115.31

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date aftached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan M. Parthasarathy E.K.Srivatsan
Managing Director Executive Chairman Director Partner
DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823 DIN : 08277111 M.No. 225064

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Chennai. CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni
Date : 30th May, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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M Tulsyan NEC Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate Information

“The company is engaged in the manufacturing of TMT bars, Coal Based Power Plant and Synthetics Woven fabrics and sacks. It has
manufacturing plants at Chennai (Gummudipoondi) and Bangalore (Doddaballapura).”

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on
the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods.

Functional and presentation currency

“These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30th May, 2025.”
2A Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Company is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life on straight line method. The depreciable

amount for assets is the cost of an asset. Once the asset is depreciated to its residual value, it is carried on in its residual value.

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account the
nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance support.
Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation.

Intangible assets and amortization
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired by the Company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any
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% accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash generating unit level.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortization is recognized
in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available
for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets.
Intangible Assets are amortized over a period of five years.

Current tax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and management's judgement by evaluating
positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of relevant provisions of law.

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting date to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market quotes are not available.
In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as
far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not
observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary
from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The assumptions,
selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market conditions and
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of Non-financial assets - PPE

The impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable amount of such assets. The assumptions
used in computing the recoverable amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount
rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Defined Benefit Plans and other long term employee benefits

“The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value of such obligation are determined by the
independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future.
Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, this obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
management uses valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
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Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on
past experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from
the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

2B Recent accounting pronouncements

MCA (Ministry of Corporate Affairs) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. MCA issued notifications on 31st March
2023 These amendments are applicable to the company for the financial year starting 1st April 2023.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
i)y Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

iiiy  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified 6 months as its operating cycle.

b) Fair value measurement
The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability;
i) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable; and

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and procedures for both recurring and
non-recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s
board of directors. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The
component wise fair value measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.

c¢) Revenue Recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership
is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per the inco-terms agreed with the customers.

“Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise duty and after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes
on sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption.”

Sale of services

Income from sale of services is recognised when the services are rendered as per the terms of the agreement and when no significant
uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

Power Generation

Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement with the State Electricity Board/ Electricity
Distribution Companies are consumed at factories. The monetary values of such power generated that are captively consumed are not
recognised as revenue.

Export entitlements

In respect of the exports made by the Company, the related export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the right to receive the incentives/ entitlements as per the terms of the scheme is established and where there is no
significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.
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M Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

d) Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Presentation

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

“Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date, are disclosed as capital advances under
long term loans and advances and the cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital
work in progress.”
Component Cost

All material/ significant components have been identified and have been accounted separately. The useful life of such component are
analysed independently and wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful life of components
are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs
and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed assets and their issue is expected to be
irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and
when consumed.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life on straight line method. The depreciable
amount for assets is the cost of an asset. Once the asset is depreciated to its residual value, it is carried on in its residual value.
Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. For deletion/ disposals, the depreciation
is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing 5000 each
or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Inventories

“Raw materials, Components, Stores and Spares and Work-in-Progress are valued at cost. Finished goods are valued at cost or realizable
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value whichever is less. The basis of determining cost for various categories of inventories are as follows:

() Raw materials, components, stores and spares: At lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value.

(i) Work-in-process : At lower of cost of raw material and component including related overheads and net realizable value.
(iii) Finished goods: At lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes raw material components and related overheads.”

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g) Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their contractual cash flow characteristics and
the entity’s business model of managing them.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

. Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost

. Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at Fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

. Other Financial Instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost

The Company classifies a financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost, if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at FVTOCI
The Company classifies a financial instrument (other than equity instrument) at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

The financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value

Annual Report 2024-25 114




TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

g

movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes finance income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI financial instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at FVTPL

The Company classifies all financial instruments, which do not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and
loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified
as at FVTPL. Where the Company makes an irrevocable election of equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income, without any recycling of the amounts from OClI to profit and loss, even on
sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual terms give rise to cash flows on
specified dates that represents SPPI, are measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset
Amortised cost “Trade receivables, deposits, interest receivable, and other advances recoverable in cash.”
FVTOCI “Equity investments in companies other than subsidiaries and associates if an option exercised at the time

of initial recognition.”

FVTPL “Other investments in equity instruments”

Derecognition
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangementl and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
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a) Financial assets other than equity instruments, and that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and
bank balance.

b) Financial assets, other than equity instruments that are measured at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

* Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
o Alllease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the
Company considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various financial
instruments is described below:

. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented
as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

. Financial instruments, other than equity instruments, measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected
at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated
impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified
on a timely basis.

For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each reporting date. Other financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the following
basis:

Name of the Impairment Testing Methodology
financial asset

Trade Receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over lifetime of the assets are estimated
by using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions which are grouped on the basis of
similar credit characteristics such as nature of industry, customer segment, past due status
and other factors that are relevant to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.
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Other financial assets | When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment
loss. When there is significant change in credit risk since initial recognition, the impairment is
measured based on probability of default over the life time. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality
of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12
month ECL.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly aftributable
transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and financial guarantee contracts.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Classification Name of the financial liability

Amortised cost Borrowings, trade payables, interest accrued, unclaimed / disputed dividends, security deposits and
other financial liabilities not for trading.

FVTPL Foreign Exchange Forward contracts being drivative contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting
under Ind AS 109 and other financial liabilities held for trading. The Company does not take forward
contract.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at higher of (i) The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments and (i) The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company does not hold any derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options contracts to mitigate the risk
of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.
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w Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge
accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is
ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit
or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income. Assets / liabilities in this category are presented as current
assets / current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.
However the company does not deal in any derivate/hedging. Hence the above will not be applicable to the company.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made
for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is
made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.
The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either
beginsorceasesto performanactivity thatis significant toits operations. Ifthe Company reclassifies financial assets, itapplies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised ;
S:No classification classification e

1 Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous
amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L.

2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR
is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

3 Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous
amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

4 FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying
amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at
amortised cost.

5 FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

6 FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Annual Report 2024-25 118



TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

M h) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations whereever it deems
necessary that such coverage is approriate. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is
amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary items which are covered by forward exchange
contract, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference. Any profit
or loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for that year.

i) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of
borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate
is determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost
that the Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other
borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

k) Taxes
Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax
assets arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as
a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered
fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each
balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in
the period in which the absences occur.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.
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M m) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of

the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis
of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised
in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

n) Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These
provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of money is doubtful in the judgement of the management.
Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities
are disclosed separately.

Contingent Assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at
the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.

Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the financial statements.
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m p) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with original maturity of less
than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of Cash flow statement.

r) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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Notes - (Contd)
Note No. 4a
a) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying amounts of
Lease hold Assets 87.23 80.53 81.41
Total 87.23 80.53 81.41
GROSS CARRYING VALUE Lease hold Assets Total
Balance as at April 1, 2021 (Deemed Cost) 95.47 95.47
Additions - -
Deletions
Balance as at March 31, 2022 95.47 95.47
Additions - -
Deletions
Balance as at March 31, 2023 95.47 95.47
Additions - -
Deletions
Balance as at March 31, 2024 95.47 95.47
Additions 8.45 8.45
Deletions - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 103.92 103.92
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Lease hold Assets Total
Balance as at April 1,2021 (Deemed Cost) 12.30 12.30
Amortisation 0.88 0.88
Eliminated on disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 13.18 13.18
Amortisation 0.88 0.88
Eliminated on disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 14.06 14.06
Amortisation 0.88 0.88
Eliminated on disposals - .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 14.94 14.94
Amortisation 1.75 1.75
Eliminated on disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 16.69 12.10
PARTICULARS Lease hold Assets Total
Carrying amount as on April 1, 2021 83.17 83.17
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2022 82.29 82.29
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2023 81.41 81.41
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2024 80.53 80.53
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2025 87.23 87.23
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Notes - (Contd)

b) BREAK-UP OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES :
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at year ended:

As at As at As at
G EUE March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 419
Non-current lease liabilities 2.64
Total 6.83
c) MOVEMENT IN LEASE LIABILITIES :
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended:
As at As at As at
s e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance
Reclassified on account of adoption of IND AS 116
Additions through acquisition of subsidiary 8.45
Additions
Additions
Finance costs accrued during the period 0.33
Deletions -
Payment of Lease liabilities (1.95)
Foreign currency translation -
Closing Balance 6.83

d) The table below provides details regarding the contractua
on an undiscounted basis

| maturities of lease liabilities

PARTICULARS

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Less than one year

One to five years 6.83
More than five years
Total 6.83
e) Others
As at As at As at
ALTEIEA March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 0.33
Amortisation of right to use assets 1.75
Expenses relating to short-term leases
Total cash outflows for leases 1.95

f) Critical judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an exten-
sion option, or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease
term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:
(i) If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain not terminate

(or to extend).
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The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise
it). The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which
affects the assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the current financial year, there was no revision in the lease terms.

g) Variable lease payments

The Group has not entered into any lease contracts that include variable lease options.

h) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by

the Company and not with the respective lessor.

Note No. 5

As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Capital Work-in-progress
Capital work in progress

709.23

237.32

709.23

237.32

Annexure to Note 5

Capital work-in-progress ageing

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of

Rarticulars Lessthan | 1to2 2t03 More than
1 year Years years 3 years
Projects in progress 574.10 135.13 NIL NIL

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of

Note No. 6

March 31, 2025

Particulars Lessthan | 1to2 2t03 More than
1 year Years years 3 years
Projects in progress 237.32 NIL NIL NIL
As at As at

March 31, 2024

Non-current investments
Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTPL
Unquoted
i. Investments in Subsidiaries
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Limited (64,89,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
ii. Investments in Other Companies
Investments in Debt Instruments at FVTPL
Unquoted

Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate cost of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

648.92 648.92
648.92 648.92
648.92 648.92
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Note No. 7(a)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Deposits 3,081.44 2,993.84
Fixed Deposits towards Bank Guarantee 34.00
Other non- current financial assets 3,115.44 2,993.84
Note No. 7(b)
Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid
Voluntary retirement scheme payment to be allowed
On account of forward of losses 5,723.47 5,723.47
5,723.47 5,723.47
Note No. 8
Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance for fixed assets
Advance income-tax and TDS (net of provision for tax) 81.31 86.82
Advance Fringe Benefit tax - -
Advance TCS 111.19 114.74
Other non-current assets 33.39 33.39
225.89 234.95
Note No. 9
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Materials 1,284.90 2,204.15
Finished Goods 3,780.84 3,504.72
Goods in Transit - -
Stores 1 ,929-39 2,1 93.81
6,995.13 7,902.68
Note No. 10
Current Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTPL
Investments in companies other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Quoted
Canara Bank (Formerly Syndicate Bank) (864 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each) 3.84 5.09
Unquoted
Shamrao Vithal Co-op Bank Ltd (50 Shares of Rs.100/- each) 0.05 0.05
Investments in Debt Instruments at FVTPL
Unquoted
National Savings Certificates 0.02 0.02
3.91 5.16
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As at As at
el March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are
due for payment - -
Unsecured, considered good 4,371.7 3,824.71

Unsecured, considered doubtful -
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they -
are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 5,103.62 6,538.48

Unsecured, considered doubtful - -

9,475.33 10,363.19

Allowance for Expected credit Loss -

9,475.33 10,363.19

Disclosure Of Ratios By Companies as per new Schedule Il Amendment
Annexure to Note 11

Outstanding for the following periods
Trade Receivables from due date of Payment
ageing Schedule
Lessthan 6 | 6 Months to 1t02 2t03 [3yearsand Total
Months 1 Year Years years above

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered Good 3,562.43 297.06 79.07 | 589.71 472490 | 9,253.17
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered Doubtful - - - - 60.96 60.96
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables Considered Good - - - - 161.20 161.20
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables Considered Doubtful

3,562.43 297.06 79.07 | 589.71 | 4,947.06 | 9,475.33

As at 31st March 2025, the Company has outstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs. 9,475 lakhs, a portion of which have been
outstanding for more than 180 days. During the year, the Company undertook a detailed exercise to confirm the validity and recoverability
of these receivables. Confirmation requests were issued multiple times covering 100% of the receivables, using both physical and electronic
means.

The Company received confirmations for a substantial portion of receivables outstanding for less than 180 days. However, for
receivables outstanding beyond 180 days (which constitute approximately 65% of total trade receivables by value), direct confirmations were not
received in many cases, despite repeated follow-up. The Company attributes the lack of response primarily to the apprehension of legal
action on overdue balances, given the Company’s recent focus on recovery.

Nonetheless, the Company has verified the genuineness of the underlying transactions, maintains ongoing commercial relationships with
most of these customers, and remains confident of recovery. The Company is also actively considering the assignment of certain receivables
as part of its recovery strategy.

In accordance with its assessment of the expected credit loss (ECL) under the applicable financial reporting framework, the Company has
written off a small portion of the trade receivables during the year and believes that no further material provisioning is warranted as of the
balance sheet date.
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As at As at
bz Bl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 5.52 5.91
Cheque and Demand Drafts on Hand
Balances with Banks
- In Current Account 21.44 109.41
26.96 115.31
Note No. 13
Other Bank Balances
In fixed deposits 1.13 2.44
In margin money with banks 3.81
4.94 2.44
Note No. 14
Other current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Deposits
Note No. 15(a)
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Income and claims receivable
Interest accrued on Deposits
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Advance for Supplies and expenses 8.98 4.76
Staff advances & Prepaid expenses 20.14 31.68
Special Premium Accrued - NCD (Refer Note 54 ) 354.10 600.00
Advances for Fixed Assets : -
Advance Paid 433.38 502.76
Drawback 19.12 19.12
Excise 13.87 13.87
Balances with Statutory Authorities: 590.50 416.10
1,440.08 1,588.29
Note No. 15 (b)
Asset Held for Sale
Asset Held for Sale (Refer Note 55) 438.22
438.22
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Annexure to Note 15(b)
Non-Current Assets held for sale
1. ANon- current asset held for sale is a non- current asset that will be recovered through selling the asset rather than usage.
2. Recognition Criteria: Non-current assets held for sale
To classify a non-current asset as held for sale, the asset (or disposal group):
2.1. Must be available for immediate sale in its present condition
2.2. may be subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups) and
2.3. Its sale must be highly probable. That is, significantly more likely than not.

Thus, an asset (or disposal group) cannot be classified as a non-current asset (or disposal group) held for sale, if the entity
intends to sell it in a distant future.

3. Indications of Highly Probable
3.1. Management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset

3.2. An exchange of non-current assets constitutes a sale transaction when the exchange has commercial substance
(Ind AS-16 Property, Plant and Equipment’)

3.3. An active programme to locate a buyer and completer the plan must have been initiated.
3.4. The asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable relative to its current fair value.
3.5. The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

3.6. However an extension period does not prohibit classification as held for sale if the delay is beyond management’s control
and there is sufficient evidence of management’s commitment to its plan.

3.7. The actions required to complete the plan should indicate that significant changes to the plan or withdrawal from the plan

are unlikely.
LB 1D March 31,23;; March 31, ggza;
Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
2,60,00,000 (2,60,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,600.00 2,600.00
1,00,00,000 (1,00,00,000) 6% Non convertible redeemable preference
shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
3,600.00 3,600.00
Issued Share Capital
1,66,66,666 (previous year 1,66,66,666) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,666.67 1,666.67
1,666.67 1,666.67
Paid up & Subscribed Share Capital
1,64,61,407 (previous year 1,64,61,407) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (fully paid up) 1,646.14 1,646.15
“0” (previous year 94,815) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (Rs. 6/- paid up) - 5.69
“0” (previous year 1,10,444) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (Rs. 3/- paid up) - 3.30
1,646.14 1,655.14
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Notes:
i. Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed
Balance as at the beginning of the year 16,666,666 16,666,666
Add: Issued during the year -
Less: Partly Paid Equity Shares Forfeitured During The Year (205,259)
Balance at the end of the year 16,461,407 16,666,666

Shares issued for consideration other than cash
There are no shares which have been issued for consideration other than cash during the last 5 years.
Redeemable Preference Shares

6% Non convertible redeemable preference shares issued by the company are classified as financial liabilities (non-current borrowings)
[refer note 18] in accordance with Ind AS.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change
Name of the share holder No. of Shares % Total Shares During

The Year
SANJAY TULSYAN 4,475,481 27.19 1.26%
LALIT KUMAR TULSYAN 4,119,091 25.02 1.24%
PRIYA TULSYAN 954,982 5.80 1.22%

Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

a. The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. The equity shares of the company
having par value of Rs. 10/- rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend.

b. All equity shares issued carry equal rights for dividend declared by the Company. There are no restrictions attached to any of the
shares. However as far as the share held by the promoters/ promoters group is concerned, the same has been pledged in favour of
the lenders as part of CDR compiliance. Subsequently on Compromise Settlement, the Pledge of Shares are being released from
Lenders and are being pledged to Debenture Trustees (Refer Note 47)

c. The Company has not issued any securities with the right / option to convert the same into equity shares at a later date.

d. The dividend proposed if any, by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. During the year, the Company proposed a dividend of Rs. Nil per equity share held (previous year Rs. Nil per
equity share held)

e. Inthe event of liquidation, the Equity Share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of
all preferential amounts in proportion of their share holding.
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As at As at
Note No. 17 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other Equity
General Reserve 2,390.00 2,390.00
Investment Allowance reserve 59.39 59.39
Securities Premium Reserve 12,373.96 12,373.96
Other Comprehensive Income (288.56) (296.71)
Foreign Currency Valuation Reserve (3.66) -
Capital Reserve 9.00 -
Profit and Loss Account 11,141.45 20,555.54
25,681.62 35,082.18

a) General reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,390.00 2,390.00

b) Investment Allowance Reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 59.39 59.39
c) Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,373.96 12,373.96
Additions during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 12,373.96 12,373.96
d) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year (296.71) (72.98)
Additions during the year 8.15 (223.73)
Deductions/Adjustments during the year
Balance at the end of the year (288.56) (296.71)
Foreign Currency Valuation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Additions during the year (3.66)
Deductions/Adjustments during the year
Balance at the end of the year (3.66)
e) Capital Reserve 9.00

f) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 20,555.54 25,5672.59
Net profit for the period (7,269.61) (5,017.05)
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income -
Ind AS Adjustments-NCD Redemption Premium (2,149.48)
Dividend paid (including tax on dividends) =

Tulsyan Power Pyt Ltd - Investment Sales 5.00

Balance at the end of the year 11,141.45 20,555.54
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Note No. 18

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured
Preference Shares

6% Non convertible redeemable preference shares 884.30 884.30
Term Loans *
From Banks )
NCD Debentures (Refer Note 52) 25,733.88 22,436.82
Vehicle Loans -
Unsecured
From Directors 1,482.90 1,272.90
28,101.07 24,594.02
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in note 22) (5,500.00) (2,690.00)
22,601.07 21,904.02
(* Refer Note 47 for terms and conditions and security details)
Note No. 19(a)
Other non current financial liabilities
Premium on redemption of preference shares payable 2,182.05 1,960.87
Unamortised rental income -
Unamortised Interest income -
Premium on redemption of NCD -
2,182.05 1,960.87
Note No. 19(b)
Other non current Lease Asset liabilities
Lease Asset Liability 2.64
2.64
Note No. 20
Provisions (Non-current)
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 280.64 564.71
Compensted absence 45.66 32.91
(Refer Note 50) 326.30 597.62
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Note No. 21

Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) - Net
Deferred tax liabilities

Related to Fixed Assets

Related to Others

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Note No. 22

Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings *
Secured

From banks - Working capital term loans
Current maturities of long-term debt

L ; " 5,500.00 2,690.00
oans Trom oihers 1,413.03 1,443.68
Unsecured
Loans from body corporate 5,532.71 5,406.02
12,445.74 9,539.70
(* Refer Note 47 for terms and conditions and security details)
Note No. 23
Trade payables *
Supplies and Services 12,363.61 11,700.69
Expenses and others -
Creditors for Capital Exp - 555.00
12,363.61 12,255.69

*

* Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

collected by the management represents the principal amount payable to these enterprises. There are no interest due as at the

reporting date. (Refer Note 43).

Annexure to Note 23

Outstanding for the following periods
Trade Payables Ageing from due date of Payment
Schedule
Less than 6 Months |6 Monthsto 1 Year |1to2 Years |2to 3years |3 years and above Total

(iy MSME 749.39 54.93 7.77 0.29 3.30 815.68
(ii) Others 10,085.36 1,240.84 109.83 107.38 1.61 11,545.02
(iii) Disputed MSME
(iv) Disputed Others 1.62 0.89 0.40 2.91

10,834.75 1,295.77 119.22 108.56 5.31 12,363.61
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sl 2 March 31,23:5t March 31, égza:
Other current financial liabilities
Deposits for power - 214.15
- 214.15
Note No. 24(b)
Other current Lease Asset Liability
Lease Asset Liability 419
4.19
Note No. 25
Provisions (Current)
Provision for proposed equity dividend =
Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend S
Provision for Expenses / Tax 52.50 59.19
52.50 59.19
Note No. 26
Other current liabilities
Interest Payable 982.75
Statutory Dues Payable 322.16 97.77
Other current liabilities 1,323.50 382.18
Power Payable 768.30
Employee Payables 241.65 218.06
3,638.36 698.01
Note No. 27
Income from Operations
Domestic sales FG 74,114.62 89,818.10
High sea sales -
Export sales 2,560.55 2,315.42
Power Revenue -
Domestic Sales RM 3,007.33 3,447.36
Processing charges 57.67 18.64
Sale of Export Scrips 2.50
79,742.68 95,599.52
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Note No. 28

Other Income

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Income from windmills 19.94 172.28
Interest
Interest on term deposit " 278
Other interest income Ll 5.00
Corporate Guarantee Commission i 100
Profit on sale of Fixed asset 18217 170909
Compensation for power 173 1
Remeasurement of Investment : 263
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 2291 1.6
Miscellenous Income 12.06 14.33
Less: Income from wind mill set-off against Power & Fuel (19.94) (172.28)
340.41 1,753.40
Note No. 29
Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Materials
Opening inventory of raw materials 2,204.14 4,296.97
Raw Materials purchased 58,435.35 74,049.53
Inter Unit Transfer - 2,250.13
Materials Inward 1,089.72 1,104.65
Customs Duty -
Less: Discount/Licence/Provision Written Back 524.94 858.77
Less: Closing Stock 1,284.90 2,204.14
Captive consumption -
59,919.37 78,638.38
Stores
Opening Stock 2,193.81 2,059.35
Purchases 3,068.05 5,242.88
Materials Inward 0.35 1.99
Less: Re-classified to PPE
Less : Closing Stock 1,929.39 2,193.81
3,332.82 5,110.40
Total cost of materials consumed 63,252.18 83,748.79
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Year ended Year ended
Note No. 30 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchase of stock-in-trade - Traded goods
Purchase of stock-in-trade - Traded goods 689.35 2.51
689.35 2.51
Note No. 31
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Closing balance 3,780.84 3,504.72
Opening balance 3,504.72 3,480.40
(276.11) (24.32)
Note No. 32
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and Wages 2,110.14 2,374.22
Welfare Expenses 49.12 47.08
Contribution to provident and other funds 57.97 (149.17)
2,217.23 2,272.13
Note No. 33
Power & Fuel
Power & Fuel expense 8,418.26 5,159.02
8,418.26 5,159.02
Note No. 34
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on Property, Plant, Equipment and Right of use of Asset 2,234.91 2,487.85
2,234.91 2,487.85
Note No. 35
Finance costs
Interest to Bank -
Other Interest 6,414.63 3,895.34
Service Charges for Finance -
6,414.63 3,895.34
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Note No. 36 MarI:a::f;g;g T egggg
Other expenses
Power Plant Charges 990.40 1,406.95
Repairs
Machinery 123.13 247.80
Building 12.79 4.48
Other Manufacturing Expenses 939.42 955.46
Processing Charges 147.63 53.09
Insurance 15.08 31.34
Rent 52.65 53.07
Loss on sale of fixed assets 3.83 0.31
Rates & Taxes 77.54 31.43
Legal & consultancy charges 261.47 141.78
Payment to auditors 7.50 5.00
Transport charges 327.81 395.58
Brokerage & commission 108.42 51.45
Selling & administration expenses 1,322.96 1,257.53
Excise duty expenses -
Bank charges 6.65 1.99
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0.00 1.27
Provision for Expected credit loss 4.95 1.19
4,402.24 4,639.72
Note No. 36 (a)
Payment to auditors
Statutory Audit fees 7.50 5.00
Taxation fee 2.00 2.00
Other Certifications
9.50 7.00
Note No. 37

Exceptional Items
Exceptional ltem
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Year ended Year ended

U March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year = .
MAT credit entitlement/reversal - -
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods -

Total current tax expense -

Deferred tax
Deferred tax adjustments -

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) -

Income tax expense - 188.93

b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations (7,269.61) (5,017.05)

c) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive
income Derferred tax

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 8.15 (223.73)

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 8.15 (223.73)

d) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2025

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in Opening Recognised in Recognised in Other Closing
relation to: balance profit or loss comprehensive income balance

Property, plant, and equipment and
Intangible Assets

Expenses allowable on payment basis
under the Income Tax Act

Remeasurement of financial instruments
under Ind AS

Other temporary differences
MAT Credit entitiement
Total

¢) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2025
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Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in Opening Recognised in Recognised in Other Closing
relation to: balance profit or loss comprehensive income balance
Property, plant, and equipment and
Intangible Assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis
under the Income Tax Act
Remeasurement of financial instruments
under Ind AS
Other temporary differences
MAT Credit entitlement
Total
e | s
Earnings per share
Profit/ (loss) for the year aftributable to owners of the Company (7,269.61) (5,017.05)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,646.14 1,655.13
Basic eamings per share (Rs) (44.16) (30.31)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs) (44.16) (30.31)
Note No. 40
Earnings in foreign currency
FOB value of exports 2,404.35 1,859.82
2,404.35 1,859.82
Note No. 40(a)
Expenditure in foreign currency
Exchange in foreign currency for other matters 4.19 2.03
4.19 2.03
Note No. 41
CIF value of imports
Raw Materials/Consumables 9,921.69 29.79
9,921.69 29.79
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42. Value of imported and indigenous Raw material, Stores and Coal Consumed during the financial year and the percentage of
each to the total consumption

Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars
Rs. In Lakhs Percentage (%) Rs. In Lakhs Percentage (%)
Raw Materials
Imported
Steel scrap* 10,026.07 19.30 23,010.07 35.62
Ingot, billet and re-rollables - -
PP/HDPE Granules 87.91 0.17
Others
Steel scrap 27,230.33 52.43 20,571.33 31.85
Ingot, billet and re-rollables 12,021.62 23.15 18,595.42 28.79
PP/HDPE Granules 2,574.27 4.96 2,416.36 3.74
Coal
Imported 7,979.17 100.00 11,795.06 100.00
Others - -
Stores
Imported 8.17 0.25 29.79 3.90
Others 3,324.63 99.75 734.46 96.10
Add Inter Unit Transfers - 6,596.28
Total consumption 63,252.18 83,748.78

* Raw Materials purchased on High Sea Basis also considered as Import Purchases

43. Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (WSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year 815.68 1,981.52

(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the appointed date during - -
the year

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act - -

(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for all the delayed payments, as - -
per the agreed terms

(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid - -

*This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

The information required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. There are no over dues to parties on
account of principal amount and/or interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made
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44. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Nature of Dues St Period to which it relates UL ﬂ.'e LI
Lacs. pending
Excise 849.30 Upto June 2017 CESTAT Chennai
Excise/Service Tax 235.27 April 2013 - June 2017 CESTAT Bangalore
Income Tax Appeals 4711 2010-11 CIT (APPEALS)
GST 9.70 Apr 2023 - Oct 2023 GST (APPEALS)
VAT 128.52 2012-13 VAT AC - HC
Cancellation of FIBC and demand for 168.18 February 2010 to Ministry of Finance -
repayment of Duty Drawback September 2011 Secretary
TNEB 2,312.85 2004-14 TANGEDCO
Notes:

Contingent Liabilities:

The Company has executed (During the year 2009-10 and 2011-12) Corporate Guarantee in favour of the Shamrao Vithal
Co-operative Bank Limited, Mumbai for the loan taken by M/s. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Pvt Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, for Rs. 25 crores

The company has received a notice from the office of the Director General of Foreign Trade, Bangalore, asking to show cause
as to why penalty upto 5 times of the CIF value of goods imported of a value of Rs.44.34 Crores imposed in respect of 44
Advance licenses for alleged non completion of the export obligations in respect of those licenses. Post issue of the notice, the
company’s name was added in the “Denied Entity List”. The Company had represented to the said authority that the Export
obligation in individual case or when clubbed with other license/licenses in accordance with the Foreign trade Policy and
procedures with or without relaxation of the norms as may be applicable has been completed. Out of 44 Licences for which
the notice was issued, Export obligations Discharge certificate has been received in respect of 42 Licences the CIF Value
of which is Rs.44.20 Crore leaving 2 licences with a CIF Value of Rs.0.14 Crores pending. Export obligation in respect of the
said 2 licences have indeed been completed and the company is hopeful of obtaining the Export obligations Discharge certificate
in the course of time. Based on the representation given by the company the name of the company was removed from the
Denied Entity List, however company has not received any communication from the DGFT in this regard dropping the show
cause notice.

The liability in respect of Excise and VAT is subject to the levy of additional interest till the date adjudication from the due date, in
case the liability is confirmed by the Appellate Authority. However, no estimation of such interest payable, if any, has been
made or has not been provided. Hence, no liability will accrue in respect of the interest, if the order is in favour of the company
and in the opinion of the management, the decision will be in the favour of the company.

Resurgent Power projects Limited (Formerly Enmas GB Power Systems Projects Limited) has demanded payment of
Rs.13,25,31,282/- as dues for the Power Project | and Il executed by them and has issued a notice under section 9 of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. In view of the substandard performance of 1st Turbine and delayed implementation
of Power Plant 2 the company has debited the 11,78,32,463/- as liquidated damages the payable to the said party as per the
books of accounts is nil. Accordingly, the company has disputed the amount and has sought to invoke the arbitration proceedings
against the party to settle the matter. The liquidated damages debited to the party has been credited to the cost of the project.
Pending these matters no provision has been made against the claim in the books of accounts.
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Impairment of Assets:

1. The expected credit loss in respect of receivables which are outstanding for a long period and the chances of recovery
are uncertain. These dues include dues from customers who have already been referred to NCLT under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code. The amount outstanding dues where credit loss could be expected is Rs.13.97 Crores.

2. The Goa industrial Development Corporation has vide its order dated 20th April 2017 has cancelled the lease of 8890 SFT out
of 12700 SFT for non utilization of the land allotted on lease for the industrial purpose. Company has filed a civil suit against
the said corporation reclaiming the leased land and the matter is pending with the court. Pending the settlement the company
continues with the possession of the property.

3. The company was assessed to Income Tax and an order was passed u/sec 143(3) on 29/12/2019 for AY 2017-18. In completing
the captioned assessment a sum of Rs 48,91,37,362/- was added back. The addition was on account of the Company’s
transactions with Tanishi Commotrades Pvt Limited (sales and other transactions), Subham Trading /Neeraj Trading
Company(purchases ) and a sum of Rs 6829701 for delayed remittance of PF/ESI. The company has also preferred an appeal
for AY 2011-12 with CIT(A). The Company is hopeful of its success at the appellate forums on the captioned additions.
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45. Operating Segments
The business of the Company falls under three segments i.e., (a) Steel Division; (b) Synthetic Division; and (c) Power in accordance
with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” and segment information is given below:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Segment Revenue
Steel Division 63,230.24 76,112.94
Synthetic Divison 3,514.08 3,305.58
Power 12,998.36 16,181.00
Revenue from operations (Net) 79,742.68 95,599.52
Segment Results
Profit (+) / Loss (-) before tax and finance cost
Steel Division (996.19) 293.27
Synthetic Divison (436.06) (598.18)
Power 577.27 (627.87)
Total (854.97) (932.78)
Add/ Less : Finance Cost 6,414.63 3,895.34
Profit /(Loss) from continuing operations (7,269.61) (4,828.12)
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations ) i
Profit Before Tax (7,269.61) (4,828.12)
Segment Assets
Steel Division 25,903.05 36,749.57
Synthetic Divison 8,186.98 8,911.79
Power 46,854.19 38,305.20
Other unallocable corporate assets
Total assets 80,944.23 83,966.56
Segment Liabilities
Steel Division 31,891.46 10,446.73
Synthetic Divison 11,362.24 9,487.06
Power 10,362.78 27,295.45
Other unallocable corporate assets
Total liabilities 53,616.48 47,229.24
Capital Employed (Segment assets-Segment liabilities)
Steel Division (5,988.40) 26,302.84
Synthetic Divison (3,175.26) (575.27)
Power 36,491.41 11,009.74
Total capital employed in segments 27,327.75 36,737.32
Unallocable corporate assets less corporate liabilities = -
Total Capital Employed 27,327.75 36,737.32
Information relating to geographical areas
(a) Revenue from external customers
Particulars
India 77,338.33 93,811.93
Outside India 2,404.35 1,787.59
Total 79,742.68 95,599.52
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(b) Non current assets

The manufacturing facilities of the Company is situated in India and no non-current assets are held outside India
(c) Information about major customers

Year Ended Year Ended

HEIESHEE March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of external customers each contributing more than 10% of total revenue

Total revenue from the above customers =
Total -

46. Operating lease arrangements

Particulars

As Lessor
The Company has not entered into any operating lease arrangements as lessor. =

As Lessee

The Company has not entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities -
. The leases are cancellable at the option of either party to lease and may be renewed
based on mutual agreement of the parties.

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Towards Amortisation of ROU 1.75
Towards Interest 0.33

47. Borrowing Details
Schedule for long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions:

Particulars

i. From Banks
a. Term Loans -
b. Working Capital Term Loan/ Funded Interest Term Loan -

ii. From Financial Institutions @ -

Non Convertible Debentures 20,233.88 19,746.82

Total 20,233.88 19,746.82

Schedule for short term borrowings:

Particulars

Secured
Non Convertible Debentures 5,500.00 2,690.00
Loans from others 1,413.03 1,443.69
Unsecured

Loans from body corporate

Total Short term borrowings 12,445.74 9,539.70

5,532.71 5,406.02
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Terms and conditions of Secured Non Convertible Debentures / Loans * (Previous years)
1. Exclusive hypothecation of the present and future current assets of the Company
2. Exclusive charge on the land, manufacturing plant and other fixed assets of the Company (including all non-core assets)
3. Pledge of shares of the Company held by promoters and promoters’ group (currently holding 63.40% of total shareholding).
4. Personal Guarantee of Promoters Sri Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and Sri Sanjay Tulsyan
5. Corporate Guarantees of Tulsyan Smelters Limited, Chitrakoot Steel & Power Private Limited
48 Financial Instruments
Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going concern, while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other
strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, long-term borrowings and other short-term borrowings.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders.

Categories of Financial Instruments March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost

Other non-current financial assets 3,115.44 2,993.84
Trade receivables 9,475.33 10,363.19
Cash and cash equivalents 26.96 115.31
Bank balances other than above 4.94 244

Other financial assets -

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments 648.92 648.92

Financial liabilities

a. Measured at amortised cost

Long term borrowings 22,601.07 21,904.02
Other non-current financial liabilities 2,182.05 1,960.87
Short term borrowings 12,445.74 9,539.70
Trade payables 12,363.61 12,255.69
Other current financial liabilities C 21415

Financial risk management objectives

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price
of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates. The Company actively manages its currency and interest rate exposures through its finance division.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.
The Company actively manages its currency rate exposures through a treasury division and uses natural hedging principles to mitigate the
risks from such exposures.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

As on March 31, 2025 (all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in lakhs)

Currency Liabilities Assets Net overall
Gross Exposure Net liability | Gross exposure Exposure Net asset tﬁzpcﬁ:;:n-
exposure hedged exposure on hedged using exposure on v
. AR net assets / (net
using the currency derivatives the currency L
A liabilities
derivatives
UsD - - - 1,667,077.22 - 1,667,077.22 1,667,077.22
EUR
GBP
InINR - - - 1,314.26 - 1,314.26 1,314.26

As on March 31, 2024 (all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in lakhs)

Currency Liabilities Assets Net overall
Gross Exposure Net liability | Gross exposure Exposure Net asset tﬁ:’ﬁf:;:n_
exposure hedged exposure on hedged using exposure on v
. A net assets / (net
using the currency derivatives the currency e
A liabilities
derivatives
usD - - - 1,128,377.56 - 1,128,377.56 1,128,377.56
EUR
GBP
in INR - - - 835.44 - 835.44 835.44

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies may impact the Company’s
revenues from its operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of imports and cost of borrowings
and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company’s capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated
for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange
rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well
as loans to foreign operations within the Company where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of
the lender or the borrower.
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In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end
of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the
Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swap contracts.
Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging
strategies are applied. Further, in appropriate cases, the Company also effects changes in the borrowing arrangements to convert floating
interest rates to fixed interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Company has no floating rate liabilities and thus does not have the risk of increase or decrease in the rate of interest. The Secured Non
Convertible Debentures issued during the year carry a Fixed Rate of Interest and thus no risk of Decrease or increase cost of funds.

Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its financing/
investing activities, including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has no significant concentration of credit
risk with any counterparty.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the total of the carrying
amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity
investments.

(a) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer
and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the
exposure is backed by either bank, guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified approach, the Company
makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments
and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

(b) Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have
been made with the banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating
agencies.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved financial institutions/ counterparty. Investments primarily include bank
deposits. These bank deposits and counterparties have low credit risk. The Company has standard operating procedures and
investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in bank deposits and restricts the exposure in equity
markets. Investments of surplus funds does not arise in the case of the Company.
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Offsetting related disclosures

Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the loan agreement is available only to the bank in the event of a default.
Company does not have the right to offset in case of the counter party’s bankruptcy, therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

the Company can be required to pay.

49. Related party disclosure

March 31, 2025 Due in 1st year Due after 1st Year Carrying amount

Trade payables 12,130.52 233.10 12,363.61

Borrowings 5,500.00 22,601.07 28,101.07
17,630.52 22,834.17 40,464.68

March 31, 2024 Due in 1st year Due after 1st Year Carrying amount

Trade payables 5,940.28 6,315.40 12,255.69

Borrowings 2,690.00 21,904.02 24,594.02

8,630.28 28,219.42 36,849.70
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

that are not measured at fair value (but fair value Nil Nil

disclosures are required):

a) List of related parties

Subsidiaries Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd

Key management personnel Shri Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (Executive Chairman)
Shri Sanjay Tulsyan (Managing Director)

Shri Sanjay Agarwalla (Whole Time Director)
Shri S. Chandrasekaran (Whole Time Director)
Shri Shantha Kumar RP (Chief Financial Officer)

Shmt Parvati Soni (Company Secretary)

Companies in which Directors are interested Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd
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b) Transactions during the year
S.No. Nature of transactions M;iir;r:dz‘:;s MaYriT::;r:dz%g 4
1 Purchase of goods
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 2,860.47 8,243.03
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 1,611.52 11,626.63
2 Sale of Goods
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 1.14 1,174.45
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 21,517.89 27,102.19
3 Short term borrowings during the year -
4 Services Received
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd - 5.00
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd - 5.00
5 Managerial Remuneration
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan 120.29 105.29
Sanjay Tulsyan 120.29 105.29
Sanjay Agarwalla 55.29 48.29
S. Chandrasekaran 16.90 21.40
Shantha Kumar RP 31.44 31.44
Alka Tulsyan 17.03 17.93
Aditya Bhartia 17.99 17.99
Parvati Soni 10.28 8.68
c) Balances with related parties
S.No. Name of the Related Party M:ri:\r;r:dz%gs M;i?‘r;r:i%‘; 4
1 Outstanding Receivables
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 53.79
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 2,304.06
2 Outstanding Payables
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 1,201.04
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 1,378.77
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan 1,281.67 1,071.67
Sanjay Tulsyan 201.04 201.04
Alka Tulsyan 162.86 152.86
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (HUF) 0.18 0.18

d) Guarantees and Collaterals

Chitrakoot Steel and Power P Ltd executed Corporate Guarantee in favour of Tulsyan NEC Limited to comply the CDR Terms.

The Company has executed (During the year 2009-10 and 2011-12) Corporate Guarantee in favour of the Shamrao Vithal Co-operative
Bank Limited, Mumbai for the loan taken by M/s. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Pvt. Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for Rs.
25 Crores.
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50 Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

In accordance with Indian law, the Company makes contributions to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Employee State
Insurance Scheme, which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. 8.15 lakh (previous year Rs. (223.73) lakh) represents contribution payable to these
plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

Defined benefit plans
(a) Gratuity

Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. In terms of the same, gratuity is computed by multiplying last drawn salary
(basic salary including dearness Allowance if any) by completed years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months
and again by 15/26. The Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity
payable to an employee on separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in
cases where an enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual retumn on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality(2012-14) Mortality(2006-08)
Attrition Rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Discount Rate 6.84% p.a. 7.26% p.a.
Rate of increase in compensation level 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Rs. Lakh Rs. Lakh

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined
benefit plans are as follows:
Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss:
Current service cost 29.11 30.61
Net interest expense 24.79 35.98
Benefits paid (95.55) (67.95)
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net -
interest expense)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss (41.65) (1.36)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
for the Year:
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period 0.69 (134.27)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 0.69 (134.27)
Total (40.96) (135.63)
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's obliga-
tion in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 335.82 376.79
Fair value of plan assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 335.82 376.79
Non - Funded 335.82 376.79

335.82 376.79

The above provisions are reflected under ‘Provision for employee benefits- gratuity’ (long-term provisions) [Refer note 20].
Rs. Lakh Rs. Lakh

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current
year were as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 376.79 512.42
Current service cost 29.11 30.61
Interest cost 24.79 35.98
Actuarial (gains)/losses 0.69 (134.27)
Benefits paid (95.55) (67.95)
Closing defined benefit obligation 335.82 376.79
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Sensitivity Analysis

In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the present value of the defined benefit obligation which
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating

the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

(b) Compensated absences

Company is following the practice of valuing the compensated absence as per Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” based on the leave balance
outstanding on the employees account on March 31st every year by an independent actuary and has provided the same in the accounts.
The payment is done as and when claims are received from the employees or on the date of retirement/ relieving from the service of the

company.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Attrition Rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Discount Rate 6.72% p.a. 7.17% p.a.
Rate of increase in compensation level 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.
Expected Average Remaining Working Lives of Employees (years)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Lakh Rs. Lakh
Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined
benefit plans are as follows:
Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss:
Current service cost 6.63 6.77
Net interest expense 2.07 8.04
Benefits Paid - (8.97)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 8.70 5.84
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the Year:
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period (8.84) (88.94)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (8.84) (88.94)
Total (0.14) (83.10)
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 47.04 47.18
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 47.04 47.18
Non - Funded 47.04 47.18
47.04 47.18

The above provisions are reflected under ‘Provision for employee benefits- leave encashment’ (long-term provisions) [Refer note 20].
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current
year were as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 47.18 130.28
Current service cost 6.63 6.77
Interest cost 2.07 8.04
Actuarial (gains)/losses (8.84) (88.94)
Benefits Paid - (8.97)
Closing defined benefit obligation 47.04 47.18

51: OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(i) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Group as at March 31, 2025, under Prohibition of Benami Property
Transaction Act, 1988 (As amended in 2016)

ii)  The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off as per Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 560
of the Companies Act, 1956.

(i) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(iv) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Group is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or vendor.
(ix) Title deeds of all immovable properties were held in the name of the Group.
52 Note on Issue of Securities/ Borrowing and Creation of Charges:

The company has issued 2690 Secured Non-convertible Debentures of Rs.10 Lacs each to Alternate investment Funds amounting to
Rs.269 Crores. The debentures so issued are secured by Exclusive hypothecation of the present and future current assets of the Company
and Exclusive charge on the land, manufacturing plant and other fixed assets of the Company (including all non-core assets) Pledge of
promoters shares and further secured by the personal guarantee of the promoters. The Charges in favour of the debenture trustee is being
registered with the registrar of companies during FY 23-24. Company has serviced the interest and principal payable on the Non Convertable
Debentures on time in all months except Dec 2024. There has been an agreed Moratorium from Dec 2024 to Mar 2025. The brief particulars
of these debentures are as follows:
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Notes - (Contd)

Sr.No. | Particulars Reference

i Date of passing of board resolution; 16-Mar-2023
. Date of passing of resolution in the general | 23-Mar-2023
- meeting, authorizing the offer of securities;

Kinds of securities offered 2,690 unlisted, secured, unrated, redeemable, non-convertible Deben-
tures of face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) each
" aggregating to INR 269,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and

Sixty Nine Crores), on a private placement basis

Price at which the security Was offered in- | Issued at Face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs) each
iv cluding the premium, if any, along with jus- | Debenture

tification of the price;

The class or classes of persons to whom the | Category Il Alternative Investment Funds (“AlFs”)

Y allotment is be made;
. Amount which the Company raised by way of | INR 269,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Sixty Nine
v offer of securities; Crores)

Terms of raising of securities:

(a) duration; if applicable a) Duration: 5 (five) years

(b) rate of dividend; b) Rate of Dividend: Not Applicable
vii (c) rate of interest; c) Rate of Interest: Coupon 14% p.a.p.m IRR 22%

(d) mode of payment; and d) Special Premium — Rs.6 Crores

(e) Repayment. e) Upfront Interest 0.5%

f) Repayment: Structured Repayment
Purposes and objects of the issue; To repay all the existing facilities and capital expenditure for the en-
v hancement of the project of the Company
Principle terms of assets charged as secu- | 1. Exclusive hypothecation of the present and future current assets of
rity, if applicable; the Company
2. Exclusive charge on the land, manufacturing plant and other fixed
assets of the Company (including all non-core assets)
ix. 3. Pledge of shares of the Company held by promoters and promoters’
group (currently holding 70.45% of total shareholding).
4. Personal Guarantee of Promoters
5. Corporate Guarantees of Tulsyan Smelters Limited, Chitrakoot Steel
& Power Private Limited
X Debenture Trustee for the issue Vistra ITCL (India) Limited
Address IL&FS Financial Center, Plot No. C-22, G Block, 6th Floor,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051
Email: ITCLComplianceofficer@vistra.com
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Notes - (Contd)

In line with the prescribed IND AS 32,107 and 109 which deals with Financial Instruments, an entity shall measure a financial liability at its
fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing of the financial liability. The transaction cost of Rs. 1,37,50,000/- has
been adjusted against the proceeds of Rs.2,69,00,00,000/- and the same has not been charged to the Profit and Loss account. The workings

for the same are as under:

Transaction cost for the NCD 137.50
Fair Value of NCD as disclosed in the financial statement 26,762.50
Total 26,900.00

India Special Assets ISAF Il Total

Fund Ill Onshore

(a scheme of ISAF IIl) Fund
Initial recognition at fair value 18,465.13 8,297.37 26,762.50
Special Premium Alc 318.78 143.22 462.00
Interest expense as per IND AS 3,794.57 1,705.10 5,499.67
Instalment paid (3,020.97) (1,357.48) (4,378.45)

19,557.51 8,788.21 28,345.72
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Notes - (Contd)

53 Corporate Social Reponsibility

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or
a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the

Act are not applicable to the Company during the year.

Year Ended 31st Mar ------ > 2022 2023 2024
Profit after Tax 78937.77 24776.37 (5017.05)
Provision for Taxation 5656.33 (188.93)
Profit before tax 78937.77 19120.04 (4828.12)
Add

- Depreciation / impairment as per books 2416.44 2590.75 2487.85

- Amortisation of expenses relating to raising /

repayment of loans
- Provision for dimunition in value of investment
81354.21 21710.79 (2340.27)

Deduct

- Depreciaton as per section 350 of 2416.44 2590.75 2487.85

the Companies Act 1956

- Capital profit on sale of fixed asset and investment 1.20 68.35 1,709.09

- Expenses relating to raising / repayment of loan

- Income of Capital In Nature 36143.37 14873.59
(I) the excess of expenditure over income, which had arisen in computing
the net profits in accordance with this section in any year which begins at
or after the commencement of this Act, in so far as such excess has not 42793.20 4178.15 (2340.27)
been deducted in any subsequent year preceding the year in respect of
which the net profits have to be ascertained;
Net Profit 0.00 - (4196.94)
Average (1398.98)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

55. Previous Year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary to conform to the Current Year’s classification

For and on behalf of the board

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 0049155/ S200036)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan M. Parthasarathy E.K.Srivatsan
Managing Director Executive Chairman Director Partner
DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823 DIN: 08277111 M.No. 225064
Sd/- Sd/-
CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Chennai.
Date : 30th May, 2025
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Disclosure Of Ratios By Companies as per new Schedule Il Amendment

S.No. Ratio Formula cYy PY [Variation Reasons for Changes
1 Current Ratio Current Asggtls/Current 062 | 088 6% Reduction on current ratio is on account of
Liabilities sale of assets held for sale.
Debt - Equit Variance attributes to the losses incurred
2 ~4UY 1 Total Debt/Total Equity | 1.28 | 0.86 50% during the year resulting in
Ratio .
reduced total equity.
Debt Service | Net Operating Income/ . . .
3 Coverage Total Debt Service (0.14) | (0.07) | 93% Lossesgqgurred d“T'“gd‘hg ye;rr ’ rgducmg the
Ratio ability to service debt obligations.
Loss incurred during the year due to sale of
windmill and power operations shut down for
Return on Net Income/Av eight months resulting in lesser income
4 . , 9 -0.27 | (0.13) | 102% generation and increase in the purchase
Equity Shareholder’s Equity L .
power and fuel resulting in increase in
respective expenses, leading to lower return
on equity.
Invento Cost of Goods Variance attributable to lower consumptions
5 v 215 | 2.36 -9% made during the year resulting in lesser
Turnover Ratio |  Sold/Avg Inventory . .
sales, despite the lower inventory level held.
Trade Annual Credit Variance attributable to decrease in sales
6 Recievable Sales/Avg Trade 2.01 2.38 -15% and decrease in trade receivables in
Turnover Ratio Recievables comparison with the previous year.
. Variance attributable to decrease in
Trade Payable Annual Credit urchases and increase in trade payable in
7 YA€ | purchases/Avg Trade | 1.25 | 1.88 | -33% | Pucnasesanc 1 trade payao
Turnover Ratio comparison with the previous year leading
Payables h
to negative result.
Variance attributable to decrease in sales
and net increase in current liabilities arising
. due to Interest payable on account of NCD
8 Net Cap|tal. Annuall Net Sa]es/ (7.88) | 34.27) | -77% moratorium and power charges being
Turnover Ratio Working Capital . .
payable and increase in unsecured
Borrowings of the company during
the current financial year.
Variance attributable to losses incurred
during the year due to sale of windmill and
9  [Net Profit Ratio | Net Profit/ Net Sales (0.09) | (0.05) | 74% | power operations shut down for eight months
resulting in lesser income generation and in-
crease in cost due to power being purchased.
Variance attributable to losses incurred
10 Capital (Total Assets - (0.14) | (0.08) | 76% |POWEr OPeX \ o
S resulting in lesser income generation and
Employed Current Liabilities) ) ) .
increase in cost due to power being
purchased.
Return on Return From
11 . Investment/Cost of NA
investment
Investment
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members

TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
Chennai

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of TULSYAN NEC LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated Financial
statements, including a summary of the material accounting policy information and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as
“the Consolidated financial information”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report ,the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, Consolidated
loss, Consolidated Total Comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion:
Balance confirmations and ECL Provisioning:

As stated in Note no. 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has not received balance confirmations for trade receivables
outstanding for more than 180 days as at 31st March 2025. These receivables constitute approximately 53% in value of the confirmations
sought. For receivables outstanding for less than 180 days, confirmations were received in a substantial number of cases.

The management has represented that it undertook a comprehensive process of seeking balance confirmations from all customers and
made multiple follow-up efforts. Despite these efforts, a significant portion of the older balances remain unconfirmed.

The Company has also informed us that it remains confident of recovery of these balances and is evaluating an assignment of certain
receivables as part of its recovery plan. Further, the Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables during the year in
respect of trade receivables and, based on its assessment, has not recorded any significant ECL provision beyond this.

However, in the absence of direct confirmations and sufficient alternative audit evidence regarding the recoverability of these older balances,
we are unable to determine whether any further adjustments are necessary to the carrying value of these receivables by way of additional
provisioning, write-offs, or write-backs.

Accordingly, our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 is qualified to the extent of the possible effects
of adjustments, if any, that may be required on account of the forementioned matter.

Emphasis of Matter:

The Company has serviced the interest and principal payable on the Non-Convertible Debentures on time in all months except from
December 2024. There has been an agreed Moratorium from Dec 2024 to Mar 2024. (Reference is drawn to Note 3 of Consolidated
Financial Statements)

According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year one Windmill was sold and from June 2024 to February 2025,
Power plant was under shutdown. (Reference is drawn to Note 6 of Consolidated Financial Statements)

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We

Annual Report 2024-25 159




TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

%

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis of
Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.No

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Litigations — Contingencies

Assessment of litigations and related disclosure of contingent
liabilities [Refer to Note 2 (a) to the consolidated financial
statements— “Use of estimates and critical accounting
judgements — Provisions and contingent liabilities”, Note 44
to the Consolidated Financial Statements — “Contingencies”.
As at March 31, 2025, the Company has exposures towards
litigations relating to various matters as set out in the aforesaid
Notes.

Significant management judgement is required to assess such
matters to determine the probability of occurrence of material
outflow of economic resources and whether a provision
should be recognised, or a disclosure should be made. The
management judgement is also supported with legal advice
in certain cases as considered appropriate. As the ultimate
outcome of the matters are uncertain and the positions taken
by the management are based on the application of their best
judgement, related legal advice including those relating to
interpretation of laws/regulations, it is considered to be a key
audit matter.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures included the following:
* We understood, assessed, and tested the design and
operatingeffectivenessofkeycontrolssurroundingassessment
of litigations relating to the relevant laws and regulations;

* We discussed with management the recent developments
and the status of the material litigations which were reviewed
and noted by the audit committee;

* We performed our assessment on a test basis on the
underlying calculations supporting the contingent liabilities/
other significant litigations made in the Consolidated
Financial Statements;

* We considered external opinions, where relevant, obtained
by management;

* We evaluated management’s assessments and assessed
the reliability of the management's past estimates/
judgements;

* We assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures.
Based on the above work performed, assessment in respect
of litigations and related disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities/ other significant litigations in the Consolidated
Financial Statements are considered to be reasonable.

Other Matters:

We did not audit the Financial Statements/Financial Information of a subsidiary whose financial statements / financial information
reflect Total assets of Rs. 1,690.74 lakhs as at 31st March 2025, Total Revenues of Rs. 9,951.15 lakhs and Total Net Profit after tax of
Rs. 13.72 lakhs for the year ended on that date as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements/
Financial Information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the holding the Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and
our reports in terms of sub sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is solely
based on the Report of the other Auditor.

We bring to the attention of the users that the audit of the Consolidated financial statements has been performed in the aforesaid
conditions.
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m Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated state of affairs (financial position), Consolidated
net loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the respective financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company,
its Subsidiaries have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or events may cause the Subsidiaries to cease to continue as a Going Concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or Business Activities within the Group to

express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial statements of which
we are the Independent Auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements which have been
audited by other Auditors such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our Audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are the Independent Auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is not modified
in respect of the matters with respect to our Reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and subject to our Qualified Opinion Paragraph we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors,
except that reporting under Rule 11(g) is separately commented upon in paragraph (i)(iv).

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Consolidated Total Comprehensive Loss
and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report agree with relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements;
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d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the Statutory Auditors of its Subsidiary Companies,
none of the directors of the Group Companies is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financials’ controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure “A”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) The modification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) on
reporting under Sec. 143(3)(b) and para (i)(iv) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the Consolidated Financial position of the
Group — Refer Note. 44 to the Consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are no material foreseeable
losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

iv. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 (Revised 2025 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements carried out in accordance with the
Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have
not carried out any audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule 11(g) nor have we
carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

j) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO report issued by the auditor of the subsidiary
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, provided to us by
the Management of the Company and based on the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO
report by the component auditor and provided to us, we report that the auditor of such company have not reported any qualifications
or adverse remarks in their CARO report.

For M/s CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004915S/5200036

Sd/-

E.K.Srivatsan

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No: 225064
Date: 30th May, 2025 UDIN: 25225064BMJMQP3050
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w Annexure A to The Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Tulsyan
NEC Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub — Section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our Audit of the Consolidated Financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended 31st March 2025, we have
audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial reporting of Tulsyan NEC Limited (hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company)
and its subsidiaries as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary companies are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the Holding Company, and its
Subsidiaries. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries which are Companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

A Company’s Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
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M evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that Internal Financial Controls

over Financial Reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company, its Subsidiaries have in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other matters:

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting in so far as it relates to of its subsidiary companies is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

For M/s CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 004915S/S200036

Sd/-
E.K.Srivatsan
Partner
Membership No: 225064
25225064BMJMQP3050
Place: Chennai
Date: 30th May, 2025
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion
submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial Results - (Consolidated)

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025
[Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016)
Amount (Rs. in Lacs)

L. | SL Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported before adjusting | (audited figures after adjusting

for qualifications) for qualifications)
1 Turnover / Total income 87,178.38 87,178.38
2 Total Expenditure 94,434.27 94,434.27
3 | Net Profit/(Loss) (7,255.89) (7,255.89)
4 | Earnings Per Share (44.08) (44.08)
5 | Total Assets 82,692.09 82,692.09
6 | Total Liabilities 82,692.09 82,692.09
7 | Net Worth 24,979.33 24,979.33
8 | Any other financial item(s) 0.00 0.00

(as felt appropriate by the management)

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

a.

Details of Audit Qualification:

As stated in Note no. 7 to the consolidated financial results, the Company has not received balance confirmations for trade
receivables outstanding for more than 180 days as at 31st March 2025. These receivables constitute approximately 53%
in value of the confirmations sought. For receivables outstanding for less than 180 days, confirmations were received in a
substantial number of cases.

The management has represented that it undertook a comprehensive process of seeking balance confirmations from all
customers and made multiple follow-up efforts. Despite these efforts, a significant portion of the older balances remain
unconfirmed.

The Company has also informed us that it remains confident of recovery of these balances and is evaluating an assignment
of certain receivables as part of its recovery plan. Further, the Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables
during the year in respect of trade receivables and, based on its assessment, has not recorded any significant ECL provision
beyond this.

However, in the absence of direct confirmations and sufficient alternative audit evidence regarding the recoverability of these
older balances, we are unable to determine whether any further adjustments are necessary to the carrying value of these
receivables by way of additional provisioning, write-offs, or write-backs.

Accordingly, our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 is qualified to the extent of the
possible effects of adjustments, if any, that may be required on account of the aforementioned matter.

Type of Audit Qualification: (Qualified Opinion / Disclaimer of Opinion / Adverse Opinion)
Qualified Opinion

Frequency of qualification: (Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since how long continuing)
Repetitive

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the Auditor, Management’s Views:
Not quantified by the Auditor
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e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the Auditor:

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:
Management has not made an estimate of the impact.

If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

As at 31st March 2025, the Company has outstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs. 9,475 lakhs, a portion of
which have been outstanding for more than 180 days. During the year, the Company undertook a detailed exercise to
confirm the validity and recoverability of these receivables. Confirmation requests were issued multiple times covering
100% of the receivables, using both physical and electronic means

The Company received confirmations for a substantial portion of receivables outstanding for less than 180 days.
However, for receivables outstanding beyond 180 days (which constitute approximately 65% of total trade receivables
by value), direct confirmations were not received in many cases, despite repeated follow-up. The Company attributes
the lack of response primarily to the apprehension of legal action on overdue balances, given the Company’s recent
focus on recovery.

Nonetheless, the Company has verified the genuineness of the underlying transactions, maintains ongoing
commercial relationships with most of these customers, and remains confident of recovery. The Company is also
actively considering the assignment of certain receivables as part of its recovery strategy.

In accordance with its assessment of the expected credit loss (ECL) under the applicable financial reporting
framework, the Company has written off a small portion of the trade receivables during the year and believes that no
further material provisioning is warranted as of the balance sheet date.

Auditors’ Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

Management should take considerable efforts to estimate the impact of qualification.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan
Managing Director
DIN: 00632802

Place : Chennai.
Date : 30th May, 2025

Sd/-

M. Parthasarathy
Independent Director and
Audit Committee Chairman
DIN : 08277111

Sd/-
Shanthakumar R P
Chief Financial Officer

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)

Sd/-
E.K.Srivatsan
Partner

M.No. 225064
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025
(All amounts are in lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 52,766.09 54,818.32
Intangible assets 4 43.24 60.55
Capital work in progress 5 709.23 237.32
Lease Assets - ROU 4(a) 87.23 80.53
Financial assets
Investments 6 0.03 0.03
Other financial assets 7(a) 3,115.44 2,993.84
Deffered Tax Asset 7(b) 6,522.52 6,522.52
Other non-current assets 8 297.29 344.49
Total non-current assets 63,541.07 65,057.57
Current assets
Inventories 9 7,331.88 8,149.13
Financial assets
Investments 10 3.91 5.16
Trade receivables 1 9,812.45 10,630.57
Cash and cash equivalents 12 28.73 120.32
Bank balances other than above 13 4.94 244
Other financial assets 14 - -
Other current assets 15(a) 1,530.89 1,622.56
Assest held for Sale 15 (b) 438.22 -
Total current assets 19,151.02 20,530.17
Total Assets 82,692.09 85,587.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 1,646.14 1,655.14
Other equity 17 23,333.19 32,720.06
Total Equity 24,979.33 34,375.20
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 22,805.65 21,999.20
Other financial liabilities 19(a) 2,182.05 1,960.87
Lease Asset Liability 19(b) 2.64 -
Provisions 20 326.30 597.62
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 21 -
Total non-current liabilities 25,316.65 24,557.69
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22 14,430.72 11,498.78
Trade payables 23 14,014.05 12,448.34
Other financial liabilities 24(a) - 214.15
Lease Asset Liability 24(b) 419 -
Provisions 25 52.50 59.16
Other current liabilities 26 3,894.67 2,434.43
Total current liabilities 32,396.12 26,654.86
Total liabilities 57,712.76 51,212.56
Total Equity and Liabilities 82,692.09 85,587.75

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board
For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan
Managing Director
DIN: 00632802

Place : Chennai.
Date : 30th May, 2025

Sd/-

Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Executive Chairman
DIN : 00632823

Sd/-
CA Shantha Kumar RP
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

M. Parthasarathy
Director

DIN: 08277111

Sd/-
Parvati Soni
Company Secretary

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)

Sd/-
E.K.Srivatsan
Partner

M.No. 225064
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts are in lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Continuing Operations

Income

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Employee benefits expense

Power & fuel

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax

Exceptional items

Profit/ (Loss) before tax from continuing operations
Income tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax credit/ (charge)

Income tax earlier years

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
Income tax relating to these items

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Notes

27
28

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

37

38

39

For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
86,832.22 97,700.08
346.15 1,758.96
87,178.37 99,459.04
69,249.27 85,064.15
926.68 2.51
(235.80) (84.45)
2,269.92 2,315.98
8,583.73 5,202.13
2,294.12 2,542.90
6,689.97 4,173.34
4,656.37 5,008.99
94,434.26 104,225.55
(7,255.89) (4,766.51)
(7,255.89) (4,766.51)
- 44.04
- (188.93)
(7,255.89) (4,911.40)
8.15 (223.73)
8.15 (223.73)
(7,247.73) (5,135.13)
(44.08) (29.67)
(44.08) (29.67)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board

For Tulsyan NEC Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan
Managing Director Executive Chairman
DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823

Sd/- Sd/-

CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennai.
Date : 30th May, 2025

Sd/-

M. Parthasarathy
Director

DIN: 08277111

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)

Sd/-

E.K.Srivatsan

Partner
M.No. 225064
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Cash Flow From Operating Activities

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit before income tax (7,255.89) (4,766.51)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,294.12 2,542.90
(Profit)/ loss on sale of fixed assets (178.34) (1,707.25)
Profit on sale of Investments 1.20 2.63
Finance cost 6,689.97 4,173.35
Interest Income (125.68) (8.34)
NCD Redemption Premium -2,149.48
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (724.09) 236.76
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in loans - -
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (121.60) (1,956.96)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 817.25 2,066.76
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 818.10 (401.31)
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets 138.81 546.46
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions, other financial liabilities and other liabilities 1406.15 (2,147.30)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 1569.89 3.340.49
Cash generated from operations 3904.51 1,684.91
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 0.00 (154.56)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 3904.51 1.530.35
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWIP) (1,411.27) (471.00)
Sale proceeds of PPE 269.85 5,740.53
(Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks (net) (2.50) 7.09
(Purchase)/ disposal proceeds of Investments (net) 1.24 -
Interest received 125.68 8.34
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (1,017.00) 5,284.96
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (net of share application money) (9.00) 0.00
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings (net) 806.44 (2,091.24)
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings (net) 2,931.93 (2,146.16)
Finance cost (6,689.97) (3,727.62)
Direct Transferred to Retained Earnings (18.50) -
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C) (2,979.11) (7.965.02)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (91.60) (1,149.72)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 120.32 1,270.04
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 28.72 120.32
Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 “Cash Flow Statements”.
2. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 23.21 114.41
Cash on hand 5.52 591
28.72 120.32

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants

(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan M. Parthasarathy E.K.Srivatsan
Managing Director Executive Chairman Director Partner
DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823 DIN: 08277111 M.No. 225064
Sd/- Sd/-
CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Chennai.
Date : 30th May, 2025
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED

w Tulsyan NEC Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
1. Corporate Information
The company is engaged in the manufacturing of TMT bars, Coal Based Power Plant and Synthetics Woven fabrics and sacks. It has
manufacturing plants at Chennai (Gummudipoondi) and Bangalore (Doddaballapura). The Company has one Sponge Iron Manufacturing

Company called Chitrakoot Steel and Power P Ltd., at Gummudipoondi and one Media Company managing Intellectual Propery, name Color
Peppers Media P Ltd., in Chennai.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency All financial information
presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30th May, 2025.
2A. Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Company is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life on straight line method. The depreciable
amount for assets is the cost of an asset. Once the asset is depreciated to its residual value, it is carried on in its residual value.

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account
the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance
support. Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation.

Intangible assets and amortization
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Group, it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired by the Group that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
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Subsequent measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortization is
recognized in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date
that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets.

Intangible Assets are amortized over a period of five years.
Current Tax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and management's judgement by evaluating
positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of relevant provisions of law.

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting date to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market quotes are not available.
In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are,
as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is
not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The assumptions,
selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market conditions
and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of Non-financial assets - PPE

The impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable amount of such assets. The
assumptions used in computing the recoverable amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash
flows, discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Defined Benefit Plans and other long term employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value of such obligation are determined by
the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and aftrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, this
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
management uses valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised
in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and
on past experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary
from the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.
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m 2B Recent accounting pronouncements

MCA (Ministry of Corporate Affairs) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. MCA issued notification on 31st
March 2023. These amendments are applicable to the Group for the financial year starting 1st April 2023.

3. Material Accounting Policy Information
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii)  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iiiy  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified 6 months as its operating cycle.

b) Fair value measurement

The Group has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between marke
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability;
i) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and the best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and procedures for both recurring and non - recurring
fair value measurement. External valuers are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s board of directors.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The component wise fair
value measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.

Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of
ownership is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per the inco-terms agreed with the
customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise duty and after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable
taxes on sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption.

Sale of Services

Income from sale of services is recognised when the services are rendered as per the terms of the agreement and when no significant
uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

Power Generation

Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement with the State Electricity Board/ Electricity
Distribution Companies are consumed at factories. The monetary values of such power generated that are captively consumed are not
recognised as revenue.

Export Entitlements

In respect of the exports made by the Group, the related export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the incentives/ entitlements as per the terms of the scheme is established and
where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.
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Presentation

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying
asset, if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date, are disclosed as capital advances
under long term loans and advances and the cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed
as capital work in progress.

Component Cost

All material/ significant components have been identified and have been accounted separately. The useful life of such component
are analysed independently and wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful life of
components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of
repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed assets and their issue is expected to be
irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and
when consumed.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life on straight line method. The
depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset. Once the asset is depreciated to its residual value, it is carried on in its residual
value.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. For deletion/ disposals, the
depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets,
costing 5000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Inventories

Raw materials, Components, Stores and Spares and Work-in-Progress are valued at cost. Finished goods are valued at cost or
realizable value whichever is less. The basis of determining cost for various categories of inventories are as follows:

(i) Raw materials, components, stores and spares: At lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value.
(i) Work-in-process : At lower of cost of raw material and component including related overheads and net realizable value.

(iii) Finished goods: At lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes raw material components and related overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their contractual cash flow characteristics
and the entity’s business model of managing them.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

¢ Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost

¢ Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at Fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Other Financial Instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

o Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost

The Group classifies a financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost, if both the following
conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss.

Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at FVTOCI

The Group classifies a financial instrument (other than equity instrument) at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

The financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes finance income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI financial instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at FVTPL

The Company classifies all financial instruments, which do not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit
and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified
as at FVTPL. Where the Company makes an irrevocable election of equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent
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changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income, without any recycling of the amounts from OClI to profit and loss, even on
sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual terms give rise to cash flows on
specified dates that represents SPPI, are measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, deposits, interest receivable, and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVTOCI Equity investments in companies other than subsidiaries and associates if an option exercised at the time
of initial recognition.

FVTPL Other investments in equity instruments

Derecognition
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets other than equity instruments, and that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables
and bank balance.

b) Financial assets, other than equity instruments that are measured at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
* Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
¢ All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows,
the Company considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.
This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various
financial instruments is described below:

* Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

*  Financial instruments, other than equity instruments, measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated
impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each reporting date. Other financial assets
are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the
following basis:

Name of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology

Trade Receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over lifetime of the assets are estimated by using
a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions which are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics such as
nature of industry, customer segment, past due status and other factors that are relevant to estimate
the expected cash loss from these assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment
loss. When there is significant change in credit risk since initial recognition, the impairment is measured
based on probability of default over the life time. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and financial guarantee contracts.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
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as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These
gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Classification Name of the financial liability

Amortised cost Borrowings, trade payables, interest accrued, unclaimed / disputed dividends, security deposits and other
financial liabilities not for trading.

FVTPL Foreign Exchange Forward contracts being derivative contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting under
Ind AS 109 and other financial liabilities held for trading. The Company does not take forward contract.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at higher of (i) The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments and (i) The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18 — Revenue.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group does not hold any derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.

Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss
This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not qualify for
hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated
but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in
net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at
fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income. Assets / liabilities in this
category are presented as current assets / current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within
12 months after the Balance Sheet date. However the Group does not deal in any derivate/hedging. Hence the above will not be
applicable to the Group

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification
is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external
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or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised ;
SNo | ciassification | classification Accounting treatment

1 Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous
amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L.

2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR
is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

3 Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous
amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

4 FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying

amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at
amortised cost.

5 FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

6 FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Foreign currency transactions and translations
Transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations whereever it deems
necessary that such coverage is approriate. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is
amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary items which are covered by forward exchange
contract, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference. Any profit
or loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for that year.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of
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borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate
is determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost
that the Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other
borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax
assets arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
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already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClI in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each
balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in
the period in which the absences occur.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of
the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis
of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised
in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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m 0) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These
provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of money is doubtful in the judgement of the management.
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities
are disclosed separately.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at
the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.

Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the financial statements.
p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with original maturity of less
than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of Cash flow statement.

r) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
Notes - (Contd)
Note No. 4a
a) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
As at As at As at
AAIBLEA March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying amounts of
Lease hold Assets 87.23 80.53 81.41
Total 87.23 80.53 81.41
GROSS CARRYING VALUE Lease hold Assets Total
Balance as at April 1,2021 (Deemed Cost) 95.47 95.47
Additions - -
Deletions
Balance as at March 31, 2022 95.47 95.47
Additions i )
Deletions 95.47 95.47
Balance as at March 31, 2023 ' )
Additions
R 95.47 95.47
Balance as at March 31, 2024 8.45 8.45
Additions -
Deletions 103.92 103.92
Balance as at March 31, 2025
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Lease hold Assets Total
Balance as at April 1,2021 (Deemed Cost) 12.30 12.30
Amortisation 0.88 0.88
Eliminated on disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2022 13.18 13.18
Amortisation 0.88 0.88
Eliminated on disposals i )
Balance as at March 31, 2023 14.06 14.06
Amortisation 0.88 0.88
Eliminated on disposals 1 9‘; 1 9‘;
Balance as at March 31, 2024 175 175
Amortisation
Eliminated on disposals 16.69 12.10
Balance as at March 31, 2025
PARTICULARS Lease hold Assets Total
Carrying amount as on April 1, 2021 83.17 83.17
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2022 82.29 82.29
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2023 81.41 81.41
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2024 80.53 80.53
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2025 87.23 87.23
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Notes - (Contd)
b) BREAK-UP OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES :
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at year ended:
As at As at As at
G EUE March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 419
Non-current lease liabilities 2.64
Total 6.83
c) MOVEMENT IN LEASE LIABILITIES :
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended:
PARTICULARS
Opening Balance
Reclassified on account of adoption of IND AS 116
Additions through acquisition of subsidiary 8.45
Additions
Additions
Finance costs accrued during the period 0.33
Deletions -
Payment of Lease liabilities (1.95)
Foreign currency translation -
Closing Balance 6.83

d) The table below provides details regarding the contractua
On an undiscounted basis

| maturities of lease liabilities

PARTICULARS

Less than one year

One to five years 6.83

More than five years

Total 6.83
e) Others

PARTICULARS

Interest on lease liabilities 0.33

Amortisation of right to use assets 1.75

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Total cash outflows for leases 1.95

f) Critical judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an exten-
sion option, or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease
term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

(i) If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain not terminate

(or to extend).
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The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exer-
cise it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which
affects the assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the current financial year, there was no revision in the lease terms.

g) Variable lease payments

The Group has not entered into any lease contracts that include variable lease options.

h) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by

the Company and not with the respective lessor.

Note No. 5

March 31, 2025

As at

As at
March 31, 2024

Capital Work-in-progress

Capital work in progress

709.23

237.32

709.23

237.32

Annexure to Note 5
Capital work-in-progress ageing

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Particulars

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of

Lessthan | 1to2 2to3 More than
1 year Years years 3years
Projects in progress 574.10 135.13 NIL NIL

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars

Amount in capital wo

rk-in-progress for a period of

Lessthan | 1to2 2t03 More than
1 year Years years 3 years
Projects in progress 237.32 NIL NIL NIL
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Note No. 6

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Non-current investments

Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTPL
Unquoted

i. Investments in Subsidiaries

Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Limited
(64,89,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

ii. Investments in Other Companies

Investments in Debt Instruments at FVTPL

Unquoted

Shamrao Vithal Co-op Bank Ltd (25 Shares of Rs.100/- each)

Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate cost of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

0.03

0.03

0.03

0.03

0.03

0.03

Note No. 7(a)

Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Unamortised finance expense

Fixed Deposits towards Bank Guarantee

3,081.44
34.00

2,993.84

3,115.44

2,993.84

Other non- current financial assets

Note No. 7(b)

Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid
Voluntary retirement scheme payment to be allowed
On account of forward of losses

6,522.52

6,522.52

6,522.52

6,522.52
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Notes - (Contd)
As at As at
Note No. 8 March31,2025 |  March 31,2024
Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to Suppliers - -
Advance income-tax and TDS (net of provision for tax) 115.14 137.26
MAT Credit Entitlement 37.57 37.57
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received -
Advance TCS 111.19 -
Other non-current assets 33.39 114.74
54.92
297.29 344.47
Note No. 9
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Materials 1,377.31 2,262.85
Finished Goods 3,861.79 3,634.28
Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading) 108.61
Stores 1,984.17 2,251.99
7,331.88 8,149.13
Note No. 10
Current Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTPL
Investments in companies other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Quoted
Canara Bank (Formerly Syndicate Bank) (864 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each) 3.84 5.09
Unquoted . 0.05' 0.05'
Shamrao Vithal Co-op Bank Ltd (50 Shares of Rs.100/- each) _ i
Investments in Debt Instruments at FVTPL .
Unquoted - -
National Savings Certificates 0.02 0.02
3.91 5.16
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Note No. 11 March 31,235; March 31, e
Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are
due for payment 4,787.83 4,148.80
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Other debts 5,103.62 6,538.49
9,891.45 10,687.29
Allowance for Expected credit Loss (79.00) (56.73)
9,812.45 10,630.57

Disclosure Of Ratios By Companies as per new Schedule Il Amendment
Annexure to Note 11

As at 31st March 2025, the Company has outstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs. 9,475 lakhs, a portion of which have been
outstanding for more than 180 days. During the year, the Company undertook a detailed exercise to confirm the validity and recoverability
of these receivables. Confirmation requests were issued multiple times covering 100% of the receivables, using both physical and electronic
means.

The Company received confirmations for a substantial portion of receivables outstanding for less than 180 days. However, for receivables
outstanding beyond 180 days (which constitute approximately 65% of total trade receivables by value), direct confirmations were not re-
ceived in many cases, despite repeated follow-up. The Company attributes the lack of response primarily to the apprehension of legal action
on overdue balances, given the Company’s recent focus on recovery.

Nonetheless, the Company has verified the genuineness of the underlying transactions, maintains ongoing commercial relationships with
most of these customers, and remains confident of recovery. The Company is also actively considering the assignment of certain receivables
as part of its recovery strategy.

In accordance with its assessment of the expected credit loss (ECL) under the applicable financial reporting framework, the Company has
written off a small portion of the trade receivables during the year and believes that no further material provisioning is warranted as of the
balance sheet date.

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Payment
Trad_e R?e"‘vzblf S Lessthan | 6 Months 1t02 2t03 3 years Total
g 6 Months to Years years and above
1 Year
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered 3,860.66 297.06 79.07 589.71 4,763.78 9,590.28
Good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables Considered - - - - 66.73 66.73
Doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables Considered - - - - 161.20 161.20
Good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables Considered
Doubtful
3,860.66 297.06 79.07 589.71 4,985.94 9,812.44
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Note No. 12

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand

Balances with Banks
- In Current Account
- In Collection Account
- In Deposit Account

Cheque and Demand Drafts on Hand

5.52

23.21

5.91

114.43

28.73

120.32

Note No. 13

Other Bank Balances

In fixed deposits
In margin money with banks
In Earmarked Accounts
- Unpaid Dividend Account
- Unpaid Interest Account

1.13
3.81

2.44

4.94

2.44

Note No. 14

Other current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Deposits
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Note No. 15(a) March 31,23':; March 31, 2(5)222
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Income and claims receivable -
Interest accrued on Deposits =
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received -
Advance for Supplies and expenses 43.96 14.45
Staff advances & Prepaid expenses 42.02 58.05
Special Premium Accrued - NCD (Refer Note 52 ) 354.26 600.00
Advance Paid 467.20 502.75
Advances for Fixed Assets (0.03)
CVD
Drawback 19.12 19.12
Excise 13.87 13.87
Import Licence
Balances with Statutory Authorities 590.50 414.25
Service tax -
VAT -
1,530.89 1,622.56
Note No. 15 (b)
Asset Held for Sale 438.22

Annexure to Note 15(b)
Non-Current Assets held for sale

1. ANon- current asset held for sale is a non- current asset that will be recovered through selling the asset rather than usage.
2. Recognition Criteria: Non-current assets held for sale

To classify a non-current asset as held for sale, the asset (or disposal group):

2.1. Must be available for immediate sale in its present condition

2.2. may be subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups) and

2.3. Its sale must be highly probable. That is, significantly more likely than not.

Thus, an asset (or disposal group) cannot be classified as a non-current asset (or disposal group) held for sale, if the entity
intends to sell it in a distant future.

3. Indications of Highly Probable
3.1. Management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset

3.2. An exchange of non-current assets constitutes a sale transaction when the exchange has commercial substance
(Ind AS-16 Property, Plant and Equipment’)

3.3. An active programme to locate a buyer and completer the plan must have been initiated.
3.4. The asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable relative to its current fair value.
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3.5. The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

3.6. However an extension period does not prohibit classification as held for sale if the delay is beyond management’s control
and there is sufficient evidence of management’s commitment to its plan.

3.7. The actions required to complete the plan should indicate that significant changes to the plan or withdrawal from the plan

are unlikely.
As at As at
Note No. 16 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
2,60,00,000 (2,60,00,000) Equity sh f Rs. 10/- each
1,00,00,000 21 00,00 ooo; egu:\ly . (:t'bls d eacm f ALY 2,600.00
,00,00, ,00,00, b Non convertible redeemable preference
shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
3,600.00 3,600.00
Issued Share Capital
1,66,66,666 (previous year 1,66,66,666) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,666.67 1,666.67
1,666.67 1,666.67
Paid up & Subscribed Share Capital
1,64,61,407 (previous year 1,64,61,407) Equity shares of 1,646.14 1,646.15
Rs. 10/- each (fully paid up)
“0” (previous year 94,815) Equity shares of . 5.69
Rs. 10/- each (Rs. 6/- paid up)
“0” (previous year 1,10,444) Equity shares of - 3.30
Rs. 10/- each (Rs. 3/- paid up)
1,646.14 1,655.14
Notes:
b Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,666,666 1,666,666
Add: Issued during the year (205,259)
Balance at the end of the year 1,461,407 1,666,666

ii. Shares issued for consideration other than cash

There are no shares which have been issued for consideration other than cash during the last 5 years.

iii. Redeemable Preference Shares

6% Non convertible redeemable preference shares issued by the company are classified as financial liabilities (non-current borrowings)

[refer note 18] in accordance with Ind AS.
iv. Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change
Name of the share holder No. of Shares % Total Shares During

The Year
SANJAY TULSYAN 4,475,481 27.19 1.26%
LALIT KUMAR TULSYAN 4,119,091 25.02 1.24%
PRIYA TULSYAN 954,982 5.80 1.22%
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v. Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

a. The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. The equity shares of the company
having par value of Rs. 10/- rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend.

b. All equity shares issued carry equal rights for dividend declared by the Company. There are no restrictions attached to any of the
shares. However as far as the share held by the promoters/ promoters group is concerned, the same has been pledged in favour of
the lenders as part of CDR compiliance. Subsequently on Compromise Settlement, the Pledge of Shares are being released from
Lenders and are being pledged to Debenture Trustees (Refer Note 47)

c¢.  The Company has not issued any securities with the right / option to convert the same into equity shares at a later date.

d. The dividend proposed if any, by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. During the year, the Company proposed a dividend of Rs.NIL per equity share held (previous year Rs. Nil per
equity share held)

e. Inthe event of liquidation, the Equity Share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of
all preferential amounts in proportion of their share holding.

Note No. 17 March 31,A232a; March 31, e
Other Equity
General Reserve 2,390.00 2.390.00
Investment Allowance reserve 59.39 59.39
Securities Premium Reserve 12,373.96 12,373.96
Other Comprehensive Income (292.22) (296.71)
Capital Reserve 9.00
Profit and Loss Account 8,793.07 18,193.47
23,333.21 32,720.06
a) General Reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,390.00 2,390.00
b) Investment Allowance Reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 59.39 59.39

¢) Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 12,373.96 12,373.96

Additions during the year -

Balance at the end of the year 12,373.96 12,373.96

d) Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year (296.71) (72.98)

Additions during the year 8.15 (223.73)

Deductions/Adjustments during the year (3.66)

Balance at the end of the year (292.22) (296.71)

e) Capital Reserve 9.00

f) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 18193.45 23104.89
Previous year Provision for Taxation Reveresed -
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Note No. 18

March 31, 2025

TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
Net profit for the period (7,255.89) (4,911.47)
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (2,149.48)
Ind AS Adjustments 5.00
Dividend paid (including tax on dividends)
Balance at the end of the year 8,793.07 18,193.45
As at As at

March 31, 2024

Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured
Preference Shares

6% Non convertible redeemable preference shares 884.30 884.30
Term Loans * .
From Banks 2.65 34.19
Non Convertible Debentures (Refer Note 52) 25,733.88 22,436.83
Vehicle Loans 27,386.83
HDFC Bank Ltd 73.13 86.78
Unsecured
From Body Corporate 5 .
From Directors 1,482.90 1,272.90
From others 154.59 -
28,331.44 24,714.99
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in note 22) (5,525.79) (2,715.79)
Interest Liability reversed as per Compromise Agreement 22,805.65 21,999.20
* (refer note 47) for terms and conditions and security details
Note No. 19(a)
Other non current financial liabilities
Premium on redemption of preference shares payable 2,182.05 1,960.87
2,182.05 1,960.87
Note No. 19(b)
Lease Asset Liability 2.64
2.64
Note No. 20
Provisions (Non-current)
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 280.64 564.72
Compensted absence 45.66 32.91
(Refer Note 50) 326.30 597.62
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As at As at
NS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) - Net
Deferred tax liabilities
Related to Fixed Assets -
Related to Others -
Deferred tax assets
Related to Fixed Assets :
Related to Others :
Net deferred tax liability/ (asset) -
Note No. 22
Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings *
Secured
From banks - Working capital term loans 1,984.98 1,879.51
Current maturities of long-term debt 5,500.00 2,715.79
Loan from others 1,413.03 1,443.69
Unsecured - -
Loans from body corporate 5,532.71 5,406.02
Loan from others - 53.78
Inter Corporate Deposits - -
Interest Liability reversed as per Compromise Agreement .
14,430.72 11,498.78
* (refer note 47) for terms and conditions and security details
Note No. 23
Trade payables *
Supplies and Services 14,014.05 11,893.34
Expenses and others C
For Project - 555.00
14,014.05 12,448.34
*Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the management represents the principal amount payable to these enterprises. There are no interest due and outstanding
as at the reporting date. (Refer Note 43).
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Annexure to Note 23

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Payment

JJ:;:‘Z?CV:;ETE Lessthan6 | 6 Monthsto | 1to2 Years | 2to 3 years | 3 years and Total
Months 1 Year above
(i) MSME 749.385 639.00 7.77 0.29 3.30 1,399.75
(ii) Others 10085.36 2,307.21 109.83 107.38 1.61 12,611.39
(iii) Disputed MSME
(iv) Disputed Others 1.62 0.89 0.40 2.91
10834.75 7,333.98 5,670.19 161.53 483.69 14,014.05
Less : Inter Company -
14,014.05
Note No. 24(a) March 31,2(3);; March 31, 255)
Other current financial liabilities
Deposits for power/Steel = 214.15
- 214.15
Note No. 24(b)
Lease Assee Liability
4.19
4.19
Note No. 25
Provisions (Current)
Provision for proposed equity dividend .
Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend . _
Provision for Expenses / Tax 52.50 59.16
Provision - others . -
52.50 59.16
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Note No. 26

Other current liabilities

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Current maturities of long-term debt 25.79
Interest accrued but not due on secured loans >
Interest Payable 982.75 -
Statutory Dues Payable 399.15 199.17
Advanced & deposits from customer etc. 78.00 1,576.03
Employee =
TDS -
Calamity Relief Fund -
Power Charges Payable 768.30 -
Other current liabilities 1,399.03 44114
Employee Payables 241.65 218.09
3,894.67 2,434.43
Note No. 27
Revenue from Operations
Domestic sales FG 80,777.25 90,245.28
High sea sales -
Export sales 2,560.55 2,315.42
Excise duty -
Domestic Sales RM 3,036.25 4,706.09
Domestic Sales - Stores 397.99 414,64
Sale of Export Scripts 2.50
Processing charges 57.67 18.64
86,832.22 97,700.08
Note No. 28
Other Income
Income from windmills 19.94 172.28
Interest
Interest on term deposit - 2.78
Other interest income 125.68 5.56
Corporate Guarantee Commission - 6.00
Profit on sale of Fixed asset 182.17 1,709.09
Profit on sale of Investment - 2.63
Compensation for Power - 17.31
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 26.24 1.26
Miscellenous Income 12.06 14.33
Less: Income from wind mill set-off against Power & Fuel (19.94) (172.28)
346.15 1,758.96
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For the year For the year
Note No. 29 ended ended

Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Materials

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening inventory of raw materials 2,262.14 4548.42
Raw Materials purchased 64,365.34 74,468.17
Inter Unit Transfer - 2,250.10
Materials Inward 1,089.73 1,687.32
Customs Duty/Coal Cess - 133.25
Less: Discount/Licence/Provision Written back 524.94 862.37
Less: Closing Stock 1,381.07 2,271.16
Captive consumption -
65,811.20 79,953.73
Stores
Opening Stock 2,193.81 2,059.35
Purchases 3,173.31 5,242.88
Materials Inward 0.35 1.98
Less: Closing Stock 1,929.39 219381
3,438.08 5,110.38
Total cost of materials consumed 69,249.28 85,064.15
Note No. 30
Purchase of stock-in-trade - Traded goods
Purchase of stock-in-trade - Traded goods 926.68 2.51
926.68 2.51
Note No. 31
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Closing balance 3,861.78 3,625.98
Opening balance 3,625.98 3,541.54
(235.80) (84.45)
Note No. 32
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and Wages 2,161.68 2,416.57
Contribution to provident and other funds 49.44 47.53
Welfare Expenses 58.80 (148.12)
2,269.92 2,315.98
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For the year For the year
Note No. 33 ended ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Power & Fuel
Power & Fuel expense 8,583.73 5,202.13
8,583.73 5,202.13
Note No. 34
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property, plant, equipment and Right to Use of Asset 2,294.12 2,542.90
2,294.12 2,542.90
Note No. 35
Finance costs
Interest 264.84 272.58
Other Finance Charges 6,425.12 3,900.77
Service Charges for Finance -
6,689.96 4,173.35
Note No. 36
Other expenses
Power Plant Charges 990.40 1,406.95
Repairs
Machinery 135.57 266.93
Building 13.21 6.70
Other Manufacturing Expenses 1,138.51 1,261.54
Processing Charges 147.63 53.09
Insurance 15.08 32.72
Rent 52.65 57.16
Loss on sale of fixed assets 3.83 1.84
Rates & Taxes 77.54 39.88
Legal & consultancy charges 261.47 143.23
Payment to auditors 7.50 7.63
Transport charges 327.81 395.58
Brokerage & commission 108.42 51.45
Selling & administration expenses 1,365.14 1,279.84
Excise duty expenses - -
Bank charges 6.65 1.99
Foreign exchange loss (net) - 1.27
Provision for Expected credit loss 4.95 1.19
4,656.37 5,008.99

Annual Report 2024-25 201




L

TULSYAN NEC LIMITED
Notes - (Contd)
Year Ended Year Ended
i [ 23 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payment to auditors
Statutory Audit fees 7.50 5.90
Taxation fee 2.99 2.99
10.49 8.89
Note No. 37
Exceptional ltems
Exceptional ltem
Note No. 38
Income tax expense
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax - -
Current tax on profits for the year o (188.93)
MAT credit entitlement/reversal
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total current tax expense - (188.93)
Deferred tax
Deferred tax adjustments - 44.04
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) - 44,04
Income tax expense - (144.88)
b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting
profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations (7,255.89) (4,911.40)
c) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive
income Derferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 8.15 (223.73)
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 8.15 (223.73)
Note No. 39
Earnings per share
Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company (7,255.89) (4,911.40)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 16,461,407 16,551,429
Basic earnings per share (Rs) (44.08) (29.67)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs) (44.08) (29.67)
Note No. 40
Earnings in foreign currency
FOB value of exports 419 2.03
4.19 2.03
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Year Ended Year Ended
MEBIEHEE] March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expenditure in foreign currency
Exchange in foreign currency for other matters 2,03 0.19
2.03 0.19
Note No. 41
CIF value of imports
Raw Materials 9,921.69 29.79
9,921.69 29.79
42. Value of imported and indigenous Raw material, Stores and Coal Consumed during the financial year and the percentage of
each to the total consumption
Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars
Rs. In Lakhs Percentage (%) Rs. In Lakhs Percentage (%)
Raw Materials
Imported
Steel scrap* 10,026.07 17.52 23,010.07 32.76
Ingot, billet and re-rollables - - - -
PP/HDPE Granules 87.91 0.15
Others
Steel scrap 27,230.33 - ) )
Ingot, billet and re-rollables 12,021.62 47.58 20,571.33 29.28
PP/HDPE Granules 2,574.27 21.00 18,595.42 26.47
Iron Ore 5,274.08 4.50 2,416.36 3.44
Dolomite 20.13 9.21 5,624.07 8.01
Coal 0.04 28.34 0.04
Imported 7,979.19
Others 507.62 93.03 11,795.06 7921
Stores 6.97 3,096.25 20.79
Imported -
Others 8.17 0.25 )
Add Inter unit Transfers 3,324.63 99.75 2979 3.90
105.26 . 734.46 96.10
6,596.28 -
Total consumption 69,249.28 92,497.44

* Raw Materials purchased on High Sea Basis also considered as Import Purchases
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43. Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (WVSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

the year

per the agreed terms

(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the appointed date during

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act
(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for all the delayed payments, as

(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid

Particulars Bl Rl
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year 1,399.75 1,994.37

*This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company.

The information required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. There are no over dues to parties on
account of principal amount and/or interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made

44. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Nature of Dues {-\mount _Peri_od to Iforum \_Nhere tt_le
in Lacs. which it relates Dispute is pending

Excise 849.30 | Upto June 2017 CESTAT Chennai

Excise/Service Tax 235.27 | April 2013 - June 2017 CESTAT Bangalore

Income Tax Appeals 47.11 | 2010-11 CIT (APPEALS)

GST 9.70 | Apr 2023 - Oct 2023 GST (APPEALS)

VAT 128.52 | 2012-13 VAT AC - HC

Cancellation of FIBC and demand for 168.18 | February 2010 to September 2011 Ministry of Finance - Secretary

repayment of Duty Drawback

TNEB 2,312.85 | 2004-14 TANGEDCO

Excise 63.35 | 2013-14,2014-15 SVLDR,Chennai

GST 96.00 | July'2017 - Mar'2021 Commissionarate, GST, Chennai
Notes:

Contingent Liabilities:

1. The Company has executed (During the year 2009-10 and 2011-12) Corporate Guarantee in favour of the Shamrao Vithal Co-operative
Bank Limited, Mumbai for the loan taken by M/s. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Pvt Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for

Rs. 25 crores

2 The company has received a notice from the office of the Director General of Foreign Trade, Bangalore, asking to show cause as to
why penalty upto 5 times of the CIF value of goods imported of a value of Rs.44.34 Crores imposed in respect of 44 Advance licenses
for alleged non completion of the export obligations in respect of those licenses. Post issue of the notice, the company’s name was
added in the “Denied Entity List”. The Company had represented to the said authority that the Export obligation in individual case or
when clubbed with other license/licenses in accordance with the Foreign trade Policy and procedures with or without relaxation of the
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norms as may be applicable has been completed. Out of 44 Licences for which the notice was issued, Export obligations Discharge
certificate has been received in respect of 42 Licences the CIF Value of which is Rs.44.20 Crore leaving 2 licences with a CIF Value of

Rs.0.14 Crores pending. Export obligation in respect of the said 2 licences have indeed been completed and the company is hopeful
Notes - (Contd)

of obtaining the Export obligations Discharge certificate in the course of time. Based on the representation given by the company the
name of the company was removed from the Denied Entity List, however company has not received any communication from the DGFT
in this regard dropping the show cause notice.

3. The liability in respect of Excise and VAT is subject to the levy of additional interest till the date adjudication from the due date, in case
the liability is confirmed by the Appellate Authority. However, no estimation of such interest payable, if any, has been made or has not
been provided. Hence, no liability will accrue in respect of the interest, if the order is in favour of the company and in the opinion of the
management, the decision will be in the favour of the company.

4. Resurgent Power projects Limited (Formerly Enmas GB Power Systems Projects Limited) has demanded payment of Rs.13,25,31,282/-
as dues for the Power Project | and |l executed by them and has issued a notice under section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016. In view of the substandard performance of 1st Turbine and delayed implementation of Power Plant 2 the company has debited
the 11,78,32,463/- as liquidated damages the payable to the said party as per the books of accounts is nil. Accordingly, the company
has disputed the amount and has sought to invoke the arbitration proceedings against the party to settle the matter. The liquidated
damages debited to the party has been credited to the cost of the project. Pending these matters no provision has been made against
the claim in the books of accounts.

Impairment of Assets:

1. The expected credit loss in respect of receivables which are outstanding for a long period and the chances of recovery are uncertain.
These dues include dues from customers who have already been referred to NCLT under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. The
amount outstanding dues where credit loss could be expected is Rs.13.97 Crores.

2. The Goa industrial Development Corporation has vide its order dated 20th April 2017 has cancelled the lease of 8890 SFT out of 12700
SFT for non utilization of the land allotted on lease for the industrial purpose. Company has filed a civil suit against the said corporation
reclaiming the leased land and the matter is pending with the court. Pending the settlement the company continues with the possession
of the property.

3. The company was assessed to Income Tax and an order was passed u/sec 143(3) on 29/12/2019 for AY 2017-18. In completing the
captioned assessment a sum of Rs 48,91,37,362/- was added back. The addition was on account of the Company’s transactions with
Tanishi Commotrades Pvt Limited (sales and other transactions), Subham Trading /Neeraj Trading Company(purchases ) and a sum of
Rs 6829701 for delayed remittance of PF/ESI. The company has also preferred an appeal for AY 2011-12 with CIT(A). The Company
is hopeful of its success at the appellate forums on the captioned additions.
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45. Operating Segments

The business of the Company falls under three segments i.e., (a) Steel Division; (b) Synthetic Division; and (c) Power in accordance

with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” and segment information is given below:

Particulars

Segment Revenue
Steel Division
Synthetic Divison
Power

Media

Revenue from operations (Net)

Segment Results

Profit (+) / Loss (-) before tax and finance cost
Steel Division

Synthetic Divison

Power

Media

Total

Add/ Less : Finance Cost
Profit /(Loss) from continuing operations
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations

Profit Before Tax

Segment Assets

Steel Division

Synthetic Divison

Power

Other unallocable corporate assets

Total assets

Segment Liabilities

Steel Division

Synthetic Divison

Power

Other unallocable corporate assets

Total liabilities

Capital Employed (Segment assets-Segment liabilities)
Steel Division

Synthetic Divison

Power

Total capital employed in segments
Unallocable corporate assets less corporate liabilities

Total Capital Employed

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

70,319.78 78,213.50
3514.08 3,305.58
12,998.36 16,181.00
86,832.22 97,700.08
(707.12) 632.88
(436.06) (598.18)
577.27 (627.87)
(565.91) (593.17)
6,689.97 4173.34
(7,255.89) (4,766.51)
(7,255.89) (4,766.51)
27,650.91 38,370.76
8,186.98 8,911.79
46,854.19 38,305.20
82,692.09 85,587.75
35,987.74 14,429.99
11,362.24 9,487.06
10,362.78 27,295.45
57,712.76 51,212.55
(8,336.83) 23,940.77
(3,175.26) (575.27)
36,491.40 11,009.74
24,979.31 34,375.24
24,979.31 34,375.24
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Information relating to geographical areas
(a) Revenue from external customers
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 84,427.87 95,912.48
Outside India 2,404.35 178759
Total 86,832.22 97,700.08

(b) Non current assets

The manufacturing facilities of the Company is situated in India and no non-current assets are held outside India

(c) Information about major customers

Particulars

Number of external customers each contributing more than 10% of total revenue
Total revenue from the above customers

Total

46. Operating lease arrangements

Particulars

As Lessor
The Company has not entered into any operating lease arrangements as lessor.

As Lessee

The Company has not entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities
. The leases are cancellable at the option of either party to lease and may be renewed
based on mutual agreement of the parties.

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Towards Amortisation of ROU

Towards Interest 175
0.33
47. Borrowing Details
Schedule for long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions:
Particulars
i. From Banks
a. Term Loans -
b. Working Capital Term Loan/ Funded Interest Term Loan - -
c. Vehicle Loan 49.99 95.18
ii. From Financial Institutions - -
Non Convertible Debentures 20,233.88 19,746.83
Total 20,283.87 19,842.01
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Schedule for short term borrowings:
Particulars bEE] e
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Secured
From Banks - Working Capital Loans
Canara Bank -
Syndicate Bank -
State Bank of India -
Andhra Bank -
IDBI Bank Limited - -
Vehicle Loan 25.79 25.79
Non Convertible Debentures 5,500.00 2,690.00
Shamrao Vithal Co-op Bank Limited 1,984.98 1,879.51
Loans from others 1,413.03 1,443.69
Unsecured 5,687.30 5,459.80
Loans from body corporate
Total Short term borrowings 14,611.10 11,498.79

Terms and conditions of loans
Terms and conditions of Secured Non Convertible Debentures / Loans * (Previous years)
1. Exclusive hypothecation of the present and future current assets of the Company
2. Exclusive charge on the land, manufacturing plant and other fixed assets of the Company (including all non-core assets)
3. Pledge of shares of the Company held by promoters and promoters’ group (currently holding 63.40% of total shareholding).
4. Personal Guarantee of Promoters Sri Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and Sri Sanjay Tulsyan
5. Corporate Guarantees of Tulsyan Smelters Limited, Chitrakoot Steel & Power Private Limited
48. Financial Instruments
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going concern, while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other
strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, long-term borrowings and other short-term borrowings

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders.

Categories of Financial Instruments el ot
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assets

a. Measured at amortised cost

Other non-current financial assets 3,115.44 2.993.84

Trade receivables 9,812.45 10,630.57

Cash and cash equivalents 28.73 120.33

Bank balances other than above 4.94 2.44

Other financial assets -

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments 0.03 0.03
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Financial liabilities . bEl
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. Measured at amortised cost
Long term borrowings 22,805.65 21,999.20
Other non-current financial liabilities 2,182.05 1,960.87
Short term borrowings 14,430.72 11,498.78
Trade payables 14,014.05 12,448.34

Financial risk management objectives

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors
and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future eamings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in
the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively manages its currency and interest rate exposures through its finance division.
Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
arise. The Company actively manages its currency rate exposures through a treasury division and uses natural hedging principles to
mitigate the risks from such exposures.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

As on March 31, 2025 (all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in lakhs)

Currency Liabilities Assets Net overall
Gross Exposure Net liability | Gross exposure Exposure Net asset ‘E;%(Ls:;:n_
exposure hedged exposure on hedged using exposure on Y
) A net assets / (net
using the currency derivatives the currency L
L liabilities
derivatives
USsD - - - 1,667,077.22 - 1,667,077.22 1,667,077.22
EUR - - - - - - -
GBP - - - -
InINR - - - 1,314.26 - 1,314.26 1,314.26

As on March 31, 2024 (all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in lakhs)

Currency Liabilities Assets Net overall
Gross Exposure Net liability | Gross exposure Exposure Net asset tf,?;f,‘:;ﬁ:n.
exposure hedged exposure on hedged using exposure on v
) A net assets / (net
using the currency derivatives the currency P
L liabilities
derivatives
usD - - - 1,128,377.56 - 1,128,377.56 1,128,377.56
EUR - - - - - - -
GBP - - - - - - -
in INR - - - 835.44 - 835.44 835.44

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies may impact the Company’s
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revenues from its operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of imports and cost of borrowings
and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company’s capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated
for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates
shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to
foreign operations within the Company where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of the lender
or the borrower.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end
of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the
Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swap contracts.
Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging
strategies are applied. Further, in appropriate cases, the Company also effects changes in the borrowing arrangements to convert floating
interest rates to fixed interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Company has no floating rate liabilities and thus does not have the risk of increase or decrease in the rate of interest. The Secured Non
Convertible Debentures issued during the year carry a Fixed Rate of Interest and thus no risk of Decrease or increase cost of funds.

Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its financing/
investing activities, including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has no significant concentration of credit
risk with any counterparty.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the total of the carrying
amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity
investments.

(a) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer
and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the
exposure is backed by either bank, guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified approach, the Company
makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments
and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk

(b) Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have
been made with the banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating
agencies.
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Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved financial institutions/ counterparty. Investments primarily include bank
deposits. These bank deposits and counterparties have low credit risk. The Company has standard operating procedures and
investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in bank deposits and restricts the exposure in equity
markets. Investments of surplus funds does not arise in the case of the Company.

Offsetting related disclosures

Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the loan agreement is available only to the bank in the event of a default.
Company does not have the right to offset in case of the counter party’s bankruptcy, therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain

sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Company can be required to pay.

March 31, 2025 Due in 1st year Due after 1st Year Carrying amount
Trade payables 1,312.25 12,701.80 14,014.05
Borrowings 5500.00 22 805.65 28,305.65
6,812.25 35,507.45 42,319.70

March 31, 2024 Due in 1st year Due after 1st Year Carrying amount
Trade payables 7,333.98 5,114.36 12,448.34
Borrowings 2,715.79 21,999.20 24,714.99
10,049.77 27,113.56 37,163.33

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value (but fair value
disclosures are required):

Nil

Nil

49. Related party disclosure

a) List of related parties

Subsidiaries

Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd

Key management personnel

Shri Sanjay Tulsyan (Managing Director)

Shri Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (Executive Chairman)

Shri Sanjay Agarwalla (Whole Time Director)
Shri S. Chandrasekaran (Whole Time Director)
Shri Shantha Kumar RP (Chief Financial Officer)
Shmt Parvati Soni (Company Secretary)

Companies in which Directors are interested

Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd
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b) Transactions during the year
. Year ended Year ended
S.No. Nature of transactions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Purchase of goods
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 2,860.47 8,243.03
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 1,611.52 11,626.63
2 Sale of Goods
. 1.14 1,174.45
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 21.517.00 2710219
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd T T
3 Short term borrowings during the year
4 Services Received
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 5.00
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 5.00
5 Managerial Remuneration
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan 120.29 105.29
Sanjay Tulsyan 120.29 105.29
Sanjay Agarwalla 55.29 48.29
S. Chandrasekaran 16.90 21.40
Shantha Kumar RP 31.44 31.44
Alka Tulsyan 17.03 17.93
Aditya Bhartia 17.99 17.99
Shmt. Parvati Soni 10.28 8.68
c) Balances with related parties
S.No. Name of the Related Party
1 Outstanding Receivables
Tulsyan Power Private Ltd -
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 53.79
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd 2,304.06
2 Outstanding Payables
Chitrakoot Steel & Power P Ltd 1,201.04
Tulsyan Smelters Private Ltd - 1,378.77
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan 1,281.67 1,071.67
Sanjay Tulsyan 201.04 201.04
Alka Tulsyan 162.86 152.86
Lalit Kumar Tulsyan (HUF) 0.18 0.18

d) Guarantees and Collaterals

Chitrakoot Steel and Power P Ltd executed Corporate Guarantee in favour of Tulsyan NEC Limited to comply the CDR Terms.

The Company has executed (During the year 2009-10 and 2011-12) Corporate Guarantee in favour of the Shamrao Vithal Co-operative
Bank Limited, Mumbai for the loan taken by M/s. Chitrakoot Steel and Power Pvt. Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
for Rs. 25 Crores.
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50 Retirement benefit plans
Defined contribution plans

In accordance with Indian law, the Company makes contributions to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Employee State
Insurance Scheme, which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. 8.15 lakh (previous year Rs. 223.73 lakh) represents contribution payable to these
plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

Defined benefit plans
(a) Gratuity

Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. In terms of the same, gratuity is computed by multiplying last drawn salary
(basic salary including dearness Allowance if any) by completed years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months
and again by 15/26. The Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity
payable to an employee on separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in
cases where an enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian
Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality(2006-08) Mortality(2006-08)
Attrition Rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Discount Rate 6.84% p.a. 7.26% p.a.
Rate of increase in compensation level 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Lakh Rs. Lakh
Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows:
Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss:
Current service cost 29.11 30.61
Net interest expense 24.79 35.98
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (95.55) (67.95)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss (41.65) (1.36)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
for the Year:
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period 0.69 (134.27)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 0.69 (134.27)
Total (40.96) (135.63)
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 335.82 376.79
Fair value of plan assets :
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 335.82 376.79
Non - Funded 335.82 376.79
335.82 376.79
The above provisions are reflected under ‘Provision for employee benefits- gratuity’ (long-term provisions) [Refer note 20].
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
in the current year were as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 376.79 512.42
Current service cost 29.11 30.61
Interest cost 24.79 35.98
Actuarial (gains)/losses 0.69 (134.27)
Benefits Paid (95.55) (67.95)
Closing defined benefit obligation 335.82 376.79
Sensitivity analysis

In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the present value of the defined benefit obligation which
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.
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(b) Compensated absences

Company is following the practice of valuing the compensated absence as per Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” based on the leave balance
outstanding on the employees account on March 31st every year by an independent actuary and has provided the same in the accounts.
The payment is done as and when claims are received from the employees or on the date of retirement/ relieving from the service of the

company.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Mortality Table

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality(2006-08)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality(2006-08)

Attrition Rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Discount Rate 6.72% p.a. 717% p.a.
Rate of increase in compensation level 6.00% p.a. 6.00% p.a.
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Lakh Rs. Lakh

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined
benefit plans are as follows:
Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current service cost 6.63 6.77
Net interest expense 2.07 8.04
Benefits Paid (8.97)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 8.70 5.84
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) for the Year:
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period (8.84) (88.94)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (8.84) (88.94)
Total (0.14) (83.10)
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 47.04 47.18
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 47.04 47.18
Non - Funded 47.04 47.18

47.04 47.18

The above provisions are reflected under ‘Provision for employee benefits- leave encashment’ (long-term provisions) [Refer note 20].
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March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Rs. Lakh Rs. Lakh

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current

year were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation 47.18 130.28
Current service cost 6.63 6.77
Interest cost 2.07 8.04
Actuarial (gains)/losses (8.84) (88.94)
Benefits Paid - (8.97)
Closing defined benefit obligation 47.04 47.18

51: OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(i) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Group as at March 31, 2025, under Prohibition of Benami Property

Transaction Act, 1988 (As amended in 2016)

(if) ii) The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off as per Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Section

560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(i) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Group is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or vendor.

(ix) Title deeds of all immovable properties were held in the name of the Group.

52 Note on Issue of Securities/ Borrowing and Creation of Charges:

The company has issued 2690 Secured Non-convertible Debentures of Rs.10 Lacs each to Alternate investment Funds amounting
to Rs.269 Crores. The debentures so issued are secured by Exclusive hypothecation of the present and future current assets of the
Company and Exclusive charge on the land, manufacturing plant and other fixed assets of the Company (including all non-core assets)
Pledge of promoters shares and further secured by the personal guarantee of the promoters. The Charges in favour of the debenture trustee
is being registered with the registrar of companies during FY 23-24. Company has serviced the interest and principal payable on the Non
Convertable Debentures on time in all months except Dec 2024 to Mar 2025.. There has been an agreed Moratorium from Dec 2024 to Mar

2025. The brief particulars of these debentures are as follows:
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Sr.No. | Particulars Reference
i Date of passing of board resolution; 16-Mar-2023
i Date of passing of resolution in the general | 23-Mar-2023
’ meeting, authorizing the offer of securities;
Kinds of securities offered 2,690 unlisted, secured, unrated, redeemable, non-convertible
Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees
iii Ten Lakhs) each aggregating to INR 269,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Two Hundred and Sixty Nine Crores), on a private
placement basis
Price at which the security Was offered in- | Issued at Face value of INR 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten
iv cluding the premium, if any, along with jus- | Lakhs) each Debenture
tification of the price;
v The class or classes of persons to whom the | Category Il Alternative Investment Funds (“AlFs”)
allotment is be made;
vi Amount which the Company raised by way of | INR 269,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Sixty
offer of securities; Nine Crores)
Terms of raising of securities:
(a) duration; if applicable a) Duration: 5 (five) years
(b) rate of dividend; b) Rate of Dividend: Not Applicable
vii (c) rate of interest; c) Rate of Interest: Coupon 14% p.a.p.m IRR 22%
(d) mode of payment; and d) Special Premium — Rs.6 Crores
(e) Repayment. e) Upfront Interest 0.5%
f) Repayment: Structured Repayment
Vi Purposes and objects of the issue; To repay all the existing facilities and capital expenditure for
the enhancement of the project of the Company
Principle terms of assets charged as secu- | 1. Exclusive hypothecation of the present and future current
rity, if applicable; assets of the Company
2. Exclusive charge on the land, manufacturing plant and other
fixed assets of the Company (including all non-core assets)
ix 3. Pledge of shares of the Company held by promoters and
’ promoters’ group (currently holding 70.45% of total sharehold-
ing).
4. Personal Guarantee of Promoters
5. Corporate Guarantees of Tulsyan Smelters Limited, Chitra-
koot Steel & Power Private Limited
X Debenture Trustee for the issue Vistra ITCL (India) Limited
Address IL&FS Financial Center, Plot No. C-22, G Block, 6th
Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051
Email: ITCLComplianceofficer @vistra.com
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In line with the prescribed IND AS 32,107 and 109 which deals with Financial Instruments, an entity shall measure a financial liability
at its fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing of the financial liability. The transaction cost of Rs.
1,37,50,000/- has been adjusted against the proceeds of Rs.2,69,00,00,000/- and the same has not been charged to the Profit and
Loss account. The workings for the same are as under:

Transaction cost for the NCD 137.50
Fair Value of NCD as disclosed in the financial statement 26,762.50
Total 26,900.00
India Special Assets Fund | ISAF IIl Onshore Fund Total
1l (a scheme of ISAF IIl)

Initial recognition at fair value 18465.13 8297.37 26762.50
Special Premium Alc 318.78 143.22 462.00
Interest expense as per IND AS 3,794.57 1,705.10 5,499.67
Instalment paid (3,020.97) (1,357.48) (4,378.45)

19,557.51 8,788.21 28,345.72

53 Corporate Social Reponsibility

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or
a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. The calculation of CSR for the financial year ended 31-3-2025 is as under:

Year Ended 31st Mar =----- > 2022 2023 2024
Profit after Tax 78937.77 24776.37 (5017.05)
Provision for Taxation 0.00 5656.33 (188.93)
Profit before tax 78937.77 19120.04 (4828.12)
Add

- Depreciation / impairment as per books 2416.44 2590.75 2487.85

- Amortisation of expenses relating to raising /

repayment of loans
- Provision for dimunition in value of investment
81354.21 21710.79 (2340.27)

Deduct

- Depreciaton as per section 350 of 2416.44 2590.75 2487.85

the Companies Act 1956

- Capital profit on sale of fixed asset and investment 1.20 68.35 1,709.09

- Expenses relating to raising / repayment of loan

- Income of Capital In Nature 36143.37 14873.59
(1) the excess of expenditure over income, which had arisen in computing 42793.20 4178.15 (2340.27)
the net profits in accordance with this section in any year which begins at
or after the commencement of this Act, in so far as such excess has not
been deducted in any subsequent year preceding the year in respect of
which the net profits have to be ascertained;
Net Profit (4,196.94)
Average (1398.98)
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54. Previous Year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary to conform to the Current Year’s classification

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

For Tulsyan NEC Limited Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. 004915S/ S200036)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjay Tulsyan Lalit Kumar Tulsyan M. Parthasarathy E.K.Srivatsan

Managing Director Executive Chairman Director Partner

DIN: 00632802 DIN : 00632823 DIN: 08277111 M.No. 225064

Sd/- Sd/-

CA Shantha Kumar RP Parvati Soni

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennai.
Date : 30th May, 2025
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Disclosure Of Ratios By Companies as per new Schedule Ill Amendment

S.No.

Ratio

Formula

CY

PY

Variation

Reasons for Changes

Current Ratio

Current Assets/Current
Liabilities

0.59

0.77

(23%)

Reduction on current ratio
is on account of sale of
assets held for sale.

Debt - Equity Ratio

Total Debt/Total Equity

1.49

0.97

53%

Variance attributable to
the losses incurred during
the year resulting in
reduced total equity.

Debt Service
Coverage Ratio

Net Operating Income/
Total Debt Service

(0.13)

(0.07)

101%

Losses incurred during the
year, reducing the ability
to service debt obligation.

Return on Equity

Net Income/Avg
Shareholder’s Equity

-0.29

0.14)

109%

Loss incurred during
the year due to sale of
windmill and power opera-

tions shut down for eight
months resulting in lesser

income generation and
increase in the purchase
power and fuel resulting
in increase in respective
expenses, leading to lower
return on equity.

Inventory
Turnover Ratio

Cost of Goods Sold/
Avg Inventory

2.27

2.32

(2%)

Variance attributable to
lower consumption made
during the year resulting in
lesser sales, despite the
lower inventory level held.

Trade Recievable
Turnover
Ratio

Annual Credit Sales/
Avg Trade Recievables

212

2.34

(9%)

Variance attributable to
decrease in sales and
decrease in trade receiv-
ables in comparison with
the previous year.

Trade Payable
Turnover Ratio

Annual Credit Purchases/
Avg Trade Payables

1.28

1.85

(31%)

Variance attributable to
decrease in purchases

ables in comparison with
the previous year leading

to negative result.

and increase in trade pay-
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Net Capital
Turnover Ratio

Annual Net Sales/
Working Capital

(6.56)

31.63)

(79%)

Variance attributable to
decrease in sales and
net increase in current
liabilities arising due to
Interest payable on ac-

count of NCD moratorium

and Power charges being
payable and increase in

Unsecured Borroeings of
the company during the

year.

Net Profit Ratio

Net Profit/ Net Sales

(0.08)

(0.05)

66%

Variance attributable to
losses incurred during the
year due to shut down
in power operations for
8 Months resulting in
lesser income generation
and increase in cost due
to power purchase from
outsiders.

10

Return on Capital
Employed

EBIT/(Total Assets -
Current Liabilities)

(0.14)

(0.08)

78%

Variance attributable to
losses incurred during
the year due to power
operations shut down

for 8 Months resulting in

lesser income generation

and increase in cost due

to power being purchased
from outsiders.

1

Return on
investment

Return From
Investment/
Cost of Investment

NA

NA

NA

NA
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